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New Purpose-inspired Strategy
Delivers Strong Performance

On behalf of the Board | have
pleasure in reporting that your
Company delivered strong

results ahead of targets for

2013 Net revenue excluding

fB8 Pharmaceuticals grew 7%,
operating profit (adjusted)' excluding
RB Pharmaceuticals grew 7%, and
adjusted’ net income grew at 2%,

all at constant exchange rates

The Company’s twin strategy IS to
focus on growing the health and
hygiene brands of its core portfolio and
to achieve a stronger emerging market
penetration to better balance iis histonic
developed market strength

At the end of 2013, health and hygiene
brands represented 72% of the core
portfolio and the emerging market
areas represented 43% This progress
15 pleasing but equally so were the
results m Europe and Nerth America
which achieved growth in every
quarter of the year Our acquisitions,
more fully reported elsewhere in

this report, contributed matenally to
these achievements

RB Pharmaceuticals

After the entry of genenc US
competition to RB Pharmaceuticals’
Suboxone and the stable performance
of the Film aiternative, your Board
announced a strategic review of this
part of the Company The review wil
recommend the optimal future for

RB Pharmaceuticals and the Company

' Adjusted to exclude the impact of exceptional items

will update Shareholders on the review’s
progress dunng 2014

Cash and Dividend

The strong growth produced strong
cash flow, allowing the Company to pay
down more of its debt The Company 1s
in strong financial health and your Board
15 proposing a final dividend of 77p per
share This brings the dmidend for the
year to 137p per share, an increase of
2% over 2012

Corporate Social Responsibtiity

In addition to being a financial
contnbutor to society, the Company

1 also a contributor 1o environmental
and humamitarian needs of socety

The Company was proud to announce
a major new global initiative with Save
the Children, a longstanding partner, to
address the scourge of ctild deaths from
diarrhoea, which 1s highly preventable
through better health and hygiene

Corporate Governance

The detaled Corporate Governance
Statement and Report on pages 24
to 32 reflects the Board’s recognition
of the importance of our governance
responsibilities

The Board conducted regular reviews
of the performance of the business,
its strategy, brands, human resources,
corporate responsibility and reputation
and business risks It was decided

to change the trading name of the
Company to ‘RB’, mowving away from
the harder to say, spell and search
‘Reckitt Benckiser’ There are no
changes to legal entity names

Board of Directors

It was with great regret that | accepted
in June the resignation due to ! health
of Graham Mackay, our then Senior
Independent Director Graham sadly
passed away in December He dehivered
great service to your Company over

his eght years on the Board and will
be missed André Lacrox has been
appointed Senior Independent Director

In December, we appointed

Nicancro Durante as an independent
Non-Executive Director Nicandro, an
ltahan/Brazihan and CEO of BAT, brings
significant consumer goods industry and
emerging markets experence Also
December Richard Cousins advised me
that he would not be available to stand
for re-election to the Board 1 thank
Richard for his contributions to our
Company Judith Sprieser and Kenneth
Hydon will step down as Chaus of the
Remuneration and Audit Committees
respectively in 2014 They have both
been extraordinanly effective Chairs of
the Committees

Your Nominations Committee is
actively involved in a project to appoint
additronal Non-Executive Directors

Annual General Meeting Resolutions
The resolutions to be voted on at our
AGM on 7 May 2014, are explained in
the Notce of Meeting, including the
new requirement to offer Shareholders
a binding vote on our Remuneration
Policy, the details of which are set out In
the Directors” Remuneration Report on
pages 34 to 46 We believe this policy
has served the Company well and hope
Shareholders will endorse it

Thanks

On behalf of the Board, | thank our
CEOQ, Rakesh Kapoor, his executive
management tearn and our employees
globally for therr commitment to
delivering strong performance The Board
is often rerminded that an enduring
differentiator of the Company is its
people and their positive performance-
minded culture My thanks go also to
my Board colleagues for their continued
support and guidance

The Board thanks you, our Shareholders,
for your on-going confidence in the
Company

Adnan Bellamy Charman
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RB Delivers Another
Strong Year in 2013

Total net revenue

Health & hygiene
Powerbrands
e S
L '
Durex, Mucinex, Strepsils,
Dettol, Lysol, Harpic & Finish

led the growth

Adjusted net income up +2%
(+2% constant):
adjusted I*\
diluted -~ \
earnings 269.89

per share

2014 Targets

+ Net revenue growth of +4-5% at
constant exchange rates, excluding
RB Pharmaceuticals, including the
immaterial residual impact of the
Bristol-Myers Squibb (BMS) collaboration

« Flat to moderate operating margin®
expanston, excluding RB Pharmaceuticals
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strong growth in
emerging market areas

Suboxone Film maintained

| 685/:73_.# 7

\ volume share of the
e USmarket 7

h \,\ ,('/\\:l‘ -\\\\)

igggiﬁa

Strong cash fiow took
net debt to

£2,096m

after dividends, acquisitions
& restructuring

Medium-term KPIs (Key
Performance Indicators)

» Health and hygiene revenues to increase
as a percentage of core® net revenue by
1% per annum going forward

LAPAC? and RUMEAZ? combined to be
equal In net revenue size to ENA? by end
of 2015

Achieve 200 bps per annum of net
revenue growth on average above
our market growth (excluding

RB Pharmaceuticals)

Greater
and
+4%

total
growth

{at constant
exchange rates)

Operating
margins’ up

+20
il ops

exceeding target

These results give us
confidence that we have

the right business strategy,
the right organisation, the
right platforms and the right
culture to deliver sustained
growth and outperformance.

* Achieve moderate operating margin?
expansion

Exduding RE Pharmaceuticals a3 constant
exchange rates

2 latin America North Asia South East Asia and

Austrahia and New Zealand (LAPAC) Russia and CIS,

Middle East, North Afnca Turkey and sub-Saharan
Afnca (RUMEA), North America Central Europe,
Northern Europe, Southern Europe and Western
Europe (ENA}

3 Adjusted o exdude the impact of excepbional
nems and excluding RB Pharmaceuticals

4 Care incudes health hygiene, home and
portfolio brands
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Rakesh Kapoor Chief Executive

Creating a New Global
Force in Consumer Health

At the end of the second year of our new strategy, it is
appropriate to reflect on the progress we have made.

The achievements have been many Building on the successful
tradittons of the Company, we are creating something unique
and powerful We are creating a new force in consumer health
across the globe RB 1s building capabilities to provide innovative

solutions for healthier lives

Global health trends are changing
profoundly People are hving longer
and are increasingly aware of the

need to look after themselves as they
seek to prolong and enjoy their lives
Families are better educated about
health 1ssues and are increasingly keen
10 take control of their own wellbeing
The emergent middle class has become
far more health conscious as the links
between health and prospenty become
clearer Governments also want atizens

to take on respanstbility for therr
every-day alments as they strive to
reduce the economic burden of nsing
health care costs and to focus imited
resources on more complex diseases

Qur vision and our purpose are to
support consumers as they make therr
choices for their own households and
therr own families, to put them in
contro! and give them the power to
do what is nght for them

........

Our vision is a world where people
are healthier and live better

Our purpose is to make a difference by
giving people innovative solutions for
healthier lives and happier homes

Our Strategy
POWERBRANDS
Focus on health, hygiene and home

POWERMARKETS
Powermarkets priontised on
growth potential and where we
have capabilities to win

ORGANISATION
Informed by consumer clusters,
LAPAC, RUMEA and ENA

MARGINS
Drive margins to fund investment and
profit growth, and convert to cash

RB Annual Report 2013 3
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Trusted Powerbrands for
Self Health Care

Consumers are at the Centre of

our Viston

RB owns brands that consumers love
and trust They know our products

can make a difference and help

them live healthier hves, but our
strategy 1s different from traditional
pharmaceutical consumer health
companies Our deep expertise as a
consumer-centric company means we
can continuously provide highly relevant
products and benefits based on what
consumers want, informed with robust
science and medical support

We continue to 1invest in this strategy
We have increased our spending on key
partnerships across the world so we can
understand better where the emerging
opportunittes and needs he, in whatever
demographic or geography they exist

Our business model continues to
develop to support this strategy We
remain focused on Powermarkets and
Powerbrands where we believe the
opportunities are greatest Qur new
geographic structure has paid dividends
as we have significantly expanded our
presence in emerging markets And our
renewed focus on health and hygiene
has seen us boost our presence n key
consumer health segments that we
believe will deliver benefits to all our
stakeholders in the future

We have done this through focused
investment in our people and financial
resources, and through a series

of strategic acquisitions that have
demonstrated our intent to develop
further in areas where we see the
most potential

OUR 19 POWERBRANDS

Good health 1s the key to happiness

Gaviscon Mucinex
mumoRe () @ Strepsils

Hygiene 15 the foundation of
healthy living

N
Tl voren

Home 15 the centre of famuly life

o R R

™ 4

Food 15 run as a stand-alone W

77
Clearasil Dettol finish

business

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Helping UK pharmadists
help thew patients
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As the global leader in consumer health and
hygiene, RB’s reputation for being ‘the health
care brand for health care professionals’ (HCPs)

1s growing Amongst many onhne schemes, we're

piloting an cnline consumer heafth care portal
‘RBforHealth’ in the UK and Itzly, gvang HCPs
access to interactive training modules, and a
colfectton of essential resources
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STRATEGIC ACQUISITIONS
AND PARTNERSHIPS

Brnistol-Myers Squibb

Boosting our strength m Latin Amenica
In over-the-counter brands

ﬁl | wALDECON |

Graneoding Tempra

Guilong Medicine

Strategic acquisition of the traditional
Chinese mediane brand Manyanshuning —
the No 1 sore throat remedy in China

BEBE *
w__ |

..................................................

----------------------------------

Acquisitions Reinforce

our Position

Strengthening our Health Platform
In May 2013 we significantly
strengthened our health platform in
tatin America, where historically we
have had less on-the-ground ability

to execute than in other regions

Qur collaboration with Bristol-Myers
Squibb brought into our portfolio a
number of important over-the-counter
brands that have leading positions

in key segments such as cold and flu
and pain relief in the rapidly growing
markets of Brazil and Mexico In China,
we acquired the leading tradiional sore
throat brand Manyanshuning, which
has already shown strong growth 1n the
first year of our ownership Beyond thus,
it 15 helping to build a consumer health
platform in one of the world’s largest
consurner markets

Vitamins, Minerals and
Supplements (VMS)

We have also broadened our category
portfolio with the purchase of Schiff
at the end of 2012 This provided us
with a meamngful position in the fast-
growing area of vitamins, minerals and
supplements The category 1S worth
£29bn globally and 1s growing at an
annual rate of 4-5%

Dlvmg into the Vast Vitamins, Minerals
and Supplements Category

Acquining Schiff has given RB a leading
position in the large and rapidly growang
vitanmins, minerals and supplements category,
effectively doubling the value of the global
health markets we are now in to £60bn

A key brand in this category 1s MegaRed -
made from knll ol instead of fish oil, this

gives our consumers the same
benefits for therr heart and
health, but wath a2 much more
palatabie fish-free taste

o P
N

Megalleg

MegaRed launches into over
20 new Eurcpean and Asian ,
markets in 2014 N

e arey

As more and more people become
aware of the potential benefits of
supplements as part of a holistic
approach to health and wellbeing,
this category goes from strength to
strength As an example, many people
want to eat a balanced diet with the
right nutrnients but are unable to do so
Supplementing dret 15 one way VMS
fulfils an important role

In each of these cases we have used
our operational expertise to Integrate
the acquisitions rapidly, and we are
confident that each will deliver lasting
value for Shareholders Collectively
these transactions will contribute to
our strategy of creating a unique gicbal
health and hygiene focused company
with broad category coverage across a
host of fast growing segments, ncluding
analgesics, cold and flu, gastrointestinal
maladies and VMS They have also
expanded our geographic capabilities,
ensuring we are better positioned than
ever to meet our targets

Heart heaith
is key ta
enjoyment of Iife he

RB Annual Report 2013  §
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HIALTH HYRIERE * HOME

Expanding Powermarkets

Focus on the Right Categones and
the Right Geographies

These acquisttions add to cur
considerable progress on the first
pillar of our strategy, to focus on the
faster growing, higher margin and
better consumer loyaity of health and
hygiene brands Cur KPI, which we
had already accelerated to 2015, to
achieve 72% of our core net revenue
from these two categories has been
achieved two years early

The second pillar of our strategy 15 a
particular focus on 16 Powermarkets
where the opportunity to grow and
outperform s greatest, such as in Brazil,
Russia, India and China This 1s why we
created two emerging market areas,
our third pillar, LAPAC and RUMEA,

to enhance our focus, capabilities and

5’5

Gil, Baek Jiyound,

Shin Seunghoon & Kang Ta
judges on The vioice of Korea
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...................................

brand penetration programme Qur KP!
1s to make these emerging market areas
50% of our core net revenue by 2015

We also made the unconventional

but breakthrough step of combining
turope and North America as one
organisation This has enabled ENA to
become a leaner, faster organisation
with the ability to enhance the scale of
our nnovations across both sides of the
Atlantic and deliver very good growth

Qur final pillar of margin
improvement remains key and s

a focus for every business, in every
market, every day it is what generates
the fuel to invest in our brands and
ultimately to generate excellent returns
for our Shareholders

South Korea

An innovative collaboration saw StrepsHs sponsornng
the popular national talent TV show The Voice of
Korea The Strepsils brand was embedded into all
aspects of the show, contestants even used Strepsils
during the shows 1o keep their throats feeling great
This helped Strepsils’ distnbution into 16 aities, 14,000
pharmacies and 30,000 points of sale Sales doubled!

Boosting Strepsils Sales in

LAPAC

North Asia / South East Asia /
Australia & New Zealand / Latin America

RUMEA

Russia & CIS f Middle East, North Africa
& Turkey / sub-Saharan Africa

ENA

North America / Central Eurcpe /
Northern Europe / Southern Europe /
Waestern Europe

---------------------------------------------------
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CATEGORY KPi
0 Core’' Company
/O net revenues from
health and hygiene
- 10 increase by
aCh|eved 1% per annum

GEOGRAPHIC KPI

43

achieved

Core' Company
net revenues from
LAPAC and RUMEA
to be equal to ENA
by end of 2015

1 Core indudes health hygiene, home and
portfalio brands

------ - . “ssvan

Fun with Durexperiments

Durex 1s about great and safe sex As the
gtobal No 1 sexuat wellbeing brand it 15
reaching new CONSUMErs 1N very nnovative
ways A series of ‘Durexpeniments’
included creating ‘Fundawear’ — wibraung
underwear, activated by your partner via a
smart phone app

This innovative idea was launched in
Australa The YouTube video went viral,

Innovating to Outperform

Strategic Review of RB
Pharmaceuticals

As part of our constant commutment
to drive shareholder value, during

the year we announced a strategic
review of RB Pharmaceuticals We have
consistently said that, once generc
competition to RB Pharmaceuticals’
Suboxone had been on the market in
the US for a number of months, we
would examine all the options for what
1s a very valuable asset That review

1s ongoing and we will update our
Shareholders dunng 2014

Our Responsibility

Our purpose to provide innovative
solutions for healthier ves and happier
homes inspires our business strategy
but 1t 1s 2 determination that 15 also at
the heart of our scaial purpose We
take the same innovative approach

Py £ ey

gaining a rulhion views 1n just two weeks
and becoming Australia’s No 1 wdeo ever
Facebook ‘Likes” increased 4,000%,

there was a 35 1 return on advertising
revenue and a Silver Lion advertising award
at Cannes

to our responsibility and sustainability
initiatives as we do to our business
and brands

Environmental Performance

We take our environmentat
performance equally seniously and

are targeting a one-third reduction

1n carbon emissions across the entire
iifecycle of our products by 2020 In the
past five years we have already reduced
carbon emussions per dose of product
by 25%, leading to our recognition

as a teader in this area by the Carbon
Disclosure Project

We have adopted & similar approach
to our use of water, which 1s becoming
an increasngly scarce resource in many
parts of the world, yet 1s cntical to our
business and to consumers

‘Nlck & Dam, Austraha,
Fundawear testers on
viral YouTube video

R8 Annual Report 2013 7
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Healthier Business,
Healthier World

tackie the causes of diarrhoea, which
kills 800,000 children under five every
year — that's more than a child a minute
Working with governmental, NGO

and business partners, we aim to
remove 1t as the No 2 cause of death

in young children

We have set a one-third target for water
reduction and are designing innovative
new products that reduce both the
volumes of water required for therr
manufacture, as well as in their use For
instance our new Dettol Touch of Foam
requires far less water than conventional
hand wash products as it does not
require water to create a lather In
addition, we have a target to achteve
one-third of our net revenua from more
sustainable products by 2020

Our People

The success of these initiatives, and

of the business as a whole, lies with
our employees RB people are different
They have unmatched passion and
commitment, and live for results Once
again | would like to thank them for all
their efforts

Healthier Lives
We have faunched a groundbreaking
imihative with Save the Children to

There 1s little doubt that 2014 will be another challenging
year Our actions In 2013 mean that we believe we can
still look forward to another peried of outperformance

Rakesh Kapoor Chief Executive

L T Ty T L T N T T Y b en men

Taking a Stand Against Preventable Disease
- Save a Child Every Minute!

it will shock many people to learn that
diarrhoea 1s the secand biggest killer
worldwide of children under five, claiming
around 800,000 lives per year That's 90
young lives every hour RB is on a mission
with Save the Children to change this?

Thes illness 1s preventable
through better hyqiene
and health and our

goal together is to
radically reduce the
global death rate -
by 2020

8  RB Annual Report 2013
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SeACs, Help stop deaths
o © from diarrhoea
f‘" . In partnership wath
A
6‘0;. S () save the Children

Making a difference n
Ethiopia, Bangladesh and
rany fnofe counties

Photo credits Abave Save the Children
Below Lucka Zora / Save the Children
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A Detailed Look at our Strategy

Our Strategy for Growth and
Outperformance

Our vision 15 a world where people are healthier
and Iive better Qur purpose 1s to make a
drfference by gving people innovative solutions
for healthier Iives and happier homes

Our strategy for growth and outperformance
to dekiver our wision centres around four
key pillars

1 Powerbrands - a disproportionate focus on
our 19 Powerbrands in the health, hygiene
and home categories

2 Powermarkets — a disproportionate
focus on our 16 Powermarkets, a
significant number of which are in emerging
markets and which have higher absolute
growth potential

3 Qrganisation - we have organised our
business around sever major consamer
clusters, each of which has Powermarkets
within it

4 Margins - we undertake continuous
initratives aimed at freeing resource to mnvest
in the business and drang moderate margin
expansion over the medium-term

POWERBRANDS ~ STRATEGIC PILLAR 1

Our Powerbrands are carefully selected for thesr
high growth and margin potential, and we
invest dsproportionately behind these brands
to drive supenor performance We have 19
Powerbrands, all bar one of which are dassified
into our three core categones of health,
hygiene and home

Health - 29% of Core Net Revenue
Consumer health has a number of attractive
features as a category and we have built the
skill set to win 1n these categortes

. see .

[ a .

Good health s the key to happiness

No 1 worldwide in condoms for both
safe and more pleasurable sex, with the
Powerbrand Durex

No 1 worldwide in cough wath the
Powerbrand Mucinex

No 1 worldwtde in medicated sore throat
products with the Powerbrand Strepsils

= No 1 worldwide in upper gastro-intestinal
products with the Powerbrand Gaviscon

» Leading position tn analgesics in Europe and
Australia with the Powetbrand Nurofen

« Leading positions in footcare i many
markets outside North America and Latin
Amenca, with the Powerbrand Scholl

Attractive Features of Consumer Health
Attractive demographics such as an emerging
micidle class keen to manage therr health

and an ageing population with greater needs
Governments keen to encourage cansumers
to self-medicate on symptom managerient,
as more complex diseases make ever greater
calls on therr funds Health brands have higher
consumer trust and loyalty, brands have
supenor gross margins and finally there 15

a fragmented market place dominated by
prescniption pharmaceutical companies with
typically less focus on and expertise in
consumer marketing

RB Positioning and Ability to Win

Qur consumer-centric and innovation-led
mindset, puts the consumers’ needs first

We have built a global consumer health
infrastructure and are presert in all of the major
consumer health categories The combination
of our consumer focused and innovation-led
mindset, our R&D and regulatory capabilities,
and our global mirastructure positions us well
for continued growth and outperformance

Growth Dnivers
Growth will be dniven by three core
components

s Scence-based innovations Our R&D
department sits firmly alongside our category
organisation and 1s core to the development
of scientfically driven and consumer-focused
innovation We don't discover new molecules
rather we mine the wealth of exisung scence
and use our technical expertise and capability
to delver products using that science which
consumers find relevant, convenient, know
and trust For example, when you have a
headache, your number one prionty is to get
nd of pain quickly, so we developed Nurofen
Express, 2 patented combmation of thuprofen
and sodium which speeds up the release of
the active ingredient and 5o targets pain
twice as quickly as an ibuprofen-only product

= Brand extensions Trust 15 important within
consumer health, and we build on the trust
and loyalty we have created withun our
brands to create opportunities in adjacent
segments Take for exarmple Mucainex, our
market-leading cough and congestion
product in the US We have bullt on the
equity we created i this brand to launch

Mucinex Fast Max in the wider cold and

flu category 1n 2011-2012, and then
subsequently into the sinus category 10 2013
And for 2014 we have now announced our
entry into the allergy category wath our

new Muacinex Fast Max Allergy tablets, a
non-drowsy antihistamine with 24-hour relef
from indoor and outdoor allergres

« Geographic roll outs Our global consumer
health infrastructure and go-to-market
capability will facilitate further geographic
expansion of our existing brands We have
already had significant success wath Gaviscon
a longstanding brand in our portfclio We
have also recently announced the launch of
our newly acquired MegaRed brand in over
20 countries durmg 2014

Hygiene - 43% of Core Net Revenue

Good hygiene 15 the foundation of healthy
lving and we believe 1t s important to educate
consumers about good hygiemc practices Our
Powerbrands are positioned with this in mind
and we have a number of large and market-
leading Powerbrands in hygiene

Hygsene 1s the foundation of
healthy hiving

/i
JID ceons & finish

p 3L (D e

ik b o4 ox s . . .

s sese we -

+ No 1 worldwide in antiseptic hquids with the
Powerbrand Dettol

Ne 1 worldwide in disinfectant cleaners
{products which both clean and dismfect
surfaces, killing 99 % of germs) with the
Powerbrand Lysol in North Amenca and the
surface care products in the Dettol range
outside North America

» No 1 worldwide 1n automatic dishwashing
{products used in automatic dishwashers)
with the Powerbrand Finish

= No 1 worldwide in the overall surface care
category due to leading positions across
disinfectant cleaners, non-dsinfectant
multi-purpose cleaners lavatory care
speciality cleaners and polishesfwaxes

* No 1 worldwide 1n depilatories with the
Powerbrand Veet

No Z worldwide in lavatory care with Lysol in
North America and the Powerbrand Harpic,
across Europe and developing markets

RB Annual Report 2013 9
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« No 2 worldwide in pest contral with
the Powerbrand Mortein, the Group’s
international brand, supported by locat brand
franchises like d-Con m North Amenca

= No 3 worldwide in acne treatment with the
Powerbrand Clearasil

The hygiene category 1s spearheaded by our
Dettollysol Powerbrands, “trusted champions
of health, everyday” We undertake many
campaigns to help educate consumers ca good
hygienic practices in emerging markets, such as
‘new mums' hospital visit iviiatives We visit
new mums In hospital and educate them about
the importance of healthy habits around their
home when they take thew new child home for
the first tme We also wisit schools as part of
our ‘healthy hands’ campaign and teach
children the importance of washing therr
hands, and how to do it properly

These are just a few examples of where we
believe we have a significant opporturity to
grow awareness and penetration of our brands
through consumer targeted education, coupled
wath the nght mnovations for healthy Iving

Home - 22% of Core Net Revenue
Home will always be the centre of a family's
world and our market-leading home care
Powerbrands are posittoned to create
happler homes

Home 1s the centre of family Iife

0= éw

* No 1 worldwide in fabnc treatment (products
to remove stains from clothes carpets and
upholstery) with the Powerbrand Vanish
around the globe and Resolve/Spray ‘n Wash
i North America

No 2 worldwide i arr care with the
Powerbrand Ar Wick

No 1 worldwide in water softeners
{products to prevent hmescale build-up on
washing machines and laundry) with the
Powerbrand Calgon

« No 2 worldwide in garment care (laundry
cleaning products for dehicate garments) with
the Powerbrand Woolite

We have a proven track record of bringing
mnovation that consumers love A good
example of our innovative approach to this
category is our new Vanish ‘Superbar It has
been designed specifically for emerging
markets and has made Vanish more affordable
to consumers where price remains a barrier and
where people don t have washing machmes for
therr clothes We also set up the onhne *Vanish
tip exchange dunng the year This was a
business development initiative arrned at
creating an onkne community for consumers
to discuss how they use Vanssh to get nd of

10 RB Annual Report 2013

particutarly tough stains The tip exchange has
proved a great success and we have already
seen encouraging penetration improvements in
Vanish dunng the year

Medium-term KPI

Our pnme portfolio focus 15 on health and
hygiene and we had a medium-term KP! that
72% of our core revenue will come from health
and hygiene brands by 2015 At the end of
2013 we actually achieved this KPI due to our
strong organic growth, supplemented by
acquisitions We are now targeting 10 Increase
this by +1% per annum going forward

Portfolio Brands

We have a number of local brands which do
not fit with our health hygiene and home
focus These are managed with a focus on focal
scale and cash generation

POWERMARKETS AND CRGANISATION

— STRATEGIC PILLARS 2 & 3

The second pillar of our strategy 5 ‘A Focus On
Powermarkets Our brands are marketed and
sold in nearly 200 markets across the woild,
but we know that the vast majority of our
global growth will come from a few key areas
We have identified 16 Powermarkets, in both
developed and emerging countries These are
markets where we see exceptional potential for
growth and where we have an ability to win

The third piltar of our strategy Is organisation
where we seek a balance of emerging markets
and developed markets We take a consumer-
centnic view of the world and see seven magor
censumer clusters, around which we organise
ourselves Each cluster has one or more
Powermarkets wathin it Consumers within
these clusters have significant similarities in
how they use, choose and buy our categories
of consumer goods and so 1t makes sense to
group them together

The first three of these consumer clusters are
the consumers of Latn Amernica, North Asia
and South Asia, which together wath Australia
and New Zealand we group together intoc one
organisational structure named LAPAC The
next three clusters are Russia and CIS, Muddle
East, North Africa and Turkey, and sub-Saharan
Afnica, and we group these three together nto
one organisational structure calted RUMEA The
seventh consumer cluster comprises Europe and
North Amenca (ENA) Across these two markets
there are many similariies in behaviours, in
brand development and in how the retail trade
1s organised Hence ENA forms the third
geagraphic organisational structure

Medium-term KPI

Qur medium-term goal 1s to grow the emerging
market areas of LAPAC and RUMEA faster so
that by 2015 they together represent 50% of
our ¢ore revenues, equal in size to ENA At the
end of 2013 they represented 43% 1n 2013
our progress was impacted by adverse currency
movements in a number of emerging markets,
by weaker performance 1n RUMEA and by our
Schiff acquisition wathin ENA

LAPAC North Asia South East Asia,
Austraha & New Zealand, Latin Amernica

RUMEA Russia & CIS, Meddle East, North Africa
& Turkey, sub-Saharan Africa

ENA North Amerrca, Central Europe,
Northerrt Evrope, Southern Europe, Western
furope

MARGINS - STRATEGIC PILLAR 4

The fourth piitar of our strategy 1s margn
{ncreasing gross margin 15 a key prority It 1s at
the forefront of our "virtuous’ earnings model
Graoss margin s an mdicator of our ability to
drive topline growth over tme wath the key
drwvers being the following

+ Improving the mix We focus on categories
where we can add reat value for consumers,
and earn a corresponding significant and
sustatnable margin

+ Cost optimisation programmes this s a
continual process 0 our husiness and not a
stop-start effort Now called ‘Project Fuel®
we are continually looking for greater
efficiencies and savings within our supply
chain We akso Jock at our products, with a
relentless focus on doing things at a cheaper
cost, and enhancing quakity and the
Consumer experience

* Pricing we look to take prce increases
where appropriate

Gross margin increased by 150 bps to 59 4%
in 2013 due to a combination of the abave
factors and positive mix ansing from the
discontinuation of our private label business
during 2012

Gross Margin Expansion to Fund More
Investment 1n our Brands

Qur gross margn growth funds investment
behind our brands, which we have defined as
BE! (Brand Equity Investment) BEI encompasses
TV and print, social and digstal media and
consumer and meadical marketing It s a key
metnic for us and represents a combination of
category and penetration buillding actwities, as
well as consumer and doctor awareness and
education programmes

In 2013 BEl was 13 0% an increase of

30 bps over the prior year, and helped drive
total net revenue growth of 7% {constant,
ex RB Pharmaceuticals) a strong
outperformance versus market growth
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Brand Equuty Investment
% of net revenue {(ex RB Pharmaceuticals)
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QOur gross margin growth also funds our
investment in the capabilities we need in
order 1o continuously bring new nnovation
to our consumers We have strengthened our
consumer health capabilities by increasing our
investment behind clinical, medical regulatory
and comphance We have also increased
Investment in our emerging market areas of
RUMEA and LAPAC as we implement our
strategy of further resource atlocation to
these markets

We have invested more than £200m
incrementally over the past two years as we
priontise the long-term, sustainable growth of
our brands

Aiming for Moderate Operating Margin
Expansion over the Medium-term

The combination of our focus on gross margin
expansion, and relentiess cost containment
tunds bath mvestment in our business and
moderate operating margin expansion over the
medium-term

In 2013 we increased adjusted margins by
20 bps {ex RB Pharmaceuticals} ahead of our
wngoing target

Non-core Businesses

RB Pharmaceuticals

RB Pharmaceuticals is a pioneer in the field of
innavauve prescription treatments for chronic
diseases of addiction It 1s responsible for the
development of the Group’s Subutex and
Suboxone prescription drug business Both
products are based on buprenorphine for
treatment of opiate dependence tn the US,
Suboxone lost the exclusivity afforded by its
orphan dryg status on 8 October 2009

©On 31 August 2010 the Group announced
that it had recerved approval from the US Focd
and Drug Admurnisiration for ts application to
manufacture and market Suboxone sublingual
Fifm Suboxone sublingual Film has been
developed through an exclusive agreement
with MonoSol Rx, utilising its proprietary
PharmFlm® technology, to deliver Suboxone
in a fast-dissalving subhingual Fim

In October 2013 we announced our decision

10 undertake a strategic review of this business
This review 1s underway and we will update our
Shareholders during the course of 2014

Food

The Group owns a largely North Amencan food
business, the principal brands of which are the
Powerbrand French’s Mustard (the No 1
mustard) and Frank’s Red Hot Sauce (the No 1
hot sauce and wing sauce in North America)

Mergers and Acquisitions (M&A)

We believe opportunities will continue to

arise to augment qur organic growth via M&A
over ime The consurner health segment 1s a
fragmented market and RB 1s well positioned to
take advantage of consolidation opportumties
which may arse We require a number of
critena to be fulfilled before considering

any Inorganic opportunities They must be
strategically compelling able to perform better
under the ownership of RB, fit within a part of
the business where we have the managenal
depth to integrate them quickly and effectively,
and must be value accretive

Generating Shareholder Value

A Faster Growing P&L and Market
Qutperformance

Our core business, under the four pillars of our
strategy, 15 asmed at posiuoning RB in faster
growing markets and faster growing and
hugher margin categories With relentless focus
on gross margin and investng virtuously we
seek to generate Shareholder value through
sustamnable top hne growth and moderate
margin expanston in the medium-term

Strong Focus on Net Working Capital and
Cash Conversion

We continue to target operational management
on net working capital and in 2013 achieved
110% cash conversion of our net ncome By
emphasising working capital management,

we are able to convert a hugh proportion of
operating profit into cash Further, our tight
control over net capital expenditure (purchases
less disposals of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets) means that we are able
to convert a lugh proportion of our net cash
generated from operating activities 1o free
cash flow (1 @ net cash generated from
operating actwvities less net capital expenditure}

Sustainable Returns to Shareholders

Our dividend payout ratio has been mantained
at 50% of adjusted net income and this year’s
drvidend of 137p represents a 2% increase
over the prior year We have also undertaken

a modest share buy back programme of
around £280m which broadly equals the

level of new share ssuance for employee
Incentive programmes

OUR RESOURCES

The prinaipal resource 15 management and
employees The other major resources required
by the business are an adeguate supply of the
raw and packaging matenals consumed by the
Group’s products and the necessary funds for
developing new products and renvestment in
advertising and promoting those brands

Talented, Global Employees

Qur strategy is delivered by highly talented
and driven people from around the world
Drverse backgrounds and experiences foster a
culture of entrepreneunsm and achievernent

e B . ..

Gaviscon - it's About
the Science

Medical journals are endorsing the
science betund Gaviscon, proving
how 1t resolves the pan of the aad
pocket caused after eating

food RB health professionals

have been spreading the

news at leading gastro-

intestinal symposia from

Shanghai to Berlin

© s % ssserssmses o+ s vEeerssss Pescesn .

Our culture 1s underpinned by a ighly
geared performance-dniven remuneration
structure apphed universally to our Top400
global leaders

A robust supply of talented staff for the

Group 15 attnibutable to the Group's
commitment to provide challenging, glabal
careers for confident hugh achievers, supported
by a lughly leveraged performance-contingent
compensation policy Our executive leadership
team has extensive experience in the FMCG
and health care sectors The members of our
Executive Commuttee have been wath us for

an average of 12 years

The Group beheves its ability to attract and
retain the excellent management needed
rekies on continuing to offer diverse glabal
expenences coupled with performance-driven
rernuneration The Group trains and develops
its middle and senior management pipeline
through formai training programmes focusing
on three areas - leadership skills functional
skills and general skills — and through a
deliberate pohcy of traiming on the job

The Group has a number of format traiming
modules for Top400

Durning 2013, the Group ran over 46 courses
across these modules providing approximately
450 traimngs of the Top400 Management 15
international and s traned through rotation
in international postings both in countries and
n the Group's central functions Succession
planning 15 a cntical management discipline
and 15 reviewed annually (at least) by the

full Board and quarterly (at least) by the
Executive Committee

The Group closely monitors and tracks 1S
Top400 This 1s the core management team of
the business and s a diverse group consisting
of over 55 nationalites Over 62% of the
Top400 15 working in a country that s not ther
onginal domicile, conssstent with the Groups
pohcy to develop a muttinational management
team Turnover withun this Top400 group in
2013 was 11%, of which 7% was involuntary,
which the Group considers excellent retention,
balanced with the need to refresh the team
with new talent 2013 saw 46 promotions,

63 moves, and 29 external recruits The Group
ended the year with a low level of vacancres
within the Topd00 of 11 or around 3% of the
measuied group
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The percentages of female members in the
Group s Director, senior manager and all
employee populations are 10% 14% and
41% respectively

The Group has designated the members of
its Topd0 population as RB' 'senior managers'
for the purposes of the gender spht disclosure
required by s414C of Companies Act 2006

The total number of employees to which the
sphit relates 1s 24,514 This figure 15 different
from the total employee numbers reported
as 1t excludes seasona! labour which varies
sigreficantly dunng the year and for which
gender sdentifiers are not recorded

There 15 a comprehensive set of policies
governing employment and employees to
ensure that the Group remains an attractive
employer The Group 1s commuitted to the
pnnapte of equal opportunity in employment,
no applicant or employee receives less
favourable treatment on the grounds of
nationality age, gender, relhigion or disability

it 15 essential to the continued improvement n
efficiency and productity that each emptloyee
understands the Group's strategies, pohcies and
procedures Open and regular commurication
with employees at all fevels 15 an essential

part of the managemeny process The Board
encourages employees to become Shareholders
and participate in the employee share
ownership schemes

The Group refies on its brands, brand names
and intellectual praperty The Group’s major
brand names are protected by nternationally
registered trademarks The Group also
maintamns patents or other protection for its
significant product formutations, designs and
processing methods The Group aggresswvely
monitors these protections and pursues any
apparent infringements

Our Supply Chain

The Group considers that its pnmary raw
matenals, such as bulk chemicals {including a
number of petrochemicals plastics, pulp, metal
cans etc} are generally in adequate global
supply The cost of these items fluctuates from
time to time but not at levels that seriously
impinge on the ability of the Group to supply
tts products or generate profit The Group is
profitable and cash generative The Group
beheves that its ability to reinvest in supporting

a4 4s saas PR

Durex & MTV
#someonelikeme

Durex can reach people and with MTV
it reached 900 million people across
36 countnies through the internet and
hive music with 1ts #someonelikeme
campaign to promote
great sex, safe from
transmussion of HIV

and other diseases

12 RB Annual Report 2013

and building 1ts brands I1s a sigmficant
competitive advantage

Supply constraints do exist in the Groups
supply chain from time to ume These normally
anse due to unexpected additional demand for
products or the time delay involved in stepping
up production of new items to the levels
required internationally The Group’s supply
chain 1s deliberately relatively well spread in
terms of geography and technology, such that
the reliance on any one faolty 1s reduced
However, there are a number of faclities that
reman ¢critical to the Group’s supply chain,
where major interruption to normal working
could involve disruption to supply The Group’s
suppliers are simutarly deliberately well spread
in terms of geography and supplied items but
there are nonetheless some risks to continuity
of supply ansing from some specialised
supphers both of raw matenals and of third
party manufactured items

QUR STRUCTURE

The Group structures its business through a
matrix of a centralised category development
global sales, supply and support functions
(hinance human resources and information
senvices), cornbimned with three area
organisaions ENA, LAPAC and RUMEA, plus
food and RB Pharmaceuticals The central
category development funcuion is responsible
tor Powerbrand strategies brand equity
progsammes and best practices and new
product development {(including research
and deveiopment (R&D) and consumer and
market research), for implementation by the
area organisations

Our R&D facihues are located at 28 different
sites {many of which are situated in or
alongside our production facilities} Our mamn
R&D facikties are located n Hull (England)
Montvale, New Jersey (US), Dongguan (China),
Salt Lake City (US), Ludwigshafen {Germany),
Gurgaon (India), Mira (taly) and Bangkok
(Thailand)

Technological change and product
improvement is a key determinant of our
success We behieve that our success in
introducing new and improved products comes
from our focus on developing a pipeline of
product tnnovation through consurmer-focused
approaches We maintain a large category
development organisation (including market
and consumer research, R&D, and marketing
and sales best practice} to fuel the innovation
pipeline and share category success factors
and learning We undertake R&D to support
the development and commerciahisation of
new and improved products i all of our
product categories and for increased
manufacturing efficiencies

The global supply funcuion 1s responsible for all
procurement {raw and packaging matenals and
services), production and logistics globally, and
15 directly respons:ble for the operation of the
Group’ 48 production facilities worldwide
Facihtes are located n Europe (15 facihnes) and
North America (sw), Asia (18), Latin Amenca
(five), and Africa Middle East {four} There are a
small number of facilities in hugher risk labour
and social environments

QUR INDUSTRY, MARKET AND
COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT

The health, hygiene and home care industry

15 generally characterised by steady growth

in demand, with some vanation due to
macro-economic factors Some emerging
markets exhibit more volatile demand in
reaction to macro-economic factors The
prnincipal drivers of market growth i all markets
are the rate of household formation, growth in
the level of disposable income and demand for
new products that offer improved performance
Or greater convenience

The industry  intensely competiive The
Group's competitors dhffer in various segments
of the industry The Group competes with
numerous, well-established local regional,
national and :nternational compames, some
of which are very large and have significant
resources with which to establish and defend
their products market shares and brands
Principal multinational competitors include
pharmaceutical companies such as Bayer
GlaxaSmithKling, Johnson & Johnson and
Novartis and FMCG companies tike Clorox,
Colgate-Paimolive, Henkel, Procter & Gamble
SC Johnson and Unilever There are also a
number of strong local industry companies

RB competes m strongly branded segments
by focusing on its feading positions in higher
growth categornes It is typically the market
leader or a close follower, a position obtained
through its ability to introduce new products
{whether improved or newly developed),
supported by a nising and substantizat level of
marketing and media investment A lot of
competition 1n the industry focuses on
competing clarms for product performance
For this reason, fallure 1o mtroduce new
products and gain acceptance may significantly
impact the Groups operating results The
Group must also defend itself against
challenges to its leadership positions
markets this requires significant marketing
expenditure and promeotional activity

The Group's products also compete with private
label products sold by major retall companes
The Group does this by focusing on delivening
innovative new products with real consumer
benefits which private labet typically does

not do Consistent marketing investment
communicates the benefits of the Groups
brands directly 1o consumers

Technologicat change and product
improvement can be a key determinant of the
Group's success RB's success in introduaing
new and improved products stems from its
heavy focus on developing a pipeline of
product nnovation The Group mamiams a
large category development orgamisation
(ncluding market and consumer research, R&D
and regulatory) to fuel the mnovation pipeline
and share category success factors and
learnings The Group invested £199m in R&D in
2013 (2012 £171m} R&D 55 a key contributor
to wnnovative new products, but the Group
does not believe that R&D spend 1s the
dominant performance indicator for innovation
generation and success Understanding of, and
insights into, consumer behaviour and needs,




Strategic Report Operational Detail

‘;:v

WLALTH » HYQIENE » HORE

ability to priontise and focus effort, and speed
of implementation and reaction are also critcal

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS AND
REGULATORY POSITION

The health and hygiene industnes are heavily
regulated by, inter alia, the European Union
(EU) and indwiduai country governments
around the world The home care industry has
regulation, but to a lesser extent Ingredients,
manufactunng standards, labour standards
product safety marketing and advertising
claims are afl subject to detaited and
developing regulation

The Group has a comprehensive set of policies
and procedures destgned to govern its business
methods and practices and protect its
reputation These cover inter alia, &
comprehensive Code of Conduct, an
Environment Policy, a Global Manufactuning
Standard, a Product Safety Policy including
comphance with regulatory and product
quality requirements Internal controls on
environmental, social and governance {ESG)
matters and reputational nisk are further
outhned in pages 15 to 19 of this Report

We take compliance extremely seriously and
have committed resource and management
attention to these matters Additionally the
Group maintains and continues to Improve

a robust comphance training programme,
ensuring that all semor managers sign an
annual disclosure and executive management
sign addwonally a reporting document
certifying comphance with the Group's Code
of Conduct

OUR PERFORMANCE IN 2013

The results include the busmess of Schiff from
14 December 2012, Guilong from 8 January
2013, and 8MS from & May 2013, the dates of
acquisttion/start of the collaboration Where
appropnate, the term “like-for-hke describes
the performance of the business on a
comparable basis, excluding the impact of
acquisitions, disposals, discontinued operations
and translational foreign exchange movements
Where appropriate, the term base business”
includes ENA, LAPAC RUMEA and Food Base
business excludes RB Pharmaceuticals Where
appropnate the term “core includes health,
hygiene, home and portfolio brands and
excludes RB Pharmaceuticals and Food Where
appropnate, the term "adjusted” excludes the
impact of exceptional stems

Tota! net revenue was £10,043m, an ncrease
of +7% at constant exchange rates excluding
RB Pharmaceuticals or +5% like-for-hke (ex
RB Pharmaceuticals) Our hke-for-like growth
was health and hygrene led as we continue

to focus on and nvest disproportionately in
these categones delivering science-based
tnnovations, brand extensions and geographic
rofl cuts Mucinex Durex, Dettol and tysol
performed particularly well in 2013 From a
geographuc perspective over two-thirds of the
contribution to hke-for-like growth came from
our emerging market areas of LAPAC and
RUMEA OQur developed market area of ENA
delered like-for-like growth of +3%, a very
strong performance in challenging market
conditions The impact of net M&A added +2%

to total growth with our acquisrtions of Schiff
and Guilong and our collaboration with BMS
n Latin Amenca {LATAM) all perforrming
strongly, and ahead of ingoing expecations
RB Pharmaceuticals net revenue dechned by
B% {at constant rates) due to the loss of our
hugher margin tablet sales in the US following
our voluntary withdrawal of Suboxone tablets
However market share of Suboxone Filrm in the
US was sustatned at around 68% despiie the
launch of genenc tablets in March

Gross margin increased by +150 bps to0 59 4%
This was due to a combinaton of improved
mux, modest price Increases, €ost optimisation
programmes ('Project Fuel ) and the non-
recurrnng impact of our withdrawal from the
private label business These improvements
were not as strong in the second half, which
also saw adverse currency movements and a
stronger comparatve

We raised invesiment behind our brands (as
defined by our BEl metric} by +30 bps to

13 0% of net revenue (ex RB Pharmaceuticals),
equating to an incremental £100m investment
over the prior year {at constant rates) The
increase n brand equity investment 1s focused
on Powerbrands, Powermarkets and new
inthiatrves, as well as our newly acquired brands

We also increased investment behind
capabilities important to our future growth - in
particular in the areas of consumer health and
emerging markets

Operating profit as reported was £2 345m

-4% versus 2012 {-4% constant) reflecting the
rmpact of an excepticnal pre-tax charge of
£271m (2012 £135m) Detals of the
exceptional charge are set out In note 3 and
relate to a provision for historic regulatory
ssues, prnapally competition law restructusing
costs in relation to the new organisation, and
acqusition and integration costs On an
adjusted basis, operating profit was ahead
+2% (+1% constant) to £2,616m The adjusted
operating margin decreased by -30 bps to

26 0% Excluding RB Pharmaceuticals, the
adjusted operating margin increased by

+20 bps to 23 6%

Net finance expense was £31m (2012 £34m)
The tax rate was 25% after deducting

the exceptional charge, and 24% for
adjusted profit

Net income as reported was £1 739m a
decrease of -5% (-5% constant) versus 2012
On an adjusted basis, net income rose +2%
{+2% constant} Diluted earnings per share of
238 5p was -4% lower oo a reported basis, on
an adjusted basis, the growth was +2%

10 269 8p

Segmental Performance At Constant
Exchange Rates

The three geographical areas are responsible
for Iocal execution of marketing and sales
programmes

ENA Total net revenue was £5 074m, with
ke-for-like growth of +3% and total growth
of +4% 2013 was a strong year for ENA with
growth returming to most parts of Europe, with
the exception of Southern Europe All of our
consumer health Powerbrands delivered strong

performances Scholi Strepsils and Nurofen in
particular performed well, behind innovations
such as the new Scholl Express Peds for hard
skin and Nurofen for Children

North Amenca delivered another strong
performance, driven by Muctnex brand
extenstons, improved In-store execution

and targeted digital and tradiional media
campagns Lysol also produced an excellent
result behind innovations such as ‘Power and
Free’ and our recently launched "Healthing
campaign 1o strengthen our core equity of
germ protection We successfully integrated
Schuff in the US Over achievement of synergies
allowed for increased reinvestment behind

the brands to dnve penetration distribution,
improved in-store actities and shelf presence
The combination of Europe and North America
under one organsation 1s bringing greater
speed and scale to our innovations such as the
launch of MegaRed In Europe just one year
after acquisition

Adjusted operating profit was £1,321m an
increase of +12% at constant The adjusted
operaung margm increased +160 bps

LAPAC 2013 total net revenue increased to
£2 511m, with hke-for-ike growth of +10%
China expenienced strong growth as we
executed our ‘power city’ roll out plans, and
increased distribution On a category bass
Durex had a strong performance driven by
innovation and targeted digrial and social
media campaigns In hygiene Dettol grew
strongly behind nnovations in anti-hactenal
soaps, shower gels and antiseptics and our
new Dettol kitchen gef, underpinned by our
"Healthing’ campaign for new mums and kids
in home, Vanish had a strong year as we
refocused on winmng penetration through
our successful online *Varish Tip Exchange'’
programme N a number of countnes

Adjusted operating profit increased +12%
to £495m Adjusted operating margin was
-30 bps lower at 19 7% The margin was
reduced due to the amortisation of the BMS
collaboration agreement which commenced
in May 2013

RUMEA 2013 net revenue was £1,356m, with
Ike-for-like growth of +5% Growth has been
impacted by socio-economic issues in parts of
the area We are also expenencing operational
issues in Turkey and South Africa A number of
corrective actions have been put in place and
are showing modest early results

However, a further slowing of market
conditions 1n Russia impacted growth in Q4
which was +3% on a like-for-like basis In
spite of the slowing environment Nurofen
expenenced strong growth in Q4 as we have
now lapped the upscheduling in Russia In
hygiene, Veet Dettol and Mortein had a good
quarter to complete a year of strong growth

Adjusted operating profit dechned by -2% to
£284m, a -120 bps dechine in the adjusted
operating margin to 20 3% Gross margin
enhancement from improved mx and pricng
was more than offset by increased investment
n BE! and capabilities to support future growth,
adverse transactional FX and employee-related
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costs from management changes as we address
the operational 1ssues

The volatility in several of RUMEA's markets

15 likely to rematn in the near term However
we remain confident that the organisational
and operational changes being put in place,
together with our focus and strategy to drive
the penetration of our brands should improve
performance n the future

The Group's two non-core businesses, Food
and RB Pharmaceuticals, performed as follows

Food 2013 net revenue was £325m a flat
performance versus the prior year and also
in the fourth quarter Macro conditions
surrounding the food category remain
unchanged with weaker markets and
lower nflation

RB Pharmaceuticals 2013 net revenue was
£777m, a decrease of 8% Our volume market
share for Film in the US exited the year at
68%, broadly maintained since the entry of
genenc tablets The underlying volume growth
in prescnptions i the US continues to be low
double digit growth This growth 1s offset by
the loss of our higher margin tablet sales in
the US following our voluntary withdrawal of
Suboxone tablets in March and the entry of
generic tablets now competing with our Film
Our non-US business was impacted by
government imposed price reductions in a
number of European markets

Operating profit decreased -21% to £428m
The operating margin was down -890 bps to
55 1% 10 line with earlier guidance The main
drivers of the margin decline are negative
leverage from the revenue dechne negative mix
of the lower margin albeit more sustainable
Film, and increased R&D investment in our
chinical pipeline We expect this in¢rease in R&D
investment to continue into 2014 and beyond
as we continue to buitd a strong, sustamable
growth business

There have been no further matenal
developments in the three Hatch-Waxrnan
challenges to the Film patents in US We expect
the litigation to follow the typical timelines

for Hatch-Waxman litigation, and believe the
formulation and process patent protection to
be strong

RB Pharmaceuticals 1s a strong, sustamable
business with good long-term prospects 1t

has a market-leading, physician and patient
preferred product in the US, with strong patent
protection up until 2030 The business outside
of the US has much potential in what are

2013 Results excluding RB Pharmaceuticals

currently under-treated markets We also have
a strong pipeline, as we look to deliver to
patients the next generation products for
opiowd addiction These longer-term prospects
will be tempered with short-term volatiity We
continue to expect erosion of Film share with
some more price sensitive patients and payors
switching to cheaper alternatives We are
pleased to announce that we have recently
appomied a new Chairman Howard Pien, who
wili play an important part in the next stage of
RB Pharmaceuticals’ evolution

The strategrc review we announced in October
of last year 15 underway We will provide further
information on this review dunng the course

of 2014

CATEGORY PERFORMANCE

Health

Net revenue increased to £2,633m with
like-for-like growth of +10% It was a very
strong year for our consumer health category
which had an excellent start Innovation-led
growth was driven by Mucinex with its further
expansion beyond cough and congestion into
sinus and cold & flu, and aided by a long and
strong season during the first half These
successes provide a firm base on which to
launch a further category extension within the
Mucinex franchise with the roll out of Mucinex
Allergy — 24-hour relief from indoor and
outdoor allergies, in 2014

Our consumer health acquisitions are
performing strongly In respect of Schff in the
US the over achievement of synergies allowed
for increased reinvestment behind the brands,
improved shelf presence and distribution In
China our Manyanshuning sore throat brand,
which came with the Guidong acquisition,

has had a strong year and we are seeing
encouraging results from our colfaboration
agreement with BMS i LATAM

Hygiene

Net revenue increased 10 £3 835m with
like-for-ike growth of +7% The performance
was driven by strong growth i the Dettolysol
franchise across all three of our areas Our
‘Healthing’ camipaign combined with the
continued expansion and success of the Power
& free portfolio drove growth across ENA In
emerging market areas we continue to focus
on drving brand equity bullding initsatives such
as our new mums hospital visit, and schools
programmes Our successful category extension
of Dettol Kitchen Gel has driven strong growth
in Inda for both Q4 and the full year Hand
wash was strong 1n both developed and

in hight of the announcement of genernc competition to Suboxone in the US, the Group provides
the following information relating to the performance of the business i 2013 excluding

RB Pharmaceutcals

RB ex RB
Pharmaceuticals Pharmaceutxals Jotal RB
£m £m % fm %
Net revenue 9,266 +5%* 777 -8%* 10,043 +4%"
Adjusted operating profit 2,188 +7%** 428 21%* 2616 +1%*
Adjusted aperating margin +236% 55 1% +26 0%

* hke-for-like at constant exchange rates *™ at constant exchange rates
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emerging market areas driven by the continued
success of Lysol/Dettol hand wash foam in the
US Germany Korea and China

Harpic continued its strong momentum behind
penetration programmes and the launch of our
All-in-1 line extension 1n India

Home

Net revenue increased to £1,974m, a bke-for-
ke growth rate of +2% Vanish had a very
strong final quarter as we refocused the
strategy on penetration, underpinned by the
launch of our successful online ‘Vanish Tip
Exchange’ campargn in Europe and a number
of our emerging market countries

Portfolio

Net revenue decreased to £499m, with a
fike-for-like dechne of -12% This was dug
prncipally to actions taken in the European
footwear business and continued weakness
in laundry detergents and {abric softeners in
Southern Europe

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Basis of Preparation The financial
information 15 prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as endorsed by the EU and FRSs as issued
by the International Accounting Standards
Board, wath apphicable parts of the 2006
Cornpanies Act and with the accounting
pohcies set out in note 1 on pages 54 to 57

Constant Exchange Movements in exchange
rates relative to Sterling affect actual results as
reported The constant exchange rate basts
adjusts the comparative to exclude such
movements, to show the underlying growth

of the Group

MNet Revenue Net revenue was £10 043m
{2012 £9,567m}) an increase of +5%

Net Finance Expense Net finance expense
was £31m (2012 £34m)

Tax The effective tax rate was 25% {2012
24%) This increase was primarily due o the
non-deductatulity of the exceptional items
The adjusted tax rate was 24%

Net Working Capital Net working capital
(mventores, trade and other recevables and
trade and other payables) was minus £863m
{2012 minus £700m)

Cash Flow Cash generated from operations
was £2,756m (2012 £2,423m) and net cash
generated from operating activities was
£2121m(2012 £1,888m) Net interest paid
was £24m (2012 £7m) and tax payments were
£611m (2012 £528m} Capital expenditure
was higher than the prior year at £225m {2012
£177m) Acquisition of businesses of £418m
related to the acqusition of Guilong and
collaboration agreement with BMS

Net Debt At the end of the year net debt
was £2,096m (2012 £2,426m) This reflected
strong free cash flow generation, offset by the
payment of two dividends totafling £992m
and the acquisiion of businesses for £418m
The Group regularly reviews 1ts bankmg
arrangements and currently has adequate
facirties avadable to it The Group 1ssued two
bonds in September 2013



Strategic Report Cperational Detat

‘;:v

ANNUAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPls)

The Board and the Executive Committee have identified a number of KPIs that are most relevant to the Group and are used to measure performance

KP1 2013 012 Comments
Net revenue growth excl RB Pharmaceuticals +5% +5% Measures the increase in sales of the Group
% like-for-lke growth of net revenue (excl RB Pharmaceuticals)
at constant exchange rates
Powerbrands 1% 70% Measures the growth and importance of the
% of total net revenue from 19 Powerbrands Group’s flagshp brands
Gross margin % 59 4% 57 9% Measures the resources available for reinvestment
Gross profit as % of total net revenue or profit growth
Brand Equity Investment {BEl} 130% 12 7% Measures the rate of reinvestment in the
BE1 as % of total net revenue exc! RB Pharmaceuticals Group's brands (excl RB Pharmaceuticals)
Operating margin % *excl RB Pharmaceuticals 23 6% 23 4% Measures the profitability of the Group
(excl RB Pharmaceuticals)
Adjusted net income* +2% +6% Measures the overall profitability of the Group
Earrungs per share {fully diluted)* 269 8p 263 3p’ Measures the increase in profit per share of the Group
% change in earnings per share (fully diluted)* +2% +7%
Net cash flow from operations £1,930m £1,735m Measures how the Group converts its profits into cash
+11% +10%
Net working capital -£863m -E£700m Measures the ability of the Group to finance
(defined as inventories, trade and other recevables and -8 6% -7 3% its expansion and release cash from working capital
trade and other payables) as % of total net revenue
Management turnover 4% 8% % of Top400 managerment that have left the Group

* Adjusted to exclude the impact of exceptional items

HEALTH » MYTLIERE » HONE

! Restated Refer to note 1 for further details

Exceptional items A total pre-tax exceptional
charge of £27 1m has been incurred during the
year i respect of the following

« £225m charge for hustonc regulatory issues,
principatly competition law, and

o f4Bm restructunng costs in relation to
the new organisation, acquisition and
Integration Costs

These costs have previously been disclosed by
the Company n 2012 an exceptional pre-tax
charge of £135m was incurred

Balance Sheet. At the end of 2013 the Group
had total equity of £6,336m (2012 £5,922m),
an increase of +7% Net debt was £2 096m
(2012 £2,426m)} and total capital ernployed in
the business was £8 432m (2012 £8,348m)

Thss finances non-current assets of £12,243m
(2012 £12,009m) of which £761m {2012
£736m) 1s property, plant and equipment, the
remamnder being goodwill other intangible
assets, deferred tax available for sale financial
assets, retirement benefit surplus and other
recevables The Group has net working capital
of minus £863m (2012 munus £700my), current
provisions of £215m {2012 £104m) and
long-term habilities other than borrowings

of £2,554m (2012 £2 678m}

The Group's financial ratios remain strong
Return on Shareholders’ funds (net income
dvided by total Shareholders funds) was

27 5% on a reported basts and 31 1% on an
adjusted basis (2012 30 8% on a reported
basis and 32 7% on an adjusted basis)

Dividends The Board recommends a final
dmdend of 77p per share {2012 78p)to give a

full year dmdend of 137p per share (2012
134p) an overall mcrease of +2% The
dvidend, if approved by Shareholders at the
AGM on 7 May 2014, will be pad on 29 May
to Shareholders on the register at the record
date of 21 February The ex-dvidend date was
19 February and the last date for election for
the share alternative to the dmdend 1s 7 May
The final dvidend will be accrued once
approved by Shareholders

Contingent Liabiliies The Group 1s involved
in 3 number of investigations by government
authontes and has made prowvisions for such
investigations, where appropriate Whereit s
too early to determine the likely outcome of
these matters or to make a reliable estimate,
the Duectors have made no provision for such
potential habilities

The Group from time to time 1s involved in
discusstons in relation to ongoing tax matters
in a number of junsdictions around the world
Where appropriate the Directors make
provisions based on their assessment of

each case

QUR SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

& PERFORMANCE

in ine with the requirements of the 2606
Compames Act, a rationale has been developed
and a review undertaken to determine what
information to tndude n this Report as
necessary for an understanding of the
development, performance and position of the
business of the Group relating to enwironmental
matters Gncluding the impact of the Groups
business on the environment), 1ts employees
and social and community 1ssues — referred to
in this Report as sustamnability matters

The Board regularly considers and takes
account of the significance of sustainabibty
matters, their potenual nsks to the business of
the Group and the opportumities to enhance
value that may anise from an appropriate
response including risks relating to
environmental iImpacts employees, society
and commuriuties as well as reputational risks
The Board undertakes a formal review of
sustainabiity matters at least annually This
includes providing oversight to ensure that the
Group has tn place effective policies systems
and procedures for managing sustainability
matters and mitigating ssignificant sustainability
nisks The Board believes that it receves
adequate information and traming on
sustainability matters and their potential fisks
and opportunities to the business of the Group
Additionally, the Augdit Committee regularly
reviews the arrangements for, and effectiveness
of, nsk management and internal audit
including the full range of risks facing the
Group such as risks refating to sustainability
matters, reputational nsks and risks refating

to employees

The CEOQ has speafic responsibility for
sustainabiity As part of established
management processes, which nclude
performance management systems and
appropriate remuneration incentives, senior
management reports directly to the CEQ on
sustainability matters on a regular basis On the
Executive Commuttee (EC), the EVP Category
Development has operational accountabriity
for the implementation of sustanability {bar
charitable gming), 1n partnership with the EVP
Supply, and supported by the rest of the EC
within their respective areas and functions
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In the category development organisation

the Category Group Director ~ Sustainability,
Sourang & Consumer SCiences manages the
sustainability programme on a day-to-day basis
Our Senior Vice President (SVP) of Corporate
Communication and Affairs is responsible for
the Group's strategic chantable gving The
R&D function includes the Global Regulatory
Affairs (GRA) group, which 1s responsible for
ensuring that our products meet regulatory
reguirements and are safe for their intended
use Qur $VP Human Resources (HR} and

the global HR function manage the Group’s
human resources, employee remuneration and
benefits, employment practices crganisational
development, training and elements of health
and safety (e g stress management)

Key areas of sustainability internal control

and performance including sustamability
disclosures are independently reviewed

and venfied by both internal and external
organisations including Internal Audit and
ther findings regularfy reparted to semor
management the CEOQ, the Audit Committee
and the Board The Board has identifred and
assessed the range of sustainability and
assoCiated reputational nsks and concluded
that there are Imited matenai nisks to the
Group’s long and short-term value arising from
sustainability matters, other than potential nisks
comman to similarty sized businesses operating
in its industry sectors and with similarly
well-known brands

The Group has a full set of policies,
programmes and control arrangements,
building on its central Code of Conduct, that
address the fuil range of sustainability matters
and reputational nsks The Code itself 1s the
subyect of an annual trairung and awareness
programme and is covered by an annual review
and certification process carned out by Internal
Audit and the Legal Department The Code and
other Group policies relating to sustainability
can be found at www rb com

Sustainability Focus Areas

The Group has identifted the key sustainability
issues for the business, following
Accountability’s 5-Part Matenality Test and the
GRI Technical Protacol on Applying the Report
Content Pninciples This process includes an
assessment of the Groups sigrificant aspects,

. .. 0 4 . .

Mucinex - When the
Cough Starts

Amenicans search online when their
coughs and colds start RB partnered with
a US speaalist counting who was gomng
online where, so when

an area of the US was @
starting to catch a cold, A
Mucanex was advertising

night there to tell them

how 1t could help

. B sa s . s % se ae . .
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potential sustainability risks the issues of
greatest concern for the Group’s stakeholders,
the ssues that society has identified as
important through regulation and international
standards and those issues covered by our
existing policies and commitments

Key sustainabihty 1ssues for
the business
= Sustainable product innovation

¢ Hygiene and illness-prevention
» Human rnights

» Consumer behaviour change

Responsible supply chain
¢ Product stewardship

Natural raw maternal sourang

« Environmental impact reduction
- water energy, greenhouse gas
emissions (GHG), waste

Pollutian {contaminated land}

Health and safety

Strategic Sustainability Priorities

The aspects the Group has identified are
common to many fast moving consumer
goods FMCG) companies with well-known
brands and are essentially determined by the
Groups sectors and the products the Group
manufactures and selis The Group’s strategic
pricnties therefore reman

—_

To achieve continual iImprovement 1n our
overall sustainability performance, focusing
on those 1ssues where we ¢an make a
significant difference including global health
and hygeene sustanable product snnovation,
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and water
inpact, and

2 To manage our business in a socially and
ethically responsible manner

The Group’s approach to sustanability, in
support of the Group's vision, purpose and
business strategy, includes four key goals
for 2020

+ One-third reduction in carbon footprint and
water impact per dose of product

*

One-third of net revenue from more
sustamnable products

Help over 200 million pecple to mprove ther
health and hygiene

Partner wath Save the Children to deliver a
vision of stopping diarrhoea from being the
world's second biggest cause of death of
chiidren under five

These high level goals are supported by specific
targets and functional programmes, grouped
under three areas better design, better
production and healthier communities The
Group focuses on a number of speafic topics
1o delver against the strategic prionitres These
include, but are not hmited to

Supply Chain Responsibslity and

Human Rights

Most product, component and raw matenal
supply chains present a number of potential
reputational risks relating to |abour standards,
health, safety and environmental standards,
raw matenal sourcing, and the social, ethical
and environmental performance of third party
manufacturers and other suppliers The Group's
Global Manufacturing Standard for responsible
production (GMS) mandates minimum
requirements regarding employment
arrangements, labour standards and health,
safety and environmental management 1n
hne with international guidehnes, for the
Group's own manufactuning sites, third party
manufacturers and supphers Managerment
processes and controls in place include

Group, area and regional monrtoring and
assessment of comphance with the GMS

{and other) requirements

Climate Change

The effects of climate change could disrupt the
Group's supply chain by affecting the Group's
ablity to source raw matenals manufacture
products and distribute products Due to the
Group's industry sectors and product categones
the GHG emissions onginating from energy use
at its direct operations are of medium-to-low
impact in compansen to those of other similarly
sized compantes, as assessed for example in
recent reports of the independent Carbon
Disclosure Project (CDP), www cdproject net

Under the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic and
Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013, quoted
companies are required to repert their annual
carbon emissions For the period 1 Januasy
2013 to 31 December 2013 the Group's
emissions n tonnes of carbon dioxide
equwvalents (tCO,e) from

» Combustion of fuel and operation of faclities
(Scope 1) were 80,806 1CQOe*

» Electricity, heat, steam and cooling purchased
for own use (Scope 2) were 206 956 tCO,e*

» Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions were
287,762 (O™

The Groups intensity measurement for the
same period was 0 0398 1CO,e* per unit of
production {tCO,e per 1000 CU)

* Data assured by Ernst & Young

Methodology for Calculatimg the Annual
Carbon Emissions

We have reported on all of the emusston sources
required under the Compantes Act 2006
{Strategic and Directors’ Report) Regulations
2013 We report all GHG emissions from
operations (including global manufactuning,
warehouse, R&D) covered by the consolidated
financial statements for which we have
operational control wath the exception of
offices’ emissions ang MEDCOM fleet
emissions We will endeavour to include

office and MEDCOM fleet emussions in 2014
reporting in the case of acquisiions of
businesses, the emussions are included m

the first fulf calendar year of RB ownership
C0,e emissions were calculated using
internattonally recognised methodologies from
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the WRI'WBC SD Greenhouse Gas Protocal and
international Energy Authority {IEA)

The Group has taken a leadership position
with regard to s products’ total carbon
foctprint, by seeking to understand, measure
and reduce the GHG emissions generated by
all stages in the product lifecycle for its global
product portfolio, and including amongst other
things the raw and packaging matenals
provided by its suppliers, the Group's own
direct manufactuning and other operations,
transportation of both raw matenals and
finished products, the retall sale of its
products, consumers use of s products, and
the disposal/recycling of those products and
their packaging

RB's Globhal Ingredient Guidelines {GIG}

RB has been monitoring and reviewing
ingredrents for the past 2 years and has been
carrying out a range of ingredients removal and
restrictron programmes cuthned in our GIG
Qur objective 1s to conttnuaily improve the
enviranmental, safety and sustainable profile of
our products, by systematically removing
specific ingredients from product formulae and
packaging / device component specifications

Our GIG combines regulatory, sustainability and
safety requiremnents for genernc ingredient
groupings, plus specthic directions on the use
{or the prohstution of use) of specific raw
materials / ingredieats to assist formulators and
other Company employees in the development
and marketing of products that meet these
commtments

Health and Safety Management

Acadents caused through a faifure of the
Groups satety management systems coukd
potentially lead to loss of life for one or more
of the Group's employees The Group maintains
an external certification to OHSAS 18001 for
the Group’s management of heath and

safety 1ssues and a programme covenng
manufacturing sites, warehouses, distribution
centres and laboratories

Progress

The Group has a long-standing record of
measunng and managing sustamnability issues
Progress to date includes

* A 16% reduction iIn GHG emissions
from manufactuning & warshouse sites
(2000-2013)

Continuation of RB's tree planting initiative
for three more years (2012 — 2014} By the
end of 2013, 6 15 milion native trees had
been planted in Canada {including 351,000
in 2013) which continues to make RB's
manufactunng operations effectively carbon
neutral (2006-2014)

* A 52% reduction in manufactunng and
warehouse energy per umt of production
{2000-2013)

« A 43% reduction per unit of production of
wates use (2000-2013)

* A 9% reduction per unit of productton of
waste (2000-2013)

A 93% reduction in accident rates since
2001, including over 5% reduction in the

-

lost working day accident rate between 2012
and 2013, zero fatalitees in 2013

The Groups 2012 Sustainability Report,
published on 31 May 2013, describes progress
made i key sustainability topics For example

¢« At the end of 2012, the Group had achieved
a 25% reduction in ifecycle carbon
emissions per dose compared to the 2007
baseline This was 3 reduction of 4 6%
compared to 2011

Qur continued support of the nternational
chanty Save the Children, reaching 150,000
children in 2012

The 2013 Sustamnabihty Report will be published
in Aprit 2014 and will provide a full update on
progress towards meeting our new
sustainability goals and targets

The sustainability and corporate responsibility
section on the Group's website {www rb com/
sustainability} and its annual sustainability
reparts {available at www rb corn} provide
further information on its policies, systems and
pracedures for managing sustainabiity matters
and the risks and opportunities that may arise
from them Including the extent to which it
complies with those policies, systems and
procedures, Key Performance Indicaters (KPls),
and #s sustainability programmes targets and
progress The Group reports in line with the
Global Reporting Iniiative’s Sustainabihty
Reporting Guidehnes — Version 3 0 {GRI G3 -
www glabalreporting org) and a Content Index
and Application Level Tabie s provided in the
Sustainability Report Selected data in the
annual Sustainabiity Report 1s assured by
external auditors

for more information see our 2012
Sustainability Report, published on 31 May
2013, at www rb com/sustainability-repert2012
and also our 2013 Sustainability Report, to be
published in Apni 2014

PRINCIPAL RISKS

RB operates a major nisk assessment process

to ientify, assess, cantrol, mitigate and review
those risks It considers to be most significant
to the successful execution of our strategy The
most seruor managers of our bustness dedicate
time each year in a facilitated discussion with
the Group nisk team to consider the nisk
environment for therr particular functional or
geographic area of responsibility and how their
emerging or known nisks could impact on the
achievement of the Group's strategic objectves,
similar sessions are held with the Groups
external advisors The key content from these
sessions are then synthesised into the Group's
‘Top Ten' risks, wath each risk having an EC
owner, who 1s accountable for executing the
current control strategy and for compiling and
executing a plan of miigating actions to
properly manage the Group’s exposure to that
risk Progress 1s reviewed penodically and the
full output from the major nsk assessment
process 1s formally submuited annually by the
EC to the Board for 11s constderation and
endorsement Through the course of each year,
the EC and Board agendas address all of the
tap risks through specific deep dives to ensure
proper focus and progress with mitigation

The Group’s actvities expose it to a number
of nsks which, while actively managed as
described above may still adversely impact the
business and s financials The principal nsks
that, in the opinion of the Directors pose the
most significant threat to the delvery of the
Group's strategic objectves are as iollows,
with a more expansive explanation provided
on pages 93 to 100 of thus report The Group
recognises the risks described here and has
taken measures, addressed in this repart and
IN previous reports 10 mitigate these risks

We could be adversely affected by economic
conditions n, and pohtical developments
affecting the markets in which we operate

A vanety of factors may adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition
duning periods of economic uncertainty or
nstability, social or labour unrest or political
upheaval in the markets in which we operate
Such peneds may also lead to government
actions, such as imposition of marual faw,
trade restnctions, foreign ownership
restrichions capital, pnce or currency controls
nationalisation or expropnation of property
or other resources, or changes in legal and
regulatory requirernents and taxation regimes
We may also be unable to access credit markets
matenally adversely affecting our iquidity and
capntal resources or cost of capital

Qur Powerbrands collectively contribute a
sigmficant partion of our revenue, and any
materral adverse change to demand for existing
Powerbrands, or any future products we may
develop could have a material adverse effect
on our business

Consumer preferences, tastes and habrts

are constantly evolving Various factors,
some of which are beyond our control, may
have an adverse impact on demand for our
Powerbrands Similarly, we may fail to
respond to changing consumer wants of

fall to differentiate our Powerbrands from
competitors’ producis, hoth of which

could adversely impact consumer demand
for our products

Our business, financial condrtion, and results of
aperations, substantially depend on our ability
to improve our existing products and
successfully develop and launch new products
and technologres

If we are unable to successfully develop,
iaunch and market new products that obtain
consumer interest and acceplance we may be
unable to compete and maintain or grow cur
market share If we enter new categones or
gecgraphies in which we have imited
experience we may be exposed to unexpected
or greater risks

Substantal harm to our reputation, or the
reputation of one or more of our brands, may
rnatenally adversely affect our business
Various factors may adversely impact our
reputation, including product guality
NCONSIStENCIes or contammation resulting
recalls Reputational nsks may also anise from
our third parties” labour standards, health,
safety and environmental standards, raw
matenal souraing and ethical standards We
may also be the wicim of product tampering or
counterferting or grey imports Any litigation,
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disputes on tax matters and pay structures may
subject us to negative attention in the press
which can damage reputation

We could be matenally adversely affected by
the loss of revenue from the sales of Suboxone
and Subutex

Qur RB Pharmaceuticals business may face
price pressure or share loss from the ncreased
branded and generc competition that 1s
entening the market both in the US and in

the rest of world leading to 2 matenal
reduction in net revenue from this product
adversely affecting our overall revenues and
operating profit

We could be impacted by the fact we compete
i intensely competitive ndustries

We compete with well-established local,
regional, national and international companies
mcluding private label and genencs Some of
these may have more resources to establish
and promaote therr products If we are unable
to offer products that consumers choose over
our competitors” products, or maintain
successful relationships with our trade
customers, who determene access to shelf space
and promotions, or to effectely compete in
new channels, our business and results could
be matenally impacted

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange
rate risk

In FY 2013, 93% of our net revenue was
derved from markets outside the UK The
Sterling value of our revenues, profits and cash
flows from non-UK markets may be reduced or
our supply costs, as measured i Sterhng in
those markets, may increase Additionally,
competitars may benefit if they incur costs in
weaker currencies relative to Sterling We
currently hedge some of our currency exposures
using finanaial mstruments, but we may not

be effective

We are subyect to the risk that countries in
wihich we operate may 1mpose of increase
exchange controls or devalue therr currency
We operate in markets which have been known
to impose exchange controls Such controls
may restnct or make t impossthle to repatnate
earnings, borrow on the international markets
to fund operations In that countey or imit our
ability to import raw materials or firished
products Additionally we operate m markets
that are prone to currency devaluations which
can make our products more expensive in focal
currency terms

We face risks of interruptions of our supply
chamn and disruptions in our production
facilties, which could matenially adversely affect
our results of aperations

We may face risks to contimuity of supply ansing
from certain specialised suppliers, bath of raw
matenals and of third party manufactured tems
Significant disruptrons to our own, of our
supplers’ operations, may affect our abwlity to
source raw matenals and negatively impact our
costs Supplers may fail to fulfil therr contractual
obligations Replacing suppliers may require
them to be qualified under industry
governmental of our standards, which could
require investment and may take time

18 RB Annual Report 2013

Volatiity in the price of commodities energy
and transportation may impact our profitability
Increases 1n cost or decreases in avasdability
could adversely affect our profitability if we are
unable to pass on the higher costs as price
increases or achieve cost efficencies

We have grown and may continue to grow, in
part, through acquisitions, jomt ventures and
business athances, which involve various nisks
Acquisitions present a range of nsks and
uncertaintres, in addiion to the nsk of
management resource requirements to handle
the acquisition and the base business
simultaneously There could be increased debit
and mterest payments to fund larger acquisitrons,
which could place pressure on our crecht raung
We may fall in achieving an acquisition yet still
bear substantial out-of-pocket expenses We
may faik to achueve projected benefits of an
acquisttion, or we may take an unforeseen
future habivties with an acquisition

We may be unable to attract and retamn
quahified personnel, including key

senior management

The market for talent 1s intensely competitive
and we could face challenges in sourcing
qualifieg personnel If we are unable to achieve
our performance targets, our senior management
would not be entitled to thewr vaniable pay
which may operate as a disincentive for them
to cantinue ther empioyment with us

A disruption to, or fadure of, our information
technology systems and infrastructure, may
adversely affect our business

Fatlures or disruptions 1o our systems or the
systems of third parties on whom we rely,

due to any number of causes, particularly if
prolonged, or, 1f any falure or disruption were
to impact our backup or disaster recovery plans
could result in a loss of key data and/or affect
our gperations Sub-optimal implementations
of new systems could occur Cur computer
systems, software and networks may be
vulnerable to unauthonsed access, computer
viruses or other malicious code and other cyber
threats that could have a secunity impact All
of these could be costly to remedy and we may
be subject to litigation

Our busmess is subject to significant
governmental regulation

Regulation 15 imposed in respect of but

not mited to, ingredients, manufactunng
standards, labour standards, product safety
and qualty marketing, packaging, labelling
storage distnbution advertsing, imports and
exports, secial and environmental responsibility
and heslth and safety These regulations can
change and may become more stringent
Additionally we are required to obtain rnamitain
and update hcences for some products If we
are found to be non-comphant with apphicable
laws and regulatians, we could be subject to
cwvil remedies such as fines, myunctions or
product recalls and/or cririnal sanctions

The laws and regulations to which we

are subject may not be transparent, may

be difficult to interpret, and/or may be
enforced inconsistently

Emerging markets can pose heightened risks
with respect to laws and regulations The legal

systems i such countries may not be well-
established, reliabte or enforced and there may
be difficulties in obtaining legal redress,
particularly against the state or state-owned
enuities, creating higher operational costs and
risks to our business

We could be subject to mnvestigations and
potential enforcement action, which could have
a matenal adverse effect on our business

we could be subyect to regulatory investigations
or potential enforcement action that targets
ingredents, an industry, a set of business
practices or our specific operations Regulatory
authonties and consumer groups may request
or conduct reviews of the use of certain of our
ingredients or ingredient legislation may
change These could result in a need to change
our formulations which could be costly or may
not be possible

Historical or future violations of antitrust and
competition laws may have a materal adverse
1mpact on our business, financial condition and
results of operations

Failure to comply with applcable anutrust and
competition laws rules and regulations in any
junsdiction may result in it andfor cnminal
legal proceedings As part of the announcement
of our HY 2013 results, we reported a provision
of £225m, principally relating to competition
matters Our ufumate liability for such matters
could exceed this provision

We operate in a number of countries in which
bnbery and corruption pose significant risks,
and we may be exposed to habilities under
anti-bribery laws for any violations Any
wiolation of applicable money laundering laws
could also have a negative impact on us

We are subject to the UK Bribery Act 2010, the
US Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1677, as
amended, and similar laws worldwide Given
our extensive International operations we are
exposed to significant nsks, particularly with
respect to parties not subject 1o our control
such as agents and joint venture partners, and
also through businesses we acquire

Qur business is subject to product

habuhty claims

We may be subject to legal proceedings and
clams ansing out of our products, including
as a result of unanticipated side effects or
issues that become evident only after products
are widely introduced into the marketplace
or addionally claims that our products are
defecte, contain contaminarts, provide
inadequate warnings or mstructions, of
cause personal njury to persons or damage
1o property We may be required to pay
compensation for losses or injunies or have
to pay substantial damages, and related costs
or additionally be subject to the imposition of
avil and crimunal sanctions

Ltegal proceedings in respect of claims outside
the product iability area could also adversely
mpact our busness, resufts of operations and
financial condition

Cutside the product hiability area, we are
subject to legal praceedings and other claims
ansing out of the ordinary course of business
including, but not imited to  cfaims allegang
intellectual property nights infringement, breach
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of contract, environmenial laws and health and
safety laws and advertising claims Significant
claims, or a substantial number of small claims,
may be expensive to defend and may dwert
management time and resources away from
our operations

Labour disruptions may affect the results of
our operations

A substantial portion of our workforce s
untorised and we are party to collectve
bargaiming agreements covering approximately
one-third of our direct employees Our ability
to negotiate these agreements satisfactonly or
our relatienship with unions including labour
disputes or work stoppages could have an
adverse impact on our business

Changes in tax legislation and other
circumstances that affect tax calculations could
adversely affect our financial conditron and
results of operations

We are subject to tax laws and transfer pricing
reguiations n multiple jurnsdictions  including
those relating o the flow of funds between RB
and its subsidianes Qur effective tax rate in any
given financial year reflects a vanety of factors
that may not be present in succeeding financial
years, and may be affected by changes in the
tax laws of the yursdictions in which we
operate Tax authorities may challenge our
arrangements and If matenal challenges were
to be successful, our effective tax rate may
increase, and we may incur significant costs
Any of the foregoing could matenally and
adversely affect our business

We may be unable to secure and protect our
intellectual property nights

Even if obtained these nights may be
invahdated crcumvented or challenged in
future, and third parties may infringe on, or
misappropriate, our nghts We may fail to
discover any infrmgements of our inteltectual
property nghts or be unable to successfully
defend and enforce our rights

The loss of patent protection meffective
protection, or expiry of our patents may impact
our financial condition and resuits of operations
Patent protection varies in different countres,
and can be substantially weaker in emerging
markets We may face challenges in enforcing
or extending our current intellectual property
protections, or any protections we may obtain
in future, in these markets

We may face challenges to our inteliectual
property nghts, including allegations of
infnngement of others’ nghts

If we are unable to successfully defend against
these challenges we may face vanous
sanctions, including mjunctions monetary
sanctions, product recalls alterations to our
intellectua! property, products, and/or
packaging which could result in signrficant
expense and negative pubhaty

Our bustness may be adversely affected by our
funding requirements

QOur hquidity needs are driven by our ability to
generate cash from operations and the level of
borrowings the level of acquisitions, the level
of share repurchases and dwidends, disposals,
target ratings for our debt and options available
ta us in the equity and debt markets

At 31 December 2013, we had £4 350mn
undrawn commitments If we are not able to
access the commercaial paper market to the
extent that we require, we may need to
drawdown amounts under our commutted
bilateral credit facilities, which accrue interest at
floating rates Increases in such rates could result
in significantly higher interest expense for us

We are subject to risks relating to estimates and
assumptions that we are required to make, and
that may affect the reported amounts mn our
financial statements

The preparation of our financial statements
requires management to make some estimates
and assumptions based on management’s best
knowledge at the time Actual amounts may
however ulttmately differ from those estimates

We are subject to a range of comphance and
routine risks as part of everyday business

In order to manage the more numerous and
routine risks, the Group maintains a complete
and robust governance framework

We may face risks based on changes to

market prices

Due to the nature of its business the Group 15
exposed to commadity price nsk related to the
production or packaging of finished goods such
as oll-related, and a dwerse range of other raw
matenials This nisk 15 however, managed
primarily through medium-term contracts with
certain key supphers and 15 not viewed as being
a matenal nsk The Group 1S not exposed to
equity securities” price risk

We are subject to nsks refated to interest

rate changes

The Group has both interest-bearing and non
nterest-beartng assets and habilities The Group
MONMItOrS NS INterest expense rate exposure on a
reqular basis The Group manages 118 interest
rate exposure on its gross financial assets by
using fixed rate term deposits

Thera 15 potential for credit nisks with financral
institutions around the globe

The Group has no sigmificant concentrations of
credit risk Frnanoal institution counterparties
are subject to approval under the Group’s
counterparty nisk pokicy and such approval 15
imited to financial instituttons with a BBB
rating or above The Group uses BBB and
hugher rated counterparties to manage nsk and
uses BBB rated counterparties by exception
The amount of exposure to any indmdual
counterparty 1s subject to a imit defined within
the counterparty nsk policy, which 1s reassessed
annually by the Board

uquidity Risk

The Group has bilateral credit faciities wath
high-quality mternational banks All of these
facilities have similar or equivalent terms and
conditions and have a financial covenant
which s not expected to restrict the Group's
future operations The commuited borrowing
facliies, together with avarlable uncommitted
facilities and central cash and investments, are
considered sufficient to meet the Group's
projected cash requirements

Capital Management Risk
The Group’s objectives for managing capital are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as

a going concern and mantain an efficient
capital structure 1o optimise the cost of capial
The Group momtors net debt (totat borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents, short-term
avallable for sale financial assets and financing
derivatve financiat mstruments) and at the year
end the Group had net debt of £2 096m
{2012 £2,426m) The Group seeks to pay
down net debt using cash generated by the
business to mamtain an appropriate level

of financial flexibility Details of numencal
disclosures relating to the Group's financial risk
management are included i note 14 to the
financial statements on pages 70 to 73

A more detailed explanation of nisks 1s on
page 93

OUR PROSPECTS
We are 1argeting

* Net revenue growth of +4-5%™

« Flat to moderate operating margin
expansion™*

These targets exclude RB Pharmaceuticals

* At constant rates incuding the immatenat impact
of the BMS collaboratron

** Adjusted to exclude the impact of exceptional stems

Post Balance Sheet Event !
On 24 February 2014 part of a current wider

legal case was settled, which related to one of

the current provisions held at the balance sheet

date The remaining provisicns that were held

tn relation to this case at the balance sheet date

are stll considered to be appropriate

Cautionary Note Concerning Forward

Looking Statements

This document contains forward looking

statements, including statements with respect 1o

the financial condition, results of operations and

bustness of RB and certamn of the plans and

objectives of the Company with respect to these

items These forward looking siatements are made

pursuant to the 'Safe Harbor' provisions of the '
United States private secuniles ligation reform act

of 1995 In particular, all statements that express !
forecasts, expectations and projections with

respect 10 future matters, including trends in

results of operations margins, growth rates

overall market trends the inpact of interest or

exchange rates, the availabibty of financing to the

Company, anticpated cost savings or synergies

and the completion of strategic transactions are

forward looking statements These forward

looking statements are not guarantees of future

performance by therr nature, forward looking

statements involve known and unknown fisk and

uncertainly and other factors because they relate

to events and depend on arcumstances that will

occur in the future There are a number of factors,

discussed 1n this Annual Report that could cause

actual results and developments to differ matenally

from those expressed or implied by these forward |
looking statements, including many factors outside !
RB' control Past performance cannot be relied

upon as a gude to future performance Each

torward looking statement speaks as of the date

of the particular statement

By Order of the Board
Rakesh Kapoor, CEO

7 March 2014

* *
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Board of Directors and
Executive Committee

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Adnan Beltamy (British) + #

Appointed a Non-Executive Director in 1599
and Non-Executive Chairman in May 2003
He is a Drrector of The Gap Inc and a Director
and Chatrman of Wilkams-Sonoma Inc

He was formerly Chairman of The Body Shop
International plc and a director of vanious
companies including Guccr Group NV and
The Robert Mondawi Corporation

Richard Cousins (Bniish) # #

Appointed a Non-Executive Director in 2009
He 1s CEO of Compass Group PLC He was CEQ
of BPB plc, and Non-Executive Director of PRO
and HBQS Richard will not offer himself for
re-election at the AGM in May 2014 and will
retire from the Board after the AGM

Nrcandro Durante (Brazihan/talan) #
Appomnted a Non-Executive Director in
December 2013 He s CEQ of British Amenican
Tobacco p | ¢ (BAT) Nicandro has had an
extensive career at BAT and became Chief
Operating Officer in January 2008 and CEOC

In March 2031

Dr Peter Harf (German) #

Appomted a Non-Executive Director in 1999
and 1s the Deputy Chairman He was Charman
of the Remuneration Committee until June
2004 Peter is the CEQ of Parentes Holding SE
(formerly Joh A Benckiser) and a Director of
Coty In¢c He 15 also Chairman of Labelux and
the nen-profit DKMS foundation

Adnan Hennzh (Brtsh)

Appeinted CFO Designate in January 2013 and
Director and CFO in February 2013 He joined
tollowing six years at Smith & Nephew pic as
CFO He was CFO at Invensys for four years and
spent 18 years at GlaxoSmithKiine plc, where
he held a2 number of senior management and
finanaal roles Adrman also worked at Pw( in
audit and consultancy He s a Non-Executive
Director of Reed Elsevier PLC and Reed

Elsevier NV

Kenneth Hydon (British) * #

Appointed a Non-Executive Director 1n 2003
and Chairman of the Audit Committee in
2006 He s a Feitow of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Associabvon of Corporate Treasurers He was
the Senior Independent Director between 2005
and 2006 He retred as CFO of Vodafone
Group plc i 2005 and was a Non-Executive
Director of Tesco PLC from 2004 t0 2013 He s
a Non-Executive Director of Pearson plc and
Merln Entertainments PLC

Rakesh Kapoor {Indian) #
Joined the Board in September 2011 following
his appointment as CEQ of the Company He

20 RB Annual Report 2013

joined RB m 1987 and served in various
regional and central marketing roles He

was appointed EVP Category Development in
2006 with responsibility for global category
management, R&D, media, market research
and strategic alhances

André Lacroix (French) * #

Appomnted 2 Non-Executive Director in 2008
and the Seruor Independent Director i June
2013 He 15 Group Chief Executive of Inchcape
plc and Chairman of Good Restaurants AG

He was previously Charman and CEC of Euro
Disney and has also held positions at Burger
King {Diageo) Colgate, PepsiCo and Ernst &
Young LLP

Judith Sprieser (Amencan} ¥ #

Appointed a Non-Executive Birector in 2003 and
Char of the Remuneration Committee in 2004
She was previously CEQ of Transora In¢, and
Executive Vice President (formerly CFO) of Sara
Lee Corporation She 15 3 Director of Allstate
Insurance Company InterContinental Exchange,
Inc  Royal Ahold NV and Expenan pic

Warren Tucker (British} * #

Appointed a Non-Executive Director in 2010
He was CFO of Cobham plc from 2003 until
2013 He s a chartered accountant and
previously held semior finance positions at
Cable & Wireless pic and British Airways plc
He 1s Non-Executive Director and Chairman-
designate of PayPomnt plc and a Non-Executive
Birector of Thomas Cock Group

* Member of the Audit Committee
+ Member of the Remuneration Commities
# Member of the Nomination Committee

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Heather Allen (Canadian)

EVP, Category Development. Joined in 1996
She undertook a number of semior marketing
roles in Eastern Europe before becoming
Marketing Dhrector US in 1999 She was
apponted General Manager Canada in 2003
and joined the global head cffice in the UK 1n
2006 as Global Category Officer germ
protection, surface and personal care She was
appointed to her current role in May 2011

Amedeo Fasano (italian)

EVP, Supply Jomed in 1997 as Supply Director
Italy After the Reckitt & Colman and Benckiser
rmerger he was appointed Manufactunng
Director for Central, South Western and
Southern Europe Regions In 2002 he became
Regional Supply Director North America and m
2003 SVP Supply North America, Australia and
New Zealand In 2007 ke took over the role of
SVP Supply Developing Markets and in March
2009 Amedeo was appointed as EVP Supply
He previously worked for Pirell Tyres in multiple
supply rofes in Italy, Turkey, Argentina and UK

Roberto Funan (Brazilian)

EVP, LAPAC (from 1 July 2013) Rejoined in
February 2013 following two years at Impenal
Tobacco where he was Group Marketing
Director and Executive Committee member

in his prior 12-year career with the Group,
Roberto held increasingly senior marketing and
general management roles 1 both emerging
and developed markets, including Brazil,
Netherlands, South Africa and Central Eurcpe
His last role was as Global Category Officer for
fabric and home care

Rob de Groot (Dutch)

EVE ENA Joined in 1988 After international
roles i marketing and sales he became General
Manager The Netherlands, then SVP, Regional
Director Eastern Europe and was appointed
Global Category Officer surface and dish
before being appointed EVP North Amernca &
Austrahia Rob s responsible for North America
Northern Europe, Central Europe, Southern
Europe and Western Europe and 15
headquartered in Amsterdam

Adrian Hennah (British)
Chuef Financial Officer (CFO)

Gareth Hill (South Afncan)

SVP, Information Services Joined in 2006
Previously Information Systerns Director at
Arcacha Group Ltd Prior to Arcadia, Gareth was
at IBM UK Ltd Rex Trueform Clothing Ltd in
South Africa and Arthur Andersen He s a
qualified chartered accountant

Rakesh Kapoor (Indian)
Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

Frederic Larmuseau {Belgian)

EVP. RUMEA Jomed in 2001 as marketing
director for Malaysia & Singapore in 2003 he
became regicnal marketing director for East
Asia and in 2005 became Global Category
Director for Vanish In 2008 he was appointed
General Manager for Brazil and a year later was
promoted to SVP Regional Director Latin
America In fanuary 2013 Frederic was
appomnted to SVP Regional Director North
America and was appointed EVP of RUMEA In
June 2013

Simon Nash {(British}

SVP. Human Resources Jomned in 2009 from
Novartis Consumer Health where he was
Global Head of HR for the Consumer Health
drision, based i Switzerland  Simon staried his
international career with Procter & Gamble in
detergent manufactunng before moving into
HR with Mars Confectionery He moved to New
York 1 1993 wath Kraft Foods International and
then on to Chicago as HR Head of the office
products subsichary of Fortune Brands Inc
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Report of the Directors

The Directors submit their Annual Report
and audited consolidated financal
statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013 to the members
of the Company

Future Developments

Information on the hikely future developments
of the Group Is set out In the Operational Detall
on pages 9to 19 and in the Chief Executive s
Statement on pages 3 to 8 respectively

Audited results for the period are set out on
pages 50 to 84

In the view of the Drrectors, the Group's
hkely future developments will centre on its
matn product categories of health, hygiene
and homs

Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Group' financial nsk management
objectives and policies are set out on pages 17
to 19 of the Strategic Report and 1n note 14 on
pages 70t0 73

The information referred to above 15
incorporated by reference into and shall be
deemed to form part of, this Report This
Report of the Directors has been drawn up and
presented i accordance with and n rehance
upon, apphicable UK company law and the
habilties of the Directors in connection with
this Report shall be subject to the lmitations
and restnctions provided by such law

Dwidend

In July 2013, the Directors resolved to pay an
ntertm dvadend of 60p per ordinary share
(2012 56p) The dwvidend was pad on

26 September 2013 The Dwectors are
recommending a fina! dvidend for the year

of 77p per share (2012 78p) which, together
with the intenm dividend, makes a total for the
year of 137p per share (2012 134p) The final
dwvidend, if approved by the Shareholders, will
be patd on 29 May 2014 to Shareholders on
the register at the close of business on

21 February 2014

Research and Development

The Group continues to carry out R&D in the
search for new and improved products in alt

1ts categones and for increased manufactunng
efficiencies Direct expenditure on R&D 1n 2013
amounted to £199m (2012 £171m)

Acquisitrons and Disposals

information on the Company’s acquisition and
disposal actmities during the year and up to the
date of this Report 1s set out in the Strategic
Report on page S

Employees

Dunng 2013, the Group employed an average
of 37,100(2012 35,900 people worldwide, of
whom 3 700{2012 3 700) were employed in

the UK The Group 15 committed to the
principle of equal opportunity n employment
no applicant or employee recewves less
favourable treatment on the grounds of
nauonahty, age, gender, rehgion race
ethnicity or disabilty The Group recogrises
its responsibilities to disabled persons and
endeavours 10 assist themn to make thew full
contribution at work Where employees
become disabled every practical effort 15 made
to allow them to continue 1n their jobs or to
provide retraining n suitable alternative work

It 15 essential to the continued improvemnent
n efficiency and productivity throughout the
Group that each employee understands the
Group s strategies policies and procedures

Open and regular communication with
employees at all levels s an essential pant
of the management process A continuing
programme oi traiming and development
reinforces the Group’s commitment to
employee development

Regular departmental meetings are held
where opinions of employees are sought

on a varnety of issues The Group operates
mult-dimensional internal communications
programmes which mciude the provision of a
Group intranet and the publication of regular
Group newsletters

Group incentrve schemes renforce financial and
economic factors affecting the performance

of the business Employees typically have three
to five performance objectves which are
directly inked to thetr job and therr specific
contribution to the overall performance of the
Group in addition, presentations and wideos
are given to employees around the Group on
pubhcation of the Group's financial results

The Board encourages employees to become
Shareholders and to participate in the Group's
employee share ownership schemes, should
they so wish Sharesave schemes covering most
of the world give employees the opporturnity to
acquire shares in the Company by means of
regular savings

Directors

The Directors who held office during year and
those serving at the date of this report are
Adrian Bellamy

Richard Cousins

Liz Doherty {resigned 12 February 2013)
Nicandre Durante (appointed t December
2013)

Peter Hart

Adnan Hennah {(appomted 12 February 2013)
Kenneth Hydon

Rakesh Kapoor

André Lacrox

Graham Mackay {resigned 12 June 2013}
Judith Sprieser

Warren Tucker

Biographical details of the current Directors are
set out on page 20

Graham Mackay, who served on the Board as
Non-Executive Director and was the nominated
Semior Independent Director, resigned as a
Director of the Company on 12 June 2013
Angdré Lacroix was designated as the Senior
independent Director on 12 June 2013

Directors’ Interests
A statement of Directors’ Interests in the share
capnal of the Company 1s shown in Table 1 at
the end of this report

Details of Directors’ options to subscribe for
shares in the Company are included on
page 46 in the audited part of the Directors
Remuneration Report

No Director had a matenial interest at any ume
during the year in any dervative or financial
instrument relating to the Company s shares
The details of the Directors’ remuneration and
service agreements are set out 1n the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 34 1o 46

Environmental, $ocial and Governance
(ESG) Matters

information on £5G and related matters 1S set
out In the Strategic Report on pages 15 to 17

Disclosure of Greenhouse Gas (GHG)
Emissions

Information on the required disclosure of the
Group s GHG emissions for the year ended
31 December 2013 15 set out in the Strategic
Report on pages i6to 17

Sustainability and Corporate Responsibility
Information on the Group’s management of
sustanability and corporate responsibility 15sues
is provided n the Strategic Report on pages 15
to 17 and in the Group’s annual Sustainability
Reports which prownide informatton on its
polices, programmes, targets and progress in
this area

Political Donations

No political donanons or expenditure of the
type requinng disclosure under s 366 and $ 367
of the Companies Act 2006 (2006 Act) were
made in the year ended 31 December 2013 nor
are any contemplated

Takeover Directive

The Company 15 required to disclose certan
additional information required by s 992 of the
2006 Act which implemented the EU Takeovers
Directive The following sets out disclosures not
covered elsewhere in this Annual Report

The Articles give the Board power 0 appoint
Directors, but also require Directors to submit
themselves for election at the first AGM
following their appointment  Under the
Articles, afl Directors are required to offer
themselves for re-election every three years

RB Annual Report 2013 21
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The Board 15 responsible for the management
of the business of the Company and may
exercise all the powers of the Company subgect
to the provisions of the Company’s Articles

The Articles contain specific provisions and
restrictions regarding the Company's power to
borrow money Powers relating to the alteration
of share capstal are also included in the Articles
and Shareholders are asked to renew such
authorities each year at the AGM A copy of
the Artictes 1s available from the corporate
website www rb com orf on written request
from the Company Secretary or from the UK
Registrar of Companies

Unless expressly specified to the contrary in
the Articles, the Company's Articles may be
amended by a speaial resolution of the
Company’s Shareholders

There are a number of agreements that

take effect, alter or termunate upon a change
of control of the Company folfowing a
takeover, such as commercial contracts, bank
agreements property lease arrangements and
employee share plans None of these are
deemed to be significant in terms of therr
potential 1rnpact on the business of the Group
as a whole

There are no significant agreements between
the Company and its Directors or employees
providing for compensauon for loss of office or
employment that occurs because of a takeover
bid except that provisions of the Company's
share plans may cause options and awards
granted under such plans to vest on a takeover

There 1s no information that the Company
would be required to disclose about persons
with whom #t has contractual or other
arrangements which are essential to the
business of the Company

Corporate Governance Statement

In comphance with the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules {DTR) 7 2 1 the dssclosures
required by DTR7 22 to 7 2 7 are set out

in this Report of the Directors and in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 26

to 32 which together with the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities are incorporated by
reference 1nto this Report of the Directors

Independent Auditors

The Auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
have indicated their willingness to continue
in office and a resclution that they be
re-appointed will be proposed at the AGM

Share Capital
As at 31 December 2013, the Company's issued
share capital consisted of 719,802,329 ordinary

Substantia! Shareholdings

shares of 10p each with voung nights and
16,732,850 ordinary shares of 10p each held
in Treasury Details of changes to the ordinary
shares 1ssued and of options and awards
granted duning the year are sat out 1n note 22
to the finanoal statements

The nghts and obligations attaching to the
Company's ordinary shares are set out in
the Articles

There are no restrictions on the voting nghts
attaching to the Company’s ordinary shares or
the transfer of secunties in the Company
except in the case of transfers of securities

» That certain restrictions may from time to
time be imposed by laws and regulations
{for exarnple, insider trading laws), and

* Pursuant to the Listing Rules of the Urwted
Kingdom Listing Authonty whereby certain
employees of the Company require the
approval of the Company to deal in the
Company’s ordinary shares

No person holds securities m the Company
which carry speaal vating nghts with regard to
control of the Company The Company Is not
aware of any agreements between holders of
securities that may result in restrictions on the
transfer of secunties or on voting rights

Allotment of Shares

The Directors were granted authornity at the
last AGM held in 2013 to allot shares up to

a nominal amount of £21m That authority
will apply until the concluston of this year's
AGM At this year's AGM on 7 May 2014,
Shareholders will be asked to grant an authority
to make such allotments up to a nominal
amount representing approximately one-third
of the Company's issued share capital as at the
latest practicable date prior to the publication
of the Notice of AGM The authonty sought
would, If granted, expire at the earber of 30
June 2015 or at the conclusion of the AGM of
the Company held in 2015 Excluding Richard
Cousins who will retire at the 2014 AGM the
Board has confirmed that, in accordance with
the UX Corporate Governance Code (Code),
all other Directors will submut themselves for
re-election/election at this year's AGM and at
future AGMs

A special resolution will also be proposed to
renew the Directors’ power to make non-pre-
emptive 1ssues for cash up to a nominal amount
representing less than 5% of the Company's
1ssued share capital as at the latest practicable
date prior to the publication of the Notice

of AGM

As at 4 March 2014 the Company had recewed the following notices of substantial interests
(3% or more) in the total voting nights of the Company

No of
% of total ordinary  Mature of
voting rights shares holding
JAB Holdings B V 1065 76,659,342  Indwect
Massachusetts Finanaa! Services Company and/or 11s subsidiaries 577 41,561,763  Indirect
Invesco Lirited 406 29,255,679 Indirect
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Authonty to Purchase Own Shares
Sharehoiders approved a resolution for the
Company to make purchases of Its own shares
at the AGM in 2013 The Dwrectors announced
thew intention to commence a share repurchase
programme during 2013 for the repurchase

of up to 6 million shares for the purpose of
offsetting the dilutive impact of employee

share schemes

In accordance with that announcement and the
authority granted at the AGM 0 2013, market
purchases of 6 miliion of the Companys
ordinary shares were made dunng 2013 at a
total cost of £278,705,370 mcluding stamp
duty The authorty granted at the AGM i3
2013 remains vahd untd the concdlusion of this
year's AGM on 7 May 2014 and the Directors
will seek to renew the authonty to make
rmarket purchases through a resolution to be
put to Shareholders at this year's AGM This
authorty will be imited 1o a maximum of

73 mulfion ordinary shares and sets the
minimum and maximum prices which may be
paid The Company’s intention would be to
hold shares acquired under such authorniy in
Treasury to satisfy outstanding awards undger
employee share incentive plans

Annual General Meeting

The Notice convening the seventh AGM of the
Company to be held on Wednesday, 7 May
2014 at 11 15 am at the London Heathrow
Marriott Hotel, Bath Road, Hayes, Middlesex
UB3 SAN 15 contawned In a separate document
for Shareholders

In accordance with the Shareholder Rights’
Directive (Directive) which came into force

n August 2009, the Company obtained
Shareholder approval at the AGM in 2013

to call meetings, other than Annual General
Meetings, on 14 clear days notce Priorto the
implementation of the Directive the Company
was able 1o call meetings other than an AGM
on 14 ¢lear days’ notice without obtaining
Shareholder approval and, 10 preserve this
abiity Shareholders will be asked to renew
their approval by passing Resolution 20 at

the AGM

Although Article 78 governs the reurement

of Directors by rotation, the Board has agreed
that all the Directors will submit themselves for
re-election/election at this year s AGM and at
future AGMs in compliance with the Code

By Order of the Board
Ehzabeth Richardson
Company Secretary

Reckitt Benckiser Group pic
103-105 Bath Road
Slough, Berkshire SL1 3UH

Company registration number 6270876
7 March 2014
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Table 1 - Interests in the Share Capital of the Company

The Directors in office at the end of the year and those in affice at 7 March 2014 had the following beneficial interests (unfess stated otherwise) in the

ordinary shares of the Company

7 March 2014 1 December 2013 31 December 2012
Adrnan Bellamy 22813 22,813 21,966
Rechard Cousins 2,429 2429 2,262
Nicandro Durante (appointed 1 December 2013) 0 o] n/a
Peter Harf 4,109 4,109 3,806
Adrian Hennah {appointed 12 February 2013) 13629 13,629 n/a
Kenneth Hydon 5510 5,510 5,337
Rakesh Kapoor 317,537 317537 281 869
André Lacrox 2,253 2253 2086
Judith Sprieser 3,809 3,809 3631
Warren Tucker 1694 1,694 5,527
Notes

1 No person who was a Director (or a Director s connected person} on 31 Decernber 2013 and at 7 March 2014 had any notifiable share interests i

any subsiciary

2 The Company’s Register of Directors’ Interests {which 1s open to nspectton) contains full details of Directors s

hareholdings and options to subscribe
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Chairman’s Statement on
Corporate Governance

The UK Corporate Governance Code (Code)
issued by the Financal Reporting Counal
{FRC) 1n September 2012 was applicable to
the Company throughout the finanaal year
ended 31 December 2013

The FRC confirmed that the recent changes

to the Code together with changes to the UK
Stewardship Code are intended to increase
director accountability and encourage greater
stakeholder engagement, whilst promoting the
interest of Shareholders Through the reports
on the work of the Board and its commutiees,
the changes provide investors with greater
insight mnito the acuwities of hsted companies
The Board takes senously its responsibiity for
effective corporate governance and delivery of
long-term Shareholder and stakeholder reward
and 1its decisions are taken in ight of these
considerations | am pleased to report to you
directly on RB s governance activities

RB and Governance

The Board beligves that implementing and
maintaining high governance standards
underpin our business objectives and our drive
to create and mawmise Shareholder value whilst
managing the business effectively, responsibly
and with integnty, so that we demonstrate
accountabtlity and maintain the trust of alf our
stakeholders In addition to compliance with
the best practice advice from regulatory and
governance bodies, the Board ensures that
high ethical standards are reflected in business
behaviour and culture through RB's giobal Code
of Conduct which enables management to add
ethical and behavioural standards to the legal
and regulatory obligations existing in the areas
and communities in which we operate All
employees and contractors are required to
complete an annual conduct training course
which includes the rewew of the global Code
of Conduct Statistics on employee comphance
are subject to review by the Audit Committee
The Company also operates an aciive
whistleblowtng hatline, the reports from which
are reviewed by the Audit Committee

We are constantly seeking to develop our
practices and governance framework to ensure
that transparency and good governance
permeate through the Group at all levels Our
professional employees are annually required
to confirm comphance with corporate pohcies
and are encouraged 10 suggest Improvements
This ensures we maintain a dynamic pracess

of enhancement which enables our operating
businesses and group functions to operate with
an appropnate awareness and recognition of
therr governance and regulatory abhgatons

Composrtion of the Board
The current and future composition of the
Board remains an issue to which i and the rest
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of the Board give our full attention We remain
mindful of the recommendations of the Code
on length of service and diversity and it 1s our
@im to comply with these recommendations
without compromising the cultyre that drives
the success of our business Unfortunately, our
Sentor Independent Director Graham Mackay
had to retire from the Board 1in June 2013 for
health reasons and sadly passed away on

18 December 20%3 Graham brought
exceptional talents to the Board's actvities and
he will be missed The Board, on behalf of the
Company and its Shareholders 15 grateful for
Graham's significant contnibutions over the
past eight years and sends condolences and
best wishes to his family We have sought to
strengthen the Board wath the appointment of
Nicandro Durante, who brings expenence of a
highly regulated and innovation-led industry
alongstde extensive emerging markets’
experience having worked in Asia, Africa and
Latin America He adds further international
dersity to the Board We continue to seek 1o
recrint addtional Non-Executve Directors who
will bring a diverse range of skills, expernience
and perspectives to the Board s actvities

We announced at the end of December 2013
that Richard Cousins will not offer umself for
re-election at the 2014 AGM and will stand
down at the close of business of the 2014
AGM after having served as a Non-Executive
Director since October 2009

The Board includes Peter Harf who as a
Shareholder-nominated Director, was not
ndependent on appaintment Both Peter

and | have served on the Board since 1999 In
addition, Judith Sprieser and Kenneth Hydon
have now been on the Board for a penod
exceeding ten years The Board remains keen to
ensure comphance with the recommendations
of the Code but recognises that both Kenneth
and Judith have been dil:gent servants of the
Company who continue to add value to the
activities of the Company as a whole To ensure
continuity and a successful transition, the Board
recommends that Judith and Kenneth be
re-appointed to the Board at the 2014 AGM

In recognition of thers length of service, both
Judith and Kenneth will step down as Chars

of the Remuneration and Audit Committees
respectively before the end of the year, upon
completion of this years exercise to refresh the
composition of the Board

To ensure that the Board is able coffecuvely to
ncrease its focus on Board composition, the
membership of the Nomination Committee was
ncreased in Novernber 2013 to include all the
Non-Executive Directors and the CEQ As part
of the review of the Board s effectveness, the
documents sett:ng out the matters reserved for
the Board and the delegatrons to the CEO,

together with the terms of reference for the
Board Committees, were reviewed and updated
so that they continue to reflect the spurit and
emphasis of the Code remain fit for purpose
and refevant to how RB operates

Board Evaluation

The Code recommends that FTSE 350
campanues should undertake an external
evaluation at least once every three years

The 2009 to 2012 Board evaluations were all
undertaken mternally The recent evafuation for
the year ended 2013 was externally faciitated
by Egon Zehnder Limited The summary
outcome applauded the Company’s focus on
Shareholder value and the quality of the Board’s
decision making It recognised the Board's
efficency and focus but noted certain
improvement opportunities on governance

and Board succession matters The
recommendations to move the Board's
performance from good to great are further
discussed in the performance evaluation section
on page 28 of this Report

Succession Planrng

Succession planning to the Board and semior
management roles remains one of the key
areas to which the Board gives due attention
Progress continues to be made in this area and
part of that progress s to ensure diversity in
succession planning and to give members of
RB's senior management more exposure to the
Board and externally Aadditional information
on RB’s succession planning activities at senior
management levels 15 within ‘Resources on
pages 11 to 12 of the Strategic Repart Our
disclosure includes the new Companies Act
2006 requirement to report specifically on the
gender spht for the Board, semor managers and
total employee numbers

Annual Re-elections

All the Directors subrmitted themselves for
re-electon at the 2013 AGM and excluding
Richard Cousins who is retinng after the AGM,
will submit themselves for re-election at the
2014 AGM and at future AGMSs in comphance
with the Code

Diversity

The Company operates within a corporate
dversity and inclusion policy framework
adopted and reviewed by the Executive
Committee The Dawvies recornmendation for
boards to have a mimimum of 25% female
representation by 2015 15 an aspiration the
Company conswders carefully as part of 115
recrutment exercises

The Board reiterates its view that facilitaung
and promoting diversity in 1is broadest sense
has helped propel the Company's success to
date It remans rts practice to ensure that the
Company's Top40 executive roles In particufar,
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are open to fresh thinking and must include
personnel from different global backgrounds
who bring new ideas to the table The
Company values 1ts freedom 1o retamn a
group of people who, collectively have the
skifls, expenence and msight to implement
the Company s global vision and objectives
and achieve long-term value growth without
being hindered by a gender quota which
does not take cogrisance of the specific
situation and culture of the Cempany As

at 31 Decernber 2013

* 10% (2012 10%) of the Board 1s female and
50% (2012 50%) are non-UK nationals,

11% (2012 11%) of the Executve
Commuttee 1s female and 78% (2012 78%)
are non-UK nationals, and

14% (2012 15%) of the Top4Q managers
are female and 66% (2012 70%) are
non-UK nationals

All RB employees understand therr personal
responsibility for ensuning that dversity policies
and programmes are actively pursued
implemented and mantained The Company
does not set speafic targets in absolute
percantage terms to deter artificiahty in the
process, It measures pProgress year on year to
ensure an improving piciure on gender balance
which it believes contributes to the Company s
growth and success As at 31 December 2013

» 42% (2012 41%) of the Groups
professional population of 7,079 1s female,
and

e 17% (2012 16%) of the Group's Top400
population 15 female

Gender balance has improved consistently
across the professional population

14, 43 and 85 (2012 16 44 and 94)
nationalities are represented it the Topdd
Top4a00 and professional populations
respectively

Risk Management and Appetite

The Board monitors the level of nisk through
the Group’s major nisk assessment process
We remain committed to building on and
improving our understanding of the key nsks
facing the Group and 1ts business operations
and we constantly refine our appetite and
tolerance of such risks

Explanation on Areas of Non-compliance
with the Code (strict interpretation)

The Board recognises that the objectwve of the
Code 15 to faciitate management’s delivery

of business success m a transparent and
responsible manner The Code does not impaose
a ngd set of rules and recognises that certain
actions and behaviours do not automatically
wnply poor organisational governance The
Board has authonsed an explanation for the
following areas where a strict interpretation
might lead to a perception of non-comphance
with certain areas of the Code

« |, as the Chairman, and Peter Harf, the
Deputy Chairman and a Shareholder-
nominated Director have both served on
the Board since 1999 and will be offering
ourselves for re-electron at the 2014 AGM,

« Kenneth Hydon and Judith Sprieser have
now each been on the Board for over ten
years The Company continues to benefit
from the skills and experience they bring
to their roles and, with continuity in mind,
Judith and Kenneth have agreed to stand
for re-election at the AGM for a further year,
before stepping down at the AGM 1n May
2015 by which t:rme they would have served
on the Board for 11 years Judith and
Kenneth will step down as Chairs of therr
respective committees by the end of the
year, following the outcome of the ongoing
refresh of the Boards composition
Recognising that it i1s important that the
Board retains relevant knowledge and
experience to continue its delvery of

Shareholder value and provide continuity
and consistency 1n the development and
applcation of the Company’s strategic
objectives, the Board will continue its efforts
1o refresh the membership of the Board in
the short-term,

»

Following the retirement of Graham Mackay
from the 8oard in June 2012 for the penod
from June 2013 until the date of this report,
the Remuneration Committee was not
composed of a majority of independent
Non-Executive Directors For the same
reason, the Nomination Committee was not
composed of a majonty of independent
Non-Executive Directors from June 2013 untl
November 2013 when the Board resolved
to change the terms of reference on
membership of the Nomunation Cornrmuttee
to include all Non-Executive Drrectors, and

» judith Spneser in her capacity as Chair
of the Remuneration Commutiee was
unfortunately absent from the 2013 AGM
held on 2 May 2013

The Board has nstructed me to confirm that,
notwithstanding the foregog disclosures and
following the externally facilitated performance
evaluation undertaken duning 2013, each
Director’s ndependence of thought and actions
was assured and all decisions were taken to
promote the success of RB as a whole

Statement of Comphance with the Code
The Corporate Governance Report on pages
26 to 32 contains a summary of the Company's
governance arrangements and the regulatory
assurances requsired under the Code Except as
explained above, the Company has complied
with the Code throughout the year ended

31 December 2013

Adnan Bellamy
Chairman

7 March 2014

x U
—
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Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Board

The Company enjoys a premium hsting

on the London Stock Exchange and 1s
therefore required to produce a Corporate
Governance Statement containing the
information set out in this Report. This
Report 1s prepared with reference 1o the
finanaal Reporting Council's UK Corporate
Governance Code {Code) in effect for the
financial perods beginming on or after

1 Qcteber 2012 This Report sets out how the
Company has applied the Main Princples of the
Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2013 and as at the date of this Report

A, Leadership

A 1* THE ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board leads and controis RB' business
with a Board structure similar to that of its
principal international competitors The Board
approves strateqgy carmes out an advisory

and supervisory role and accepts ultimate
responsibility for the conduct of RB'S business
The schedule of matters reserved for the
Board s decision includes

= Takeover offers and the response to any
takeover aporoach,

= Significant acquisitions, disposals and capital
expenditure projects,

* Final approval of annual budgets and
corporate plans,

« Approval of financial statements and
Shareholder communications,

» Treasury palicies and nsk management
policies,

» Significant changes to borrowing faciliies or
foreign currency transactions, and

* Review and approval of recommendations
from the Committees of the Board

The annual review of this schedule was
undertaken in November 2013 as part of the
performance evaluations conducted for the
2013 fingngial year

The pancipal actmties undertaken by the Board
are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 3
to17

Meetings

Board meetings are structured to allow open
discussion The Board meets a minimurn of
five times a year and constitutes additional
meetings (including by telephone or written
resolution) to consider specific matters which
1t has reserved to nself for decision

In 2013, there were five regular Board meetings
(plus two addrtional meetings) There were four
Audit Committee meetings, four Remuneration
Committee meetings (plus one additionat
meeting) and one Nomination Committee
meeting The table below sets out the
attendance by indwidual Directors at scheduled
Board and Commuttee megtings

Directors’ Insurance and Indemnities

The Directors benefit from the indemnrty
provision in the Company’s Articles of
Assocaton Each indmadual, who s an Officer
of the Company and/or of any company within

Number of Scheduled Meetings Attended during 2013

RB at any time on or after 28 July 2009
benefits from a deed pofl of iIndemnity In
respect of the costs of defending claims
aganst him or her and third party kabilities
Additionally Directors’ and Officers’ habihity
insurance cover was maintained throughout
the year at the Company’s expense

A 2 DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
There s a dear division of respensibilities
between the Chairman and the CEO

The Chairman is responsible for the overatt
operation, leadership and governance of
the Board

The CEO 1s responsible for the executive
management of RB's business, consistent with
the strategy and commercial objectives agreed
by the Board The CEO charrs the Executve
Commuttee ana together with the CFO, certan
Group functional heads and area EVPs he
appoints to the Comimittee, provides the
day-to-day management of the Company
Biographical details of the members of the
Executive Committee are set out on page 20
The matters delegated to the CEQ by the
Board mnclude

* Power to delegate the day-to-day
management of the business of the
Company to each of the Officers of the
Executive Commuttee acting indmdually
or as a group or sub-committee,

Power to acqueire and dispose of businesses
and to approve unbudgeted capual
expenditure projects subject in each case,
to a £50m hmit, and

Note Board Audit Remuneration Nemination
Adnan Beltamy 5 4 1
Richard Cousins 5 4
Nicandro Durante (a) n/a n/a
Peter Harf o] 4 1
Adrnian Hennah a4
Kenneth Hydon 5 4 i
Rakesh Kapoor 5 1
André Lacrox 5 4 1
Graham Mackay (d] 1 1
Judith Sprieser {b} 4 4 1
Warren Tucker ] 4

Notes

(a) There were no scheduled Board meetings 1n 2013 subsequent to the appointment of Nicandro Durante
(b} Peter Harf and Judith Spneser were unavardably absent from one meeting each

() Graham Mackay did not attend any meetng after February 2013 and formally reured from the Board due to il health on 12 June 2013
(d} Liz Doherty retired from the Board on 12 February 2013 and did not attend the scheduled Board meeting an the same date
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* Power 10 Instruct advisers and to instigate
legal proceedings on behalf of the Company
in respect of matters for which no further
Board authonty 15 required

A 3 THE CHAIRMAN

The Chairman who was independent on
appointment, 1s responsible for leading the
Board and enabling the Directors 1o operate
effectively as one unit to deterrmine the
strategy nsk appetite and governance structure
necessary to deliver Shareholder value in a
transparent and responsible manner His
responsibilities mclude

+ Chaming and ensunng that Board meetings
provide a forum that encourages open
debate and effective contributions from
individual Directors wrth sufficient time
allocated to key ssues,

Developing an effective working relationship
with the CEQ whilst recognsing the need

to maintan the balance between ¢ritical
friendship and executive responsibility,

Finalising the Board meeting agenda
developed by the CEO and the Company
Secretary,

Sponsoning angd promoting governance and
ethical practices,

Encouraging dialogue between the
Company angd its Shareholders and other
stakeholders and faciitating the Boards
understanding of Shareholders and other
stakeholders’ concerns,

Overseeing the induction, information and
support prowisions for Directors, and

Report of the Nomination Committee

B2 NOMINATION COMMITTEE AND
BOARD APPCINTMENTS

Nomnation Committee

Untid November 2013, the Nomination
Committee compnised the Charrman who also
chairs the Committee, the CEQ the Deputy
Chairman. the $ID and the Chairs of both

the Audit and Remuneraton Committees
Followang its meeting 1n November 2013,

the Board agreed that the composition of the
Nomination Commuittee would be increased

to include ail Non-Executive Directors plus the
CEQ The Board has delegated authonty to the
Committee through nts terms of reference, a
copy of which 1s available on the Company’s
website The pnmary focus of the Commuttee
15 to make recommendations on

+ The composttion and perfarmance of the
Board and its Commuttees,

* Appointments and re-elections to the Board
and its Commuttees, and

* Succession plans for the Chairman and other
Directors

The principal actvities of the Normination
Committee dunng the year were

« Consideraton of the current and future
compositton of the Board, and

¢ Leading the annual performance evaluation
of the Board and 1ts Committees

A 4 NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Directors are independent
of management and therefore able to provide
cnitical iInput into Board decssions through therr
contnbutions to Board discussions and their
roles on, and Chairmanship of, Board
Committees They

« Contribute international and operational
experrence and a knowledge and
understanding of global financial ssues, the
sectors m which RB operates and the health
and safety, environmental and community
chalflenges 1t faces,

*

Monitor management performance against
strategy and provide reasoned input and
constructive challenge to ensure objectives
are met, and

» Assess and monitor the integnty of financial
mformation and the systems of risk
management and internat control

The Chairman holds a session wath other
Non-Executive Directors at the conclusion
of each formal Board meeting without the
Executive Directors present

The Senior independent Director (SID)
prowides a sounding board for the Chairman
and 15 available to the other Dwectors and
Shareholders who have concerns that cannot
be addressed through the Chairman CEQ

or CFO

» Together with the rest of the Board the
appointment of Nicandro Durante as an
additional Non-Executive Director on
i December 2013

Board Appointments

The process leading up to the appointment

of Nicandro Durante commenced with the
appointment of Egon Zehnder bimited (Egon
Zehnder) who worked with the Chairman and
the Board to put together a profile based on
the Board's consensus of the key attnbutes
requred In addiion, the outcomes from the
interviews undertaken as part of the externally
facilitated Board performance evaluation fed
nto this process to ensure that there was good
akgnment from the Board on the profile for
candidates The Board receved the CVs of
approximately ten potential candidates who
had been short hsted following an imitial review
by the Chairman and members of the
Normination Comrittee Following feedback
and recommendations from indnadual Board
members, the Chairman met with the
recommended candidates The Deputy
Chairman the CEOQ, the SID and the Group
General Counsel also met with Nicandro who
inchcated a willingness to accept an offer
following his own due dihigence process The
Board approved the appomtment of Nicandro

B: Effectiveness

B8 1 BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises the Chairman, Adnan
Bellamy seven Non-Executive Directors and two
Executive Directors, Rakesh Kapoor, CEQ and
Liz Doherty CFO until 12 February 2013 and
Adnan Hennah, CFO from 12 February 2013
Information regarding the Directors serving at
the date of this Report 15 set out on page 20
Additional btographical details are available
from the Company’s website

The Board identsfied Graham Mackay as the SID
until his retrement i june 2013 when André
Lacrox succeeded Graham as 51D The Board
has determined that the majonity of Non-
Executive Directors {excluding the Chawrman)
are independent as recommended by the Code
The Board deemed Judith Sprieser and Kenneth
Hydon as mdependent notwithstanding that
they have served over ten years The Charrman,
Adran Bellamy, was mdependent on
appointment Peter Harf, the Deputy Chairman,
15 not independent by virtue of being a
Shareholder-nomenated Director The
Shareholder Agreement between the Company
and JAB Holdings 8 V (JAB) at the time of the
merger in 1999 entitled JAB to nominate Board
Durectors A helding i excess of 20% or 10%
of the Company’s crdinary shares entitles JAB
10 norunate two Directors or one Director
respectively JAB s current holding 15 shghtly

In excess of 10% The Company announced

n December 2013 that Richard Cousing
Nan-Executive Director, will not offer humnself
for re-election at the 2014 AGM

and delegated authority to the Chawman to
finahse terms and dates

The Board reviews the medium and long-term
succession plans for the Executive Directors
annually All Non-Executive Directors are kept
mvolved in the recrunment process for both
Executve and Non-Executive Directors

Diversity and Business Success

The Board 1s confident that diversity contnbutes
to the success of any business It enables the
business to better understand its opportunities
and risks and 1o develop robust solutions to
them The Board believes and acts on the

basis that

» Dwversity s much broader than gender and
should also not be a Board only 1ssue It
incorporates diversity of race, thought,
experence, skills understanding, perspective
and age and also requires implementation
at alt management levels,

= Successfud companies sell their goods and
services 1o customers regardless of gender
race ethnic group or religion and a dverse
workforce should reflect its customers
A diverse management 1s more n touch
with 1ts custorners’ demands nvestors’
expectations and employees’ concerns and
provides a forum for these different
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Report of the Nomination Committee {continued)

perspectives to come together in devising
successful business strategies, and

Diversity Is a8 matter of organssational culture
largely set by examnple from the top A Board
that actively constders diversity is better able
1o support diversity etforts in the rest of the

organisation and 15 equipped to ident:fy the

organisation s requirements

As part of the recruitment drive, Egon Zehnder
was given a speofic remit to ensure that more

B3 COMMITMENT

All new Non-Executive Directors confirm in
writing that they are able to allocate sufficient
time to meet the expectaucns of the role The
Board has adopted a letter of appointment that
contains the terms on which Non-Executive
Directors will be appointed including

» Canfirmation that the appaintment 15 a
contract for services and details of any
Committee appointments,

Confirmation of the inibial appointment term
of three years terminable on one month's
written notice and the expectation that the
appointment will usually last for mere than
one term, and

+ The requirement to seek the agreement of
the Chawman before accepung addmonal
commitments including other directorships
and the requirement to disclose any actual
or potential conflicts of mterest

The terms of reference of the Nomimation
Committee give the Committee responsibility
for ensuring that Executive Directors do not
take on more than one non-executive
directorship in 3 FTSE 100 company nor the
charrmanship of such company

The externally facilitated evaluation of the
Board's performance undertaken i 2013
concluded that the Chairman and other
Non-Executve Dhrectors devote sufficient
time to the Company’s busmess

B4 DEVELOPMENT

Induction and Training

All new Directors are provided with a flexible
induction programme tailered to accommodate
ndnidual areas of interest The induction
covers the proviston of core Company-related
internal and external documents, meetings with
Birectors and key senior executives and wisits to
vanous offices and factones as appropnate

The Board holds at least ane meeting each year
at one of the Company's operating units The
2012 meeting was held in Brazil and the 2013
meeting was held in China The Board plans to
visit Its operating urit an Sakt Lake City USA
dunng 2014 The Board receves updates on
legal, requlatory and governance matters from
its internal and external adwisers As part of

its investor relations programme, the Board
receved a detalled presentation on and review
of the Company’s investor relations activeties at
its November meeting
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fernale and international candidates were put
forward for consideration and the Committee
together with the full Board, considered and
discussed the CVs of potentral candidates at
their November meetings The Chairman and
the Committee are continuing the search to
refresh the composition of the Board with
high-calibre candidates who wilt complement
the Groups strengths and contribute to its
diversity and business success

The Chairman has overall responsibility

far ensuring that the Directors receive the
information and traming required for therr
roles Directors are encouraged 1o take
indnvidual responsibility for identifying thew
needs and are expected 10 take the necessary
steps to ensure that they are adequately
nformed about RB and their responsibilities
as Directors The Board 15 confident that all
1ts members have the knowledge, ability and
experience to perform the functions required
of a director of a listed company

The Company was subject to an FSA (now FCA}
enquiry dunng 2012 which is still ongong as at
the date of this Annual Report This related to
an inadvertent breach of the Listng Rules and
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules relating
to a pledge {(now redeemed) over shares held
by the CEQ {acquired when he was an
Executne Committee member prior to his
appointment as CEO) and a disposal of
Company shares by a person discharging
manageral responsibilities without the
appropriate disclosures being made

B S INFORMATION AND SUPPORT

All members of the Board receve timely reports
on items ansng at meetings of the Board to
enable due consideration af the rtems in
advance of meetings Directors unable to
attend a particular meeting during the year had
the opportunity to review and raise any 155U
on the retevant briefing papers Board members
afso have access to a dedicated online team
room containing relevant Company information
including all Board and Committee papers

Each Dwector has access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary and a
procedure exists for Directors to take
independent professional advice at the
Company's expense In furtherance of
their duties

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary ensures that the
Company comphes with all applicable rutes,
regulations and cbiigations goverming the
Company's cperations and s responsible for
ensuring that the correct Board procedures are
followed She advises the Board on corporate
governance matters All Directors have access
to the Company Secretary Her appointment
and removal are matters reserved 1o the Board

-

Directors’ Conflicts of Interest

The Nomination Commuttee is responsible for
the Company's procedures for dealing with
Diwrectors” conflicts of interest and these
procedures have operated effectvely duning
the year A register of Directors’ conflicts 15
maintained by the Company Secretary and
reviewed by the Board at {east annually The
Board 15 aware of the other commitments
of its Directors and any changes to these
commitments are reported to the Beard

B & EVALUATION

Performance Evaluation

The Board maintains an ongoing review of 1ts
pracedures and its effectiveness and those of
its Committees throughout the year From 2009
to 2012, nt cared out a formal and ngorous
internal evatuation of its Committees and of
indidual Directors with a view to improving
the effectiveness of the Board and its
Committees and RB's overall performance
The evaluation of the Board's performance
dunng 2013 was undertaken with support
from an external facilitator

2013 Evaluation Egon Zehnder was retained
to facilitate the 2013 Board performance
evaluation its remit included a focus on Board
performance measured primarily by the growth
of Shareholder value with due cogrusance given
to the Board s focus on the businass and its
strategy Particular attention was a%so given

to personnel 1ssues and the special and critical
culture of the Company Egon Zehnder recewed
details of the 2011 and 2012 Board
performance evaluations and presented at the
July and November Board meetings

Egon Zehnder met with iIndividual Directors
using a pre-airculated two-page discussion
guide which enabled them to reflect and
gather therr thoughts ahead of the meeting
They also met with the Company Secretary and
the Group General Counsel who attend all
Board meetings

The indwidual discussion covered the strategic
alignment and the impact of the Company’s
re-stated vision on Board composition and
future structure Other areas in scope included
Board meetings and dynanmmcs, reporting to
Shareholders, governance and Board processes
business performance informaton flows risk
and people related 1ssues Two areas of specific
focus, used as case studies of the Board's
deasion-making, were the re-focus of the
strategic dwection of the Company mnto health,
hygiene and home and the acquisitions
undertaken during 2012/2013 The key
objective was 1o ensure that the Board focuses
on how it adds value to the busmess and
captures the learmng for future decision-
making ey recommendations which the
Board will progress mclude

* Board composition the Board should
continue 10 seek to bolster its numbers
with up to three additional Non-Executive
Drectors,
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s Chairman succession the Nomination
Committee should commence the planning
process to identify a successor for the
Chairman’s role,

Interaction with Executive Directors the
Executve Directors were encouraged to share
therr thoughts and plans at an earber stage
t0 encourage debate,

Project specific updates an increase in the
regulanty of updates to the Board on the
projects it oversees was recommended,

« Approach on remuneration the
Remuneration Commuttee was encouraged
to discuss the impact of policy and regulatory
issues with the Board to promote Board
alignment on relevant issues, and

+ Review of decisions noting that it operated
good post-acquisition reviews, the Board
was encouraged also to review other key
decisions on a regular basrs

Egon Zehnder also provides consultancy
services ta the Board's recruitment actmities
The Board recognised the benefit of using
Egon Zehnder for its performance evaluation
on the basis that this would provide a better
understanding of the Board and its dynamics
which would feed into the candidate

search process

Progress Update on ltems from the 2012
Evatuation The 2012 evaluation was
underiaken internally in a detailed and rigorous
manner which started with an email from the
Company Secretary to all Directors inviting therr
comments on the effectiveness of the Board
the responses from which were used to develop
a framework for the debate at the evaluation
meeting Key actions from the 2012 Boaid
performance evaluation and progress made
since then include

+ Corporate strategy the objective was to
ensure that the Non-Executive Directors
receved relevant information well In advance
of meetings to faclitate therr understanding
of management’s key strategic focus
Strategic 1ssues are discussed at every
meeting with management sharing therr
thoughts earlier and this enabled both
management and the Board to take swift
actions on key opportunities

Investor Refations the objective was for
additional clanty on the Company's investor
relations strategy The Board was given a
presentation on the Company’s investor
relations strategy during the year and in
November 2013 the Company held a
well-receved two-day strategy event at
which the investor commumity met all the
members of the Executive Committee
gamning an understanding of the depth
and capability of management and the
Company s censumer health and emerging
markets’ strategies

Advance papers to the Board the
improvement i the quality and timing

of papers 1o the Board was noted
Management was adwised to keep a ught
rein on the guantity of advance matenal to

ensure that Board information was succingt
and essential

Offsite Board meeting the objectve was
to help the Board make the most of the
meeting and use It as an opportunity to meet
Top400 executives in less formal settings
The offsite meeting in China during 2013
took place over four days, twice the normal
time previously allocated for such meetings
This afforded the Board an opportunity to
immerse itself in the China business Future
offsite meetings will follow this mose
detalled programme

* People and succession the objective
was to deliver an increased exposure of the
Top400 to the Non-Executive Directors In
addition to meeting the managers of the
Chinese business the Board recewed
presentations from the other members of
the Executive Committee, Top40 and Top400
executives during the year

These outcomes and actions fed into the
externally facihtated evaluation carmed out In
2013 and wilt continue to aid benchmarking
and the measurement of progress in the
COMmMg years

The 2013 evatuations of the Board Committees
were undertaken with the use of detaded
internally generated guestionnatres which
included a section for additional comments
The scores and additional comments were
coliated for subsequent discussions

The evaluation of the Charman’s performarce
was undertaken by the SID with input from his
fellow Non-Executive Directors, the CEQ and
the CFO The Chairman evaluates each
Director's performance through one-to-one
discussions wtth othar Directors The
Remuneration Committee also reviews the
performance of the Executive Directors and
other members of the Executive Committee

B8 7 DIRECTORS' RE-ELECTION

In accordance with Code recommendations,
all the Directors will submut themselves for
re-etection/election at the 2014 AGM
Excluding Richard Cousins who will not stand
for re-election at the 2014 AGM, each Director
has provided assurance that he or she remains
committed to his or her role and can dedicate
the necessary amount of time to attend to the
Company's business [n addition, the
performance evaluation undertaken was
nigorous and transparent to establish that each
Director remains able to undertake his or her
duties Consequently, the Board recommends
that alt Shareholders vote *for" on each of the
resolutions to re-efect/elect the Directors at
the 2014 AGM The date each Director was
ongnally appointed to the Board s included

in the brographical details on page 20

C- Accountability

C 1 FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REPORTING
The Board 15 responsible for the mtegoty of
RB's consolidated and the Company’s financial
staternents and recognises its responsibility to
present a fair, balanced and understandable
assessment of RB's position and prospects

The Board 15 satisfied that the financial
statements, report {0 regulators and price-
sensitive reports present a faw, balanced and
understandable assessment of RB’s position
and prospects

To assist wath financial reporting and the
preparauon of consolidated financial
statements, the finance function has in place

a senes of accounting and treasury policies,
practices and controls which are designed to
ensure the identification and communication
of changes i accounting standards, and
reconcihation of core financial systems The
function consists of consolidation and financial
accounting teams, and technical support which
compnses senior finance managers who review
external techrical developments and
accounting policy 1ssues In addition the
finance function matntains an up-to-date
Group Finance Policy Manual and sets formal
requirements with operating unit finance
functions which specify the standard reports
and approvals required by RB

Throughout the year RB has had n place an
ongoing process for evaluating the financial
reporting process and the preparation of
consolidated accounts The basis for the
preparation of consolidated accounts 15 as set
out on page 54 under Accounting Policies

The Board agrees an engagement letter with
the Audrtors in respect of the full and half-year
results and the Auditors’ statement on their
work and reporting responsibilities 1s set out
on pages 47 to 49

information on RB's business modet and
strategy for generating and preserving
longer-term growth and delvering on the
Company’s stated objectives 15 set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 9 to 11

The Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities an
page 33 details the Directors’ responsibility far
the financial statements, for disclosing relevant
audit information to the Auditors and for
ensuring that the Annual Report s fair
balanced and understandable An extra step
involving an additional review of the draft
Annual Report and a teleconference of the
Board was added to the approval process so
that the full Board acting together, could
confirm that the Annual Report was farr,
balanced and understandable

The going concern statement required by the
Listing Rutes and the Code 15 set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on
page 33

C 2 RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTRCL

The Board has established a risk and control
structure designed to manage the achievement
of business objectves it has overall
responsibility for RB's systern of internal control
and for the effectiveness of such system

The system complies wath the Turnbull guidance
on internal Control and Risk Management

and provides reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance agamst matenal misstatement

or loss
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The Board maintains an ongoing process for
evaluating the system of internal control and
wdentifytng and managing sk Management
1s required to apply judgement in evaluating
the matenial nsks RB faces in achieving its
objectives, in determining the nsks that are
considered acceptable to bear, i assessing the
likelihood of the risks concerned materialising
in identifying RB's ability to reduce the
incidence and impact on the business of rnisks
that do matenahse and in ensuring that the
costs of operating particular controls are
proportionate to the benefit

RB's contro! erwironment 15 supported by a
Code of Conduct on which employees receve
traming annually, and a range of polices on
corporate responsibility Other key elements
within the internal control structure are
summansed as follows

» The Board and Management — the Board
approves strategy and performs an adwisory
and supervisory role with the day-to-day
managerment of the Company being
undertaken by the CEQ supported by the
Executive Committee The CEQ and other
Executive Commitiee members have clearly
communicated RB s wision, strategy,
operating model, values and business
abjectives across the Group,

Organisattonal Structure - during the year
ended 31 December 2013, RB operated
three area organsations covering ENA,
LAPAC and RUMEA together with RB
Pharmaceuttcals and Food, and centralised
functions covering category development,
supply, sales finance, legal information
senvices and human resources, as well as
an independent internal audit function
Throughout the organisation, the
achievement of business cbiectives and
the estabhishment of appropreate nisk
management and internal control systems

Report of the Audit Committee

C 3 AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS
Introduction

in 2013 changes were made to the UK
Governance Code We reviewead our Terms
of Reference and Annual Plan i the light of
these changes particularly with respect to
Shareholder mformation being farr, balanced
and understandable The producuion of the
Annual Report 15 a complex task whech 15
completed 1n a relatively compressed timeframe
50 we established a robust process for the
review and approval of its contents in
accordance with the new requirements

The Committee recognises that independant
and effective auditors are essential The internal
Audit plan 15 nsk based and the Head of
Internal Audit has dual reporting hines to the
CFO and me In 2013 the routine rotation of
bath of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP's (Pw()
engagement partners took place and the
Commuttee conducted a thorough review of
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and processes are embedded mn the
responsibilives of line managers,

+ Budgeting - there is an annual planning
process whereby operating budgets for the
following financial year are prepared and
reviewed by the Board Long-term business
plans are also prepared and reviewed by the
Board on an annual basrs,

+ Management Reporting — there is a
comprehensive system of managerment
reporting The financial perfarmance of
operating units and RB as a whole are
monitored against budget on a monthly
basis and are updated by penodic forecasts
Area and functional executves also perform
regular strategic reviews with thew
management teams, whch incorporate an
assessment of key nsks and opportumities,

-

Risk Management - as part of the ongoing
nsk and control process, operating umts
review and evaluate risks to the achievement
of business objectives and the Board reviews
those significant risks which might impact

on the actvevement of corporate objectives
Mitigating controls together with any
necessary actions, are dentified and
implemented A summary of the most
significant nisks faced by RB is included in the
Strategic Report on pages 17 to 19 and fuller
details of RB's relationships and principal risks
are set out on pages 93 to 100,

Operating Unit Controls - each operating
unit mamntams a systemn of internal controt
and nsk managemeant which 1s appropriate to
its own busiess environment Such cantrols
must be i accordance with Group pehcres
and include management authorisation
processes to ensure that all commitments
on behalf of RB are entered into only after
appropniate approval In particular, there s

a structured process for the appraisal and
authonsation of all matenal capital projects,

Pw( s effectiveness and value for money

The Commuttee is aware of the Competition
Commussion’s and EU s recommendations on
audit tender and rotation and our current
expectation 1s that an audt tender process will
caommence no later than 2019

Throughout the year the Commuttee facused
on providing reassurance to the Board on the
integrity of the Company’s financial reporting
internal controts framework and nsk
management processes The Committee has
met with operattonal business management
including local management when the Board
visited China

This will be my last report to Shareholders and
I should especially ike to thank Andre and
Warren for their personal contnbutions and
dedication to the work of the Committee

Kenneth Hydon
Charrman of the Audit Com

+ Comphance Controls - the Group
maintains a comphance control programme
that includes an mdependent and
anonymous whistleblower reporting system,
systematic reviews by the mnternal audit
function, annual management reviews and
personal compliance certification as well as
specalised training in specfic areas and
functions of the business Management
provides the Board with regular updates on
the compliance controls of the Group and
considers recommendations for contimuous
improvement, and

* Monitonng - the effectiveness of the
system of mternal control and risk
management s momitored reqularly through
a combination of management review
self-assessment, independent review through
qualty assurance, environment, health &
safety and regulatory audits, as well as
independent internal and externat audt The
results of internal and external audit reviews
are reported to and considered by the Audit
Commuttee, and actions are taken to address
any significant control matters identified
The Audit Commuttee also approves annual
internal audit plans and s responsible for
performing the ongoing review of the system
of internal control and risk management on
behalf of the Board

The Board confirms that reviews of the
appropnateness and effectveness of the system
of internal control and risk management
throughout the financial year and up to the
date of approval of the Annual Report and
Accounts have been satisfactonly completed in
compliance with provision C 2 1 of the Code

The Company 1s comphant with DTR 7 2 6 and
the information s included n the section on
Takeover Directive on pages 21 10 22

Aucht Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three
Independent Non-Executive Directors  Kenneth
Hyden, FCMA, FCCA, FCT, Chairman since 16
Novernber 2006, (whom the Board has deemed
independent notwithstanding he has served ten
years on the Board), André Lacroix, Diploma,
ESCP and Warren Tucker, BSc Economics &
Accounting, MBA ACA Kenneth Hydon was
CFO of Vodafone Group plc until July 2005 and
is Chawman of the Audit Commuttees of both
Pearson plc and Merlin Entertainments PLC,
and was in the role at Tesco plc until 2013
Warren Tucker was CFQ of Cobham pic untd
May 2013 Therefore they both have relevant
and recent financial expenence RB's Auditors,
Head of Interna! Audit and CFO attend
meetings and have regular private meetings
with and drrect access to the Commutiee The
Chairman and CEQ attended some of the
meetings and other sentor management attend
Audit Commiitee meetings by invitation
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Report of the Aucit Committee (continued)

The Audit Commuttee

*

-

Monitors the adequacy and effectiveness of
the system of internal control,

Reviews compliance procedures and RBs
overall nsk framework {including the Group's
whistleblowsing arrangements),

Considers reports on Internal Audit's
actvities sigificant tegal claims and
regulatory ssues,

Reviews the intenm and full year financiai
statermnents before submission to the
full Board,

Makes secommendations to the Board
regarding the Auditors and ther terms
of appoiniment,

Reviews and morutors the Auditors’
independence and services supphed and the
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process, and

Considers operational nisk and control
processes covering assurance praviders,
geographecal and furictional areas

During 2013 the Audit Committee

-

Met four times,

Considered detaled nsk and control reviews
for selected Group major risks covernng
bustness transformation, regulatory
comphance, data privacy, business continuity
planming, lega! and tax disputes gquality
assurance and bribery,

Reviewed local country and regional nsks and
control status dunng the overseas Board visii,

Reviewed the approach to delier an upgrade
to the Group's ERP and monitored delivery of
that programme,

Approved updates to the Finance Policy
Manual and the Treasury policies,

Monitored whistleblowing activities and
reviewed the polcy,

Reviewed and updated the pohcy for
non-audit fees to the Auditors and
rmontored its apphication,

Reviewed the Audit Commiitee terms of
reference and the annual 'Standing Agenda’,

Reviewed the work and effectiveness of the
Internal Audit function,

Approved the terms of engagement and
reviewed the strategy, scope and
effectiveness of the Auditors,

Reviewed and discussed with the Audiiors
the findings of therr work dunng the year,

Recewved regular techmical updates to keep
abreast of changes in financial reporting and
governance matters, and

Reviewed the performance of the Audi
Committee aself and agreed actions for
dealing with the workfoad

The Audit Committee has considered the
following areas of sigmificant judgement,
complexity or estimation i relatron to the 2013
Group finanaial statements

* Acguisition accounting —~ valuation of
acquired intangible assets
in May 2013 the Group obtained regulatary
approval for a three-year collaboration
agreement with Bristol-Myers Squibb in
certamn parts of Latun America The
Commuittee reviewed papers prepared by
management addressing the accounting
treatment applied and the assumptions
adopted in determineng the fair value of
assets and habilities acquired including
goodwill, the three-year collaboration
agreement itangible asset and the prepaid
option Based on this review the Committee
15 comfortable that accounting for the
transaction as a business combination under
IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations s
appropnate and the assumptions apphed
are reascnable

* Tax provisiomng
The Group from time to time 15 Involved in
disputes in relation to ongoing tax matters i
a number of junsdictions around the wortd
where the approach of the authorries s
particularly difficult to predict Where
approprate provisions are made based on
an assessment of each case The level of
provisioning for these tax investigations 15 an
1ssue where management and tax judgement
15 important The Committee has debated
with management the key judgements
made, including relevant professional advice
that may have been recewed in each case,
and considers the tax provisioning levels to
be appropriate

In addition, the Audit Commutiee has
considered a number of other matters in
relation to the 2013 Group financial
staternents, including

* Impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite
fife intanguble assets
Management performs an annual
imparrment review for goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefimte lives,
inciuding the Group’s Powerbrands This 1s
important given the significance of these
items to the Group’s Balance Sheet Key
Judgements include estimates of future
busmness performance and cash generation
discount rates and long-term growth rates
{refer to note 9 of the Group Financial
Staternents for further detad) The
Committee has reviewed management’s
analysis, including an assessment of the
discount rates used the appropriateness
of spearfic nsk factors apphed to indwidual
cash generating units and the adequacy
of sensitivities applied As a result of this
review the Committee 1s comfortable
with management’s conclusion that no
imparment 1s fequired and that the indefinite
Wfe of the Group's Powerbrands and vanous

other brand intangible assets continues to
be appropriate

o [egal hability provisioning
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group has recognised certain exceptional
legal costs relatmng to historcal regulatory
investigations by various government
authorities totalkng £225m The level
of provisioning for these regulatory
investigations 1s a matter wheré management
and legal judgement 15 rnportant The
Committee has discussed with management
the key judgements made, including relevant
legat advice recenved

+ Exceptional items
The Comrmttee has considered the
presentation of the Group financial
statements and i particular, the
presentation of exceptional items and
the items included within such measures
The Committee has discussed this with
management and agrees that the
presentation provides mare meaningful
information to Shareholders about the
underlying performance of the Group

The Audit Committee notes that trade spend
was an area of focus for the Auditors It 1s the
Committee’s view that whist trade spend 15 a
sigrificant expense for the Group and involves
an element of judgement, management
operates an appropnate control environment
which minimises the risks in this area The
Audrtor's risk assessment 15 made before
consideration of the control environment In
addition, there have been no significant items
or I1ssues which have ansen dunng the year in
relation to trade spend which would need to
be brought to the attention of the Audit
Committee and, 25 a result the Committee
does not consider that this 1s a significant issue
for disclosure in its report

Audstors and Auditor Independence

PwC and its predecessor firms have been the
sole Auditors of RB since 2000, the year after
the merger of Reckitt & Colman plc and
Benckiser N V in 1999, and the Company’s
Auditors since its formation in 2007 At the
time of the merger, PwC were the Auditors of
Reckitt & Colman plc and Deloitte LLP were the
Auditors of Benckiser NV Post merger the
Audit Commuttee undertook a review and
subsequently selected Pw(C as auditor for the
Group for the December 2000 year end In the
opinion of the Audit Commitiee, the
relationshup with the Auditors works well and
the Commutiee rerains satished with theur
independence and effectiveness It has
accordingly, not considered 1t necessary to
require the firm to tender for the audit work
although thss 1s kept under review annually

It 15 a reguirement that the audit partner
responsible for audit 15 rotated every five years
and the lead audit partner was rotated-off
during 2013 Our current expectation 15 that we
will commence preparations for a competitve
tender no later than 2019 There are no
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Report of the Audit Committee {continued)

contractual obligatons restrnicting the
Company's choice of Auditors

RB has a formal policy in place to safeguard
Auditor independence The Audit Committee
and the CFO keep the independence and
objectwity of the Auditors under review The
Committee reviews the nature and level of
non-audit services underiaken by the Auditors
duning the year to satisfy itself that there 15 no
mmpact on therr independence The Board
recognises that i certain circumstances the
nature of the advice required may make it
more tirnely and cost effective to appoint

the Auditors who already have a good
understanding of RB

D: Remuneration

D 1 THE LEVEL AND COMPONENTS

OF REMUNERATION

The Company's compensation plan 15
performance-diven and designed to foster
RB's innovative and entrepreneurial culture
Following the 1999 merger of Reckitt &
Colman plc and Benckrser N v the Board set
out to create a truly multinational Company
and, as a result of this approach, people of
many nationalities work with local citizens
n each location in which RB operates

The level and components of remuneration
across RB s designed to facilitate giobal
mobility and dversity A simikar employment
contract 1s used and compensation rules
apply equally for RB'S Top400 managers

in afl markets Salary ranges are based on
global benchmarking and RB’s annual ¢ash
banus structure, long-terrm incentives and
other benefits are offered across

operating companies

Details on the Company’s remuneration
strategy and the Directors’ compensation
arrangements are set out in the Directors’
Remuneratien Report on pages 34 to 46

D 2 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
PROCEDURE

The Remuneration Committee chaired by Judith
Sprieser comprnised four members until June
2013 when it reduced to three following
Graham Mackay’s retirement from the Board
due to ill health As at August 2013 Jjudith
Sprieser had served ten years on the Board
Nonetheless pursuant to Code provisionB 11,
the Board has determined that in its optrion
ludith Sprieser remawns independent Richard
Cousins 15 considered independent under the
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The Company s pubhshed policy on non-audit
fees states that, on an annual basis, non-audit
fees should not normally be in excess of 50%
of the Group’s external audit and audit related
{ees on an aggregate basts The Board confirms
that, for the year ended 31 December 2013,
non-audit fees were less than 50% of the audit
and audit related fees

Following a recommendation by the Audit
Comemuttee, and in accordance with section
489 of the 2006 Act, a resolution proposing
the re-appointment of PwC as the Companys
Auditors will be put to the Shareholders at the
AGM RB does not indemnify its Auditors

Code The third member of the Committee
15 the Chairman Adnan Beflamy, who was
independent on appointment

Detailed information on the Committee
and its actevities 1s set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 34 1o 46

E Relations with Shareholders

E 1 RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board 15 committed to effective
commumications between the Company and its
Shareholders The Executive Directors and the
Director of Investor Relations meet regularly
with institutional Shareholders and finanaal
analysts to discuss matters relating to the
Company's business strategy and current
performance The Board receives reqular
monthly reports from the CEQ which include
updates on share price developments, major
buyers and sellers of shares, investors views
and analysts reports on the mdustry and

on the Company specifically Feedback on
presentations and roadshow meetings

with institutional investors 1s presented to
the Directors The investor relations
programme includes

* Formal presentattons of full year and half
year results and guarterly intenim
management statements,

« Regular meetings between institutional
tnvestors and senior management to ensure
that the invesior community receves a
balanced and complete view of RB's
performance, the issues faced by RB and
any 1ssues of concern to the mvestors,

Response to enguines from nstitutional
Shareholders through the Company’s investor
relations team and from retaill Shareholders
through the Company Secretary, and

The Auditors report t0 the Audit Committee
on the actions they take to comply with
professtonat and regulatory reguirements and
with best practice designed to ensure therr
independence from RB including perodic
rotation of the audit engagement partners
Details of non-audit services are set out in
note 4 on page 61

e A section dedicated to Shareholders on the
Company’s website

Over two days in November 2013 the
Company held an investor event with the twin
objectves of

» Demonstrating the sigmificant talent withun
RB's management team outside the CEO and
CFO, and

* Updating investors on the Company’s value
creation model and its ability to outperform
with particular focus on health and hygiene
Powermarkets and emerging markets

The Chairman s available to discuss governance
and strategy with major Shareholders should
such a dialogue be requested Durning the year
the Chairman hassed with Shareholders and
reported on these meetings to the Directors

The Company believes that it 15 important to
make key executives available, along with the
SID, if required, to discuss matters of concern
with 1ts Shareholders

E 2 THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM provides all Shareholders with an
opportunity to vote an the resclutions put to
them The AGM s used as the main opportunity
for the Directors to meet directly with private
nvestors 1t s attended by the Directors and all
Shareholders present are given the opportunity
to ask guestions of the Chatrman, the Chairs of
Board Committees and the Board as a unit

All resclutions are voted on by way of poll so
that each share has one vote The results of the
poll are released to the Stock Exchange and
pubhished on the website shortly after the AGM
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Sfatement of Directors’

Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report, the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulattons

Company law requires the Direclors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year
Under that law the Directors have prepared the
Group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and
the parent Company financial statements 1n
accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom
Accounting Standards} and appliczble law In
prepanng the Group financial statements, the
Directors have also elected to comply with
IFRSs, 1ssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (1ASB) Under company law
the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they
gve a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and the Company and of the
profit or loss of the Group for that penod

In prepanng these financial statements the
Directors are required 10

¢ Select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently

» Make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent

» State whether IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and IFRSs 1ssued by IASB
and apphcable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed subject to any materal
departures disclosed and explained in the
Group and parent Company tinancial
statements respectively

« Prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis unless it s inappropriate
to presume that the Company wall continue
in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explan the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any tume the financial position of
the Company and the Group and enable them
1o ensure that the financial statements and the
Diectors Remuneration Report comply with
the Compantes Act 2006 and as regards the
Group financial statements, Articte 4 of the
1AS Regutation They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and
the Group and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detecton of fraud
and other irrequlantres

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and ntegrty of the Company’s
wabsite Legislation in the United Kingdom

governing the preparation and dissermination of
financial statements may differ from legislation
tn other jursdictions

The Directors consider that the Annual Report
and Financial Staternents, taken as a whole, 1s
far, batanced and understandable and provides
the informatton necessary for Shareholders to
assess a company’s performance, business
mode! and strategy

Each of the Directors, whose names and
functions are listed on page 20 confirms that,
to the best of his/her knowledge

« The Group financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance wath IFRSs as
adopted by the EU and IFRSs as 1ssued by the
1ASB, give a true and fair view of the assets
hiabil:ties, financial position and profit of the
Group, and

» The Report of the Directors includes a fair
review of the development and performance
of the husiness and the position of the
Group, together with a descnption of the
principal nsks and uncentainties that it faces

Gaing Concern

The Groups business actrvities together

with the factors likely to affect its future
development performance and position are
set out In the Strateqic Report on pages 1 to
19 The financial position of the Group and
Company its cash flows liguidity position and
borrowing facities, as well as the Group s
obyectives, palicies and processes for managing
its capreal, its financial nsk management
objectives, detalls of 1ts financial instruments
and hedging activities, and s exposure to
credit nisk and higuidity risk are described in the
Strategic Report on page 19 and in note 14 to
the Group finan¢ia! statements

The Group has considerable financial resources
together with a diverse customer and supplier
base across different geographical areas and
categornies As a consequence, the Directors
believe that the Group and Company are well
placed to manage their business risks
successully despite the current uncertain
economic cutlook

The Directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Group and Company have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future Thus they continue
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
in prepanng the annua! financial statements in
accordance with the FRC’s 'Going Concern and
Liquidity Risk Gurdance For Directors of UK
Companies 2009° This statement s also made
to fulfil the requirements of Listing Rutes
986R(Nand9 8 10R(M and C 12 of

the Code

Disclosure of Information to Auditors
The Directars, having made appropriate
enquinies, state that

1 So far as each Director 1§ aware there 15
no relevant audit information of which the
Company’s Auditors are unaware, and

2 Each Drrector has taken all the steps that
hefshe ought to have taken as a Director
to make him/herself aware of any relevant
audrt information and to establish that
the Company’s Auditors are aware of
that information

By Order of the Board

Ehzabeth Richasrdson
Company Secretary
Reckitt Benckiser Group pic
103-105 Bath Road
Slough, Berkshire 511 3UH

Company registration number 6270876
7 March 2014

RB Annual Report 2013 33




Governance & Remuneration Directors Remuneration Report

HEALTY Y NYGHENE HOME

Directors’ Remunera

This Directors’ Remunearation Report has been
prepared m accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of
the Large and Medum-sized Comparues and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) {Amendment)
Regulations 2013 The Report meets the
requirements of the UK Listing Authority’s
Usting Rules and the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules In this Report we descnbe
how the principles of good governance relating
to directors remuneration, as set out in the

UK Corporate Governance Code {September
2012} (the Code), are applied In practice

The Remuneration Commitiee confirms that
throughout the financial year the Company has
comphed wrth these governance rules and best
practice provisions

Introduction

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me
great pleasure to present to you the Directors
Remuneration Report for the year ended

31 December 2013 for which we will be
seeking approval at the Annual General
Meeting {AGM) on 7 May 2014 In line with
the new reporting regulations that came Into
effect on 1 Qctober 2013, this Directors’
Remuneration Report 1s sphit into three parts
this Annual Statement, a Policy Report (subyject
to a binding Sharebolder vote at the 2014
AGM) and an Annual Report on Remuneration
{subject to an adwisory vote) | and my
colleagues on the Remuneration Committee
hope that the new layout of the Remuneration
Report 15 clear, transparent and helpful, and
that we can count on your support for our
Remuneration Policy and its implementation
dunng the year

Context for Executive Remuneration at RB
The Commuttee continues to believe that its
approach to remuneration, although different
in some respects to typical FTSE practice, 1s an
impartant factor m RB's success supporting a2
strong performance culture and delivering
significant benefits to all Shareholders Our
approach to remuneration reflects the global
nature of our business Qur management team
15 multinational, 15 globally mobite and we
compete for talent agamst a peer group of
global FMCG companies Central to our pay
philosophy are the principles of

* Simphaty,
« Shareholder alignment, and
« Pay for performance

We reinforce our philosophy by positioning
Executive Director fixed pay (base salary,
pensian and benefits} around median market
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levels, but providing Executive Directors with
incentve opportunities strongly inked to
performance to enable above-market pay
opportunities for above-market performance
in terms of growth, profitability and
Shareholder returns

MAIOR DECISIONS ON, AND CHANGES TO,
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
DURING THE YEAR

The Structure of 2014 LTIP Awards
{granted in December 2013)

During the first quarter of 2013, | held
meetings with a number of our largest
Sharehoiders on the subject of executive
remuneration The Committee and the Board
of Dwrectors as a whole take very senously the
views and feedback of our Sharehelders, and
although the majonty of Shareholders are
strongly supportive of our philosophy and
policy on remuneration, we did receive some
comments and concerns over our long-term
incentve plan (LTIF), in particular, the sole use
of adjusted earnings per share (EPS), the EPS
performance range, and the vesting level for
achieving threshold performance

Followng a review of our LTIP 1n response
to this feedback, the Commitiee agreed to
make two changes to awards granted in
December 2013

* A wdening of the performance range for
EPS compound annual average growth
{CAAG) from 6%-9% pa t0 6%-10% p a

* A reduction in the threshold vesting level
from 40% to 20% of maximum

The Committee feels these changes reinferce
our philosophy of above-market pay only for
above-market performance The new maximum
vesting level of an EPS CAAGof 10% pa 5
equivalent to a top quintile (1 e above 80th
percentile) level of performance In addition, we
have maintained a threshold EPS CAAG target
of 6% p a which 15 above market medran
performance, but reduced the level of vesting
from 40% to 20% which substantially reduces
the value of the LTIP to participants at this
minimum level of performance

The number of shares awarded to the CEQ in
December 2013 was increased from 200,000 in
December 2012 to 240 000 The number of
options awarded remained unchanged from
previous years The increase in the number

of shares was considered appropriate in order
to recognise the strong performance of the
CEQ since lis appointment and still remamns
significantly below the LTI awards that were
made to the previcus CEQO Given the changes

outhned above, the CEO will only receive value
from this additional benefit if truly exceptional
performance 1s delivered

These changes are covered more fully in the
Annual Report on Rermuneratton

Some of our Shareholders expressed a
preference for €PS to be supplemented by

a second measure, such as return on capital
employed 1n our LTIP The Committee
considered this feedback in depth and
concluded, on balance that it wished to
masntamn the simphcity and consistency of the
LTIP The Committes believes that the heavy
weighting of the long-term vanable equity
component of pay for Executives, together with
our demanding executwe share ownership
requirements (equivalent to up to 30x salary)
reduce the need for a second measure since the
proportion of personal net worth that the
Executive Directors have invested in Company
shares already strongly motivates them to act in
a manner consistent with the best interests of
our Shareholders

I hope that this Remuneration Report achieves
the aim of improved transparency and clarty
under the new reporting requirements, and
that we can count on your suppert at the
forthcoming AGM for both our Remuneration
Policy and the decsicns we have taken as a
Commuttee duning the year

Judith Sprieser
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy

This section of the report sets out the Reruneration Pohey for Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors, which shareholders will be asked
to approve at the 2014 AGM on 7 May 2014 The Committee intends that the pelicy wili come into effect on this date, if approved by Shareholders,
and be effective for three years

A summary of the Directors Remuneration Policy 15 summarised in the table below
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION POLICY TABLE

Component purpose and

hink to strategy Operation Opportumty Performance measures
Vartable Remuneration {incentives)
Annual bonus Financial targets are set by the Commuttee at the | Target cpportunity Performance will be assessed

To drive strong
financial performance
with significant reward
for over achievement
of annual targets

start of the year, with referenca to prevailing
growth rates in RB's peer group and across the
heaith care and FMCG industries mare broadly

At the end of the year, the Committee determinas
the extent to which these have been achieved

Performance 15 assessed on an annual basis, using
a mutuplicative combination of the payouts for
performance against each of the financial targets

Bonus payouts are In ¢ash

Under the terms and conditions of the plan, the
Company has the nght to seek redress and
damages from any individual who has been found
to have breached the Company’s Code of
Conduct This inctudes the Company's nght to
require an ndridual to repay any costs incurred
through a breach of the Code of Conduct from
any bonus payment made in the year the breach/
costs were ncurred

The Commuttee has discretion to adjust the
formulaic bonus outcomes both upwards and
downwards {including to zero and capped at the
maamurm payout) 10 ensure alignment of pay with
performance, e g n the event performance 15
impacted by unforeseen arcumstances outside of
management control

CEO 120% of salary
CFO 90% of salary

Maximum opportunity
3 57x Target

{CEQ 428% of salary)
(CFC 321% of salary)

against the growth in one or
mare key financial metncs of
the business determined on an
annuat basis

The weighting between
different financial metrics will
be determined each year
according to business prionties

For threshold performance,
the bonus payout will be ni!

Further detasls, including

the performance measures
for the current financeal year,
are disclosed in the Annual
Report on Remuneratton

LTip

{share options and
performance shares)
To ncentvise and
reward long-term
performance, and
ahgn the interests of
Executive Directors

The LTIP compnises grants of share options and
awards of performance shares (based on a fixed
number) which vest subject to the achievement
of stretching performance targets

The LTIP has a performance period of at least
three years and a minimum vesting period
of three years

The Comrmuttee calibrates LTIP share
award and option grant sizes as a
fixed number, with periodic
adjustments to ensure that the fair
value of an Executive Director s total
remuneration 1s approphately
positioned refative to peers

The maximum award to

Vesting of the LTIP s subject
to continued employment

and the achievement of
stretching adjusted diluted EPS
growth targets

Threshold performance will
result in 20% of maximum
vesting The vesting lavel will

with those of The LTIP apportunity and the combination of share
Shareholders optrons and performance shares are reviewed any Indwidual in one year increase on a shding scale
will be 300,000 shares and from this threshold to 100%
annually with reference to market data and the
600,000 options vesting for Stretch levels
associated cost to the Company, calculated using of performance
an expected value methodology Details of the LTIP opportunity p
in respact of each year will be Further details, including
The performance condition 15 reviewed before disclosed n the Annual Report the performance targets
each award cycle to ensure it remains
on Remuneration attached to the tTIP in
appropriately stretching
Owidends do not accrue respect of each year, are
The Committee has discretion to adjust the on unvested share awards or on disdosed in the Annual Report
formulaic LTIP outcomes to improve the alignment on Remuneration
shares underlying options before
of pay with value creation for Shareholders to they are exercrsed
ensure the outcome s a fair reflection of the &Y
performance of the Company
Sharesave An HMRC approved scheme where employees Savings capped at the limit set nfa
To encourage the {including Executive Directors) may save a monthty by HRMC

ownershup of RB shares

amount over three years Options granted at up to
a 20% discount
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION POLICY TABLE (CONTINUED)

Component purpose and

link to strategy Operation Opportunity Performance measures
Base Salary and Benefits
Base Salary Base salanes are reviewed annually typically with Salarres for Executive Directors n/a
To enable the total effect from 1 January shouid typically be around the
median for competitors
rp;ccrt?'?n?etr?t?rfgon Salary levels/increases take account of o comp
, Salaries in respect of the year under
retention ‘ E?“T,iit,l::;gfra:;ce,g\uthecg;mﬁ;:yS review (and for the following year)
internateonal chj)m gnlespc;f a sureular gnze are disclosed in the Annual Report
P an Remuneration
and scope of operations
« Indwidual performance To avoud setting expectations of
p Executive Directors and other
» Salary increases awarded across the Group employees, ng maximum salary 1s
as a whole set under the Remuneration Policy
Salary increases for Executive
Directors will be aligned with those
of the wider workforce which take
into account performance
Increases may be made above this
level to take account of indwidual
carcumstances, which may include
* increase in the size or scope of
the role or responsibilities
*+ Increase to reflect the mdwidual’s
development and performance in
role For example where a new
incumbent 1s appointed on a
below market salary
Where Increases are awarded in
excess of the wider employee i
population, the Committee
will provide rationale in the relevant
years Annual Report on
Remuneration
Pension Executive Directors may receve contributions inte | CEO 30% of pensionable pay n/a
To provide appropriate | the RB Executive Pension Scheme, a defined CFG 25% of pensionable pay
levels of retirement contribution scheme, a cash allowance or
benefit a combination thereof
Base salary 15 the only element of remuneration
that 1s pensionable
Benefits Executve Directors receve benefits which consist | None of the existing Executive n/a

To provide benefits
comparable to those
that would be provided
for an eguivatent
posttion elsewhere

primardy of the provision of a company car/
allowance and health care, although can include
other benefits that the Committee deerns
appropniate, for example the cost of preparnng tax
returns or home leave

Relocation allowances and international transfer
related benefits may also be paid where required
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Directors recerved total taxable
henefits exceeding 10% of salary
dunng the last three financial years,
and 1 15 not anticipated that the
cost of benefits prowded will exceed
this level In the financial years over
which ths poiicy will apply

The Commuttee retamns the
discretion 1O approve a higher cost
In exceptionat crcumstances

{e g relocation) or in circummsiances
where factors outside the
Company's control have changed
matenally (e g mncreases in medical
coverage inflatron)

Benefits in respect of the year under
review are disclosed in the Annual
Report on Remuneration




p
Governance & Remuneration Directors’ Remuneration Report 7'

NOTES TO THE POLICY TABLE

Payments from Existing Awards

Executve Directars are ehgible to receve payment from any award made prior to the approval and implementatton of the Remuneration Policy detailed
in this Report, 1 e before 7 May 2014 Detanls of these awards are disclosed 1n the Annual Report on Remuneration

Performance Measure Selectton and Approach to Target Setting

The measures used under the annual bonus are selected to reflect the Group's main financial priorities for any given financial year With regard to the
LTIP. the Committee regularly reviews the performance measure to ensure that 1t aligns well with the Company's strategy and with our Shareholders’
interests EPS 15 considered the most appropriate LTIP performance measure for a number of reasons

* |t focuses Executives on real profit growth which is strongly aligned wath value creation at RB,
* It prowides a well-recognised and accepted measure of the Company's undertying financial performance, and
+ It 1s a measure that the plan participants can directly impact and 1s easily measurable

EPS 55 measured on an adjusted diluted basss, as shown 1n the Group's financial statements, as this provides an independently venfiable measure
of performance However the Remuneration Commuttee maintains the discretion to make adjustments to the measure if this is considered to be
apprapnate Any adjustments will be dsclosed in the Annual Report on Remuneration

Targets applying to the bonus and LTIP are reviewed annually, based on a number of internal and external reference points Bonus targets take into
account prevalling growth rates in RB's peer group and across the health care and FMCG industries more broadly LTIP targets reflect industry context
expectations of what will constitute performance at the top of the peer group, and facters specific to the Company

Remuneration Policy for other Employees
RB's approach to anpuat salary reviews is consistent acress the Group, with consideration given to the level of expenence responsibibty, individual
performance and salary fevels for comparable rafes in comparable comparies

Senior employees are ahgible to participate i1 an annual bonus scheme with similar metncs to those used for the Executive Directors Opportunihies and
speafic performance conditions vary by organisational level, with business area-specific metrics incorporated where appropriate

Senior managers, who compnse of the Top400 emplovees are eligible to participate n the LTIP on broadly simelar terms as the Executive Directors,
although award sizes vary by orgarusational level In addition, Senior Executives who compnse of the Top40 emplayees, are also required to build up
significant shareholdings n RB of between 30-50,000 shares, representing ¢ Bx base salary

All UK employees are eligible to participate in the Company’s Sharesave plan on identical terms

Shareholder Alignment

The Commustee recognises the imporiance of ahigning Executive Directors’ and Shareholder interests through executives building up sigrificant shareholdings
in the Company Executwve Directors are expected 1o acguire 3 significant number of shares over a penod of eight years and retain these until retirement
from the Board of Directors The shareholding requirement for the CEQ 15 600,000 shares and for the CFO 1s 200,000 shares

Details of the Executive Directors’ current personal shareholdings are provided in the Annual Report on Remuneration on page 46

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION
Non-Executive Directors do not have service agraements, but are engaged on the basis of a letter of appointment in hne with the UX Corporate
Governance Code (September 2012) guidelines, alf Directors are subject to re-election annually at the AGM

it 15 the policy of the Board of Directors that Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any of the Company’s bonus, share option
long-term incentive or pension schemes An element of the basic fee 15, however, paid in RB shares

Detalls of the policy on fees paid to our Non-Executive Directors are set out in the table below

Component and objeciive Approach of the Company
Fees (cash The fees paid to Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board of Directors, with recommendations provided by
and shares) the Charman and CEQ The fees of the Chairman are determuned by the Remuneration Commuttee

To attract and retain
Non-Executive
Directors of the highest
calibre with broad
commercial experience | Fee levels may be reviewed annually, with any adjustments effective 1 January Fees are reviewed by taking into account
relevant to the external advice on best practice and compettive levels, in particular at FTSE 30 and FTSE 100 compames Time commitment
Company and responsibility are also taken into account when reviewing fees

Addttional fees are payable for acting as Deputy Chairman, Senior Independent Non-Executive Director and as Chairman
of the Audit and Remuneration Committees Members of the Audit and Remuneration Commuittees also receve an
additional fee

Chairman and Non-Executive fees are delivered partly in cash and partly in RB shares which must be held until retirement
from the Company

The fees paid to the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors in respect of the year under review {and for the following year),
including the split between cash and shares are disddosed in the Annual Report on Remuneration

Aggregate fees are himited to £1 5m by the Company’s Articles of Association
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SCENARIO ANALYSIS
The charts below provide an estimate of the potential future reward opportunities for the Executve Directors, and the potentral sphit between the different
elements of remuneration under three different performance scenanos "Minimum’, ‘On-target’ and ‘Maximum’

Potential reward opportunities are based on RB's Remuneration Policy, applied to 2014 base salanies The annual bonus and LTIP are based on the maximum
opportunity levels applying for FY 2014 Benefits are based on those benefits paid in respect of FY 2014

Note that the LTIP awards granted In a year do not normally vest until the third anniversary of the date of the AGM which follows the third annwersary
of grant and the projected values exclude the impact of share price movement

Rakesh Kapoor, CEO Adnan Hennah, CFO
im £m
6% 0% 4% 14% 35% 51%
Maximum . 13%).5] Maximum - @:ﬂ
24% 1% 55% N%  29% 30%
On-target . &y On-target - @
100% 100%
Minimum l 116 Minimum
0 4 8 12 16 0 0 1 2 3 q 5 6
. Salary, pension and benefits Annual bonus D Long term incentives (share options and performance shares)

Valuation Assumptions
The "Mimimum’ scenano reflects base salary pension and benefits {1 e fixed remuneration), being the only elements of the Executive Directors’
remuneration package not linked to performance

The 'On-target scenano reflects fixed remuneration as above, plus target bonus payout (120% and 90% of salary for the CEO and CFO, respectively)
and LTIP threshold vesting at 20% of the maximum award leve!

The 'Maximum scenanio reflects fixed remuneration plus full payout under all incentives (428% and 321% of salary for the CEO and CFO respectively,
under the annual bonus, and full vesting of LTIP awards)

The value of performance shares and share options 1s based on the price at grant of £47 83 {11 December 2013} Share options are valued as 10% of
face value which has been calculated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model and assumptions aligned to the three-year performance pened

APPROACH TO RECRUITMENT REMUNERATION

External Appointment

In cases of hinng or appointing a new Executive Director from outside the Company, the Remuneration Commitiee may make use of all exsing
components of remuneration, as follows

Camponent Approach Award

Base salary The base salanes of new appointees will be determined by reference to relevant market
data expenence and skills of the indmdual, internal relatwities and therr current basec
salary Where new appointees have initial basic salaries set below market, the shortfall
to mechan may be managed with phased increases over a pertod of two or three years
subject to their development in the role

Benefits New appointees will be eligible to receve benefits which may include (but are not kmited
to) the prowiston of a company car or car allowance, health care and any necessary
relocation expenses tn line with cngoing Remuneration Policy

Pensicn New appointees will receive pension contributions and/or an equivalent cash supplement
in kne with existing executives as set out 1n the ongoing Remuneration Policy

Annual bonus The structure described n the policy table will apply to new appointees with the relevant Target 120% of salary
maxmum opportunity Multiple 3 57x Target

LTIP New appointees will be granted awards under the LTIP on the same terms as other 300 000 performance shares
exacutives, as descnbed in the policy table LTIP grants can take the form of performance

shares, share aptions or a combination of the two 600 000 share options

The overall hrmit of vanable remuneration will be as set out in the policy table taking into account the maximum value of the annual bonus and the
maximum awards of options and shares under the LTIP

The Committee may make an award n respect of a new appointment 10 buy out incentive arrangements forfeited on leaving a previous employer,
1e over and above the approach outlined in the table above In doing so the Commuittee wall consider relevant factors including any performance
conditions attached to these awards and the hkelhood of those conditions being met wath the intention that the value awarded would be no higher
than the expected value of the forfeited arrangements and made on a hike-for-like basss
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Internal Promotion

in cases of appomting a new Executve Director by way of Internat promotuion the palicy will be consistent with that for external appointees, as detaed
above Where an individual has contractual commitments made prior to their promotion to Executive Director level the Company will continue to
honour these arrangements even i stances where they would not otherwse be consistent with the prevailing Executive Director Remuneration Policy
at the time of appointment

Non-Executive Directors

In recruiting a new Non-Executive Director, the Remuneration Committee will use the policy as set out in the table on page 37 A base fee in ine with
the prevailing fee schedule would be payable for membership of the Board of Directors, with additonal fees payable for acting as Deputy Chairman
Senior independent Director as Chairman of the Audit and Remuneration Commuttees, and for bemng a member of the Audit and Remuneration
Comrmittees Fees will be delivered partly in cash and partly 1n RB shares 1o be held until retirement from the Company

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND EXIT PAYMENT POLICY

Executive Director service contracts, including arrangements for early termination, are carefully considered by the Commuttee In accordance with
general market practice, each of the Executve Directors has a roling service contract which is terminable on twelve months’ notice and this practice will
also apply for any new Executive Directors In such an event, the compensation comsnitments in respect of their contracts could amount to one years
remuneraton based on base salary, benefits in kind and pension nghts during the notice period Termination payments may take the form of payments
in fiew of notice Copiles of Executive Director service contracts are available to view at the Company s registered office

The Company's policy on any termination payments 15 to consider the circumstances on a case-by-case basis taking into account the refevant
contractual terms in the executive s service contract and the circumstances of the termunation The table below summarrses how awards under the
annual bonus and LTIP are typically treated in speafic arcumstances with the final treatment remaining subject to the Commuttee’s discretion as
pravided under the rules of the plan

Reason for cessation I Timing of vesting/payrnent Calcutation of vesting/payment

Annual Bonus

Voluntary resignation or Not applicable No bonus to be pad for the financial year
termination with ‘cause

All other circumstances At the end of the financial year Bonuses wall be paid only to the extent that
objectives set at the beginning of the plan year
have been met Any such bonus will be paid on
a pro rata basis up to the termunation date

e

Voluntary resignation or Not applicable Unvested awards lapse

termination with 'cause’

Hl-health, injury, permanent After the end of the financial year in which the cessation of The Committee determines whether and to
disability, retirement with the employment occurs, or at the discretion of the Commuttee, what extent outstanding awards vest based
agreement of the Company, after the end of the relevant performance penod on the extent to which performance condittons
redundanty or any other have been achieved (either to the end of the
reason that the Comrmttee financial year in which cessation of emptoyment
determines in its occurs, or over the full performance period)
absolute discretion and the proportion of the performance

penod worked

Death As soon as possible after date of death The Commuttee may disapply performance
conditions but wall reduce awards to reflect the
proportion of the performance penad worked

Change of control On change of control Awards wiil vest to the extent that any
performance conditions have been satisfied
(unless the Committee determines that the
performance condiions should not apply)
Awards will also be reduced pro rata 1o
take into account the proportion of the
performance period not completed, unless
the Committee deaides otherwise

Awards may alternatively be exchanged
for new equivalent awards in the acquuer,
where appropnate
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EXTERNAL APPCINTMENTS

With the approval of the Board of Directors in each case, and subject to the overnding requirements of the Company Executve Directors may accept
one external appointment as a Non-Executive Director of another company and retain any fees recenved Details of external appointments and the
associated fees receved are included in the Annual Report on Remuneration

CONSIDERATION OF CONDITIONS ELSEWHERE IN THE COMPANY

The Committee does not consuit with employees specifically on Executive Remuneration Policy However, the Company seeks to promote and maintain
good relations with employee representative bodies — induding trade unions and works counails — as part of its employee engagement sirategy, and
consults on matters affecting employees and business performance as reguired in each case by law and regulation in the junsdictions i which the
Company operates Although the Company does not consuk employees on executive remuneration the Committee 1s mindful of the salary increases
applying across the rest of the busmess in relevant markets when considening salaries for Executive Directors

CONSIDERATION OF SHAREHOLDER VIEWS

The Committee considers Shareholder views receved duning the year and at the Annual General Meeting each year, as well as guidance from Shareholder
representative bodies more broadly, m shaping Remuneration Policy The Committee Chairman speaks with a number of the Company’s largest Shareholders
on the subject of executive remuneration at least on an annual basis The majonty of Sharehelders are supportive of the Company’s philosophy and
pokcy on remuneration, and the Commuttee will continue 10 keep its Remuneration Policy under reqular review, 1o ensure It continues to reinforce the
Company's long-term strategy and aligns closely with Shareholders’ interests The Commuttee will continue to consult our major Shareholders before
making any significant changes to our Remuneration Policy

Annual Report on Remuneration
The fallowing section provides details of how our Remuneration Policy was implemented during the year ended 31 December 2013

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP IN 2013
As of 31 December 2013 the Remuneration Commuttee compnised three Non-Executive Directors

« Judith Sprieser (Chairman)
* Richard Cousins
¢ Adnan Bellamy

Graham Mackay was also a member of the Remuneration Committee until 12 June 2013 when he reured from the Board As at 31 December 2013,
Judith Sprieser has served ten years on the Board of Directors Nonetheless, pursuant to Code provision B 1 1, the Board of Directors has determined
that, in its opinion, fudith Sprieser remains independent Richard Cousins & considered independent under the Code Adrian Bellamy, Chairman of the
Company was independent on appointment but has served on the Board of Directors for more than nine years

The Commuttee’s purpose 15 to assist the Board of Directors in fulfiling its oversight responsibility by ensuring that Rermuneratron Policy and practices
reward fairly and responsibly, are linked to corporate and ndwidual performance, and take account of the generally accepted prinaiples of good
governance On behalf of and subject to approval by, the Board of Directors, the Committee primanly

* Sets and regularly reviews the Company's overall remuneration strategy,

« Determunes the general Remuneration Pohcy for Senior Executives, and

« In respect of the Charman the Executive Directors and members of the Executive Committee sets, reviews and approves |
+ Remuneration pohcies, including annuat bonuses and long-term incentives, |
* Indmdual remuneration and compensation arrangements, !
« Indvdual benefits including pension and superannuation arrangements, |
+ Terms and conditions of employment including the Executive Directors’ service agreement,
» Participation in any of the Company’s bonus and fong-term incentive plans, and
s The targets for any of the Company's performance-related bonus and long-term incentive plans

The Chairman of the Board of Directors and the CEQ are responsible for evaluating and making recommendations to the Board of Directors on the
remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors Members of the Rermuneration Committee and any person attending its meetings do not particpate
in any discussion or decision on ther own reruneration

The Remuneration Committee held four scheduled meetings and one addittonal meeting durning the year and details of members’ attendance at
meetings are provided In the Corporate Governance section on page 26

ADVISERS

Kepler Associates ('Kepler’) was onginally appomted by the Commuttee as independent adwisor in mid-2012 following a competitive tender process,
and was retained dunng 2013 The Committee undertakes due ddigence penodically to ensure that Kepler remains independent of the Company and
that the advice provided 1s impartial and objectve Kepler 15 a founding member and signatory of the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consultanis
details of which can be found at www remunerationconsultantsgroup com Dunng 2013, Kepler prowded support to the Commuttee 1n relation to short
and long-term incentive design  benchmarking executive remuneration structure and levels, and the consultation of Shareholders on remuneration
matters Kepler Associates does not advise the Company on any other matters Ther total fees for the provision of remuneration serices to the
Committee in 2013 were £215,935 on the basis of time and matenals
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SUMMARY OF SHAREHOLDER VOTING AT THE 2013 AGM
The following table shows the results of the advisory vote on the 2012 Remuneration Report at the 2013 AGM

Total number of votes % of votes cast
For (including discretionary} 421,057,300 81 77%
Against 93,881,447 18 23%
Total votes cast {excluding withheld votes) 514 938,747 100 0%
Votes withheld 11,173,126
Total votes cast (including withheld votes) 526 111,873

whilst the level of support for the Remuneration Report was broadly similar to that receved at the 2012 AGM (84%), the Committee recognises that
there remair a number of areas of concern for Shareholders, including incentive award opportunities and the use of a single long-term performance
measure (EPS growth) The Committee believes the existing incentve arrangements are simple reinforce our remuneration principles and align
Executives closely with the interests of our Sharehelders In addition, the requirement for Senior Executives to build up significant shareholdings in the
Company further supports our policy of executive alignment with Shareholders’ interests The Commuttee regularly reviews the incentive arrangements
for Executive Directors and, taking into account the feedback receved from our Sharehoiders decided to make a number of changes to LTIP awards
that were granted in December 2013 including a reduction in the threshold vesting level and an extension to the EPS performance range as explained
in the Remuneration Committee Chairman's letter

Single Total Figure of Remuneration for Executive Directors (audited)

The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration receved by each Executive Director for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
prior year The values of each element of remuneration are based on the actual value delivered, where known For the year ended 31 December 2012
the LTIP value has been restated to reflect the actual value of LTIP awards that vested on 2 May 2013 (at a share price of £46 77 rather than the
estimated value based on £37 99, being the three-month average share price to 31 December 2012}

Rakesh Kapoor Adran Hennah® Liz Doherty?

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 012

£ £ £ £ £ £

Base salary 832,000 800000 550,000 - 90,100 428,000
Taxable benefits? 38,585 31,000 20,992 - 4,044 24 000
Annual bonus 3,564,288 1,814,000 1,767,150 - 78,153 72900
LTiP 2,010.240°% 5,527 800 - - - -
Pension benefité 247,200 238,000 135,500 - 12,500 73000
Other - - 1,395,750° - - -
Total 5,692,313 8,410,800 3,869,392 — 184,797 1,254,000

' Adnan Hennah joined the Board of Directors as CFO on 12 February 2013 However he was employed by the Company from 1 January 2013 and the
figures above represent all payments from the commencement of hus employment Dunng 2013 Adnian Hennah served as a Non-Executive Drrector
of Reed Elsevier PLC, for which he retamned fees of £65,000 These fees are excluded from the table above

* Lz Doherty stepped down from the Board of Directors on 12 February 2013 but was maintained in employment with the Company until
1S March 2013 The figures above represent all payments until the cessation of her employment Details of payments made on cessation of
employment are provided on page 44

1 Taxable benefits consist primanly of company car or car allowance, health care and home leave
4 Cash payment for performance dunng the year See ‘Annual Bonus in respect of 2013 performance” on page 42 for details

= Reflects the esimated value of LTIP shares and options granted in December 2010 which are due to vest on 7 May 2014 at 40% These have been
valued using an average share price over Q4 of £46 88 See the relevant sections on pages 42 for further details

¢ Dunng the year Rakesh Kapoor participated in the RB Executive Pension Plan, a defined contribution scheme, in relation te which the Company
contributed £50 000 :n the year (2012 £50 000 for Rakesh Kapoor and Liz Doherty) The Company also paid Executive Directors a cash allowance
which amounted to £197,200 and £135,500 for Rakesh Kapoor and Adnan Hennah respectively in combination these payments reflect the fufl
penswon provision outhned i the policy table (2012 £188 000 for Rakesh Kapoer and £23,000 for Liz Doherty)

7 ncludes a sign-on award of £200,000, pard on appointment partially to replace the value of deferred bonus awards at his previous employer Value
also indudes a cash lump sum equal in value to 25 000 RB shares of £1,195,750, the net amount cf which has been used to purchase shares which
are retained as part of the Executive share ownership ebhgation
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INCENTIVE QUTCOMES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 {AUDITED)

Annual Bonus in Respect of 2013 Performance

The performance measures attached to the 2013 annual cash bonus plan were net revenue and net income growth Asin 2012, target performance
was calibrated to deliver a bonus of 120% and 90% of salary for the CEQ and CFO respectively, with bonus payrments worth up to 3 57x these target
amounts (equivalent 1o 428% of salary for the CEQ and 321% of salary for the CFO) available for truly exceptional performance Performance under
each of the measures 1s combined multiplicatively such that Threshold performance would deliver zero bonus whilst Stretch performance would deliver
3 57x target bonus

The net revenue and net mcome targets set at the start of the year (not disclosed as we consider them to be commercially sensitive) took into account
the fact that generics for Suboxone tablets entered the US market in late February 2013, and were anticipated to have 3 matenal impact on the revenue
and profitability of the RB Pharmaceuticals business Despite the challenges faced within RB Pharmaceuticals the Group has delivered exceptional
performance, by continuing to grow the core business and maintaimng market share within RB Pharmaceuticals

« Excluding RB Pharmaceuticals, net revenues have increased 7% based on a constant exchange rate and 5% on a hke-for-like basis These are well
above the general market growth rates This growth has been led by our new strategy to dnve health and hygiene Powerbrands together with our
focus on 16 Powermarkets

« Excluding RB Pharmaceuticals, adjusted operating profit has also increased by 7% based on a constant exchange rate, with margins increasing to
23 6%, exceeding targets

+ Our volume film market share for total buprenorphine prescriptions in the US has been maintained at 68% since the faunch of generic tablets which
demonstrates an outstanding performance despite huge challenges being faced in thss area

£xcellent progress has been made with our acquired businesses The effective ongoing integration of Schiff and effective collaboration agreements
with BMS and Guilong has proven again RBs strength to acquire high quality businesses and delivering superior shareholder value

* We have also debivered a significant gross margmn expansion of +150 bps and net working capital improvements of £163m to minus £863m
= This strong performance has resulted in a dividend payment which s 2% above that delivered fast year

Based on performance measures against the targets, but also supported by the overall financial results putkned above, the Committee has decided to
make an annual bonus award of 428% of base salary to the CEO and 321% of base salary to the CFO, equivalent to 3 57x target bonus

CEO's 2011 LTIP

LTIP awards for 2011 were dependent on compound average annuat growth (CAAG) in adjusted EPS over the three-year penod ending on 31 December
2013 The threshold target for awards was growth of 6% p a , with awards vesting i full for growth of 9% p a The threshold perfarmance target was
achieved and the CEQ's LTIP award (granted to him when he was EVP, Category Development) may vest to the following extent in May 2014 for
performance over the completed threa-year pericd

Interests Exercise Vesting Interests Date Assumed Estimated
Awards held pree % vesting vesting market price value
Shares 60,000 n/a 40% 24,000 7 May 2014 £46 88 £1,125,120
Options 180,000 £34 64 72,000 7 May 2014 £881,280

The value disclosed above and in the single total figure of remuneration table on page 41 captures the full number of interests vesting As the market
price on the date of vesting 15 unknown at the time of reporting, the value 1s estimated using the average market value over the last quarter of 2013
of £46 88 The actual value at vesting will be trued-up 1n the 2014 Annual Report on Remuneration

Former CFO's LTIP awards

tn kne wath the LTIP rules Liz Doherty’s outstanding LTIP share awards and option grants did not lapse on cessation of employment, but were prorated
for the time elapsed from the start of each respective performance penod to cessation of employment Performance was tested over the performance
penod to 31 December 2013 to determine the vesting outcome for each time prorated award {which 1s due to vest in May 2014) as follows

Date of Interest Exercise Time Vesting Interests Assumed Esumated
Awards grant granted prce  prorated interest’ Yo vesting market price vatue
Shares 9 February 2011 10,000 nfa 7,372 40% 2,949 £138,249
Shares 5 December 2011 45,000 wa 18,173 0% 0 £46 88 £0
Options 5 December 2011 90,000 £32 09 36,346 0% 4] £0

1 Reflects the number of weeks elapsed from the start of the performance penod {1 lanuary) to cessation of employment (15 March 2013)

SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (AUDITED)
The followang Non-Executiwve Director fee policy was in place for the year ended 31 December 2013

fFee delvered

Role Cash feg n R8 shares
Charrman £308,000 £67 000
Deputy Chairman £82,000 £18 000
Non-Executve Director £70,000 £15,000
Chairman of Audit Committee £30,000 -
Chairman of Remuneration Comnuttee £30 000 -
Member of Audit Commitiee £15,000 -
Member of Remuneration Committee £15,000 -
Senior Independent Director £12,000 -
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SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED}
The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration recewved by each Non-Executive Director for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2013 and
the prior year

2013 fees £ 2012 fees £

Base fee Committee 2013 Base fee Committee 2012

Cash Sharas foes Total Cash Shares fees Total

Adrian Bellamy 308,000 67,000 - 375,000 283000 62,000 - 345,000
Richard Cousins 70,000 15,000 15,000 100,000 61,500 13,500 10,000 85,000
Peter Harf 82,000 18.000 15,000 115.000 65,500 14,500 10 Q00 90,000
Kenneth Hydon 70,000 15,000 30,000 115.000 61500 13,500 20,000 95,000
André Lacroix’ 70,000 15,000 21,000 106,000 61,500 13,500 10 000 85000
Judith Sprieser 70,000 15,000 30,000 115,000 61,500 13 500 20000 95,000
Warren Tucker 70,000 15,000 15,000 100,000 61,500 13,500 10000 85,000
Graham Mackay? 35,000 15,000 13,500 63,500 61,500 13 500 17,000 G§2,000
Nicandro Purante? 7,083 - - 7,083 - - - -

' André Lacroix was appointed as Semior independent Director wath effect from 12 June 2013

? The fees paid to Graham Mackay for 2013 relate to the period 1 January 2013 to 12 June 2013 when he stepped down from the Board of Directars
Y Nicandro Durante was appointed a Non-Executive Director with effect from 1 December 2013

SCHEME INTERESTS AWARDED IN 2013 {AUDITED)

LTIP
in December 2013 Executive Directors were granted the following awards under the LTIP, based on a fixed number of shares and share options

Shares Marke:
over which pnce
awards at date Exercise face Performance Exercssef
Date of gram granted of award' price’? value’ peniod vesting pencd
Performance shares
Rakesh Kapoor 240,000 £11,205,600 1Jan 14 -
11 December 2013 £46 69 n/a 31 Dec 16 May 17
Adnan Hennah 45 Q00 £2,101,050
Share options
Rakesh Kapoor 400,000 £18,676,000
11 December 2013 £46 69 £47 83 1lan 14 - May 17 -
31 Dec 16 Dec 23
Adnan Hennah 50,000 £4 202,100

' The market pnce on the date of award is the closing share price on the date of grant
? The exercise pnce 15 based on the average closing share price over the five business days prior to the date of grant
* Based on the market price a1 the date of award

Consistent with awards made since December 2008 vesting of the LTIP awards 1s dependent on the achievement of targets relating to compound
average annual growth (CAAG) in EPS over a three-year period EPS 1s measured on an adjusted diluted basis, as shown in the Group s financial
statements as this provides an independently venfiable measure of performance However the Remuneration Committee maintains the discretion to
make adjustments to the measure 1f this 1s considered to be appropriate Any adjustments will be disclosed in the Annuat Report on Remuneration

There 1s no retesting Awards granted in December 2013 will vest on the following, revised schedule

EPS CAAG <6% 6% Between 6% and 10% >10%
Proporuion of awards vesting (%) Nil 20% Strawght-line vesting between 20% and 100% 100%

in addition to the above awards and as disclosed i the 2012 Directors Remuneration Report, following his appointrnent as CFO in February 2013,
Adnan Hennah was granted the following awards under the LTIP based on a fixed number of shares and share options in the form of performance
shares and share options

Shares over
which awards Market price at Exercise Face Performance Exercises
Date of grant granted date of award' price? value? period vesting perod
Performance shares
Adnan Hennah 13 February 2013 45000 £4419 nfa £1988 550 Vian 13-
31 Dec 15 May 16
Share options
Adnan Hennah 13 February 2013 90,000 £4419 £42 61 £3,977.100 tlan 13- May 16 -
31 Dec 15 Feb 23

! The market price on the date of award 15 the closing share pnice on the date of grant
? The exercise price 1 based on the average dosing share pace over the five business days prror to the date of grant
3 Based on the market price at the date of award
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vesting of Adnan Hennah's LTIP awards s dependent on the achievement of targets relating to compound average annual growth {CAAG) in EPS over
a three-year penod as summansed in the table below There 15 no retesting

EPS CAAG <6% 6% 7% 8% >9%
Proporuon of awards vesting {%) il 0% 60% 80% 100%

Additionally, to reflect forfeited long-term incentive awards in retation to his previous employment, in December 2013 Adrian Hennah recewved, and in
December 2014 will recerve (subject to continued employment at each relevant award date), a cash lump sum equal in value to 25,000 RB shares, based
on the option price for the annuat LTI grant made in each relevant December

In relauion to this arrangement Adrian Hennah was awarded a cash sum of £1,195,750 equating to 25,000 RB shares at the option price for the annual
LTI grant made on 11 December 2013 Following deductions for tax, Adnian Hennah used the net proceeds to purchase 13,629 RB shares which will be
retained under his share ownership obligation

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN CEQ REMUNERATION

The table below shows the percentage change in CEO remuneration from the pnor year compared to the average percentage change in remuneration
for alt UK employees who form part of the seruor management team (Top400) This group has been chosen as it represents the most approprtate
comparator group for reward purposes for our UK-based Group Chief Executive

The analysis excludes part-time employees and 1s based on a consistent set of employeas 1 e the same individuals appear in the 2012 and
2013 populations

CEQ Other employees
% change 2012-2013 % change 20§2-2013

Base salary 4% 3%
Taxable benefits 24% 0%
Annual bonus 96% 51%

The difference m the percentage change of the annua! bonus for the CEO and other employees 1s primarnly a result of the fact that different targets are
set for different areas of the business which are subject to different challenges

The percentage change in taxable benefits for other employees excludes international transfer benefits as this 1s volatle from year to year based on each
indwiduals arcumstance

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY
The table below shows Shareholder distnibutions {1 e dividends and share buy backs) and total employee pay expendhture for FY 2012 and FY 2013,
along wath the percentage change in both

2013 2012 % change

£m im 2012 2013

Shareholder distnbutions (divdends and share buy backs) 1,271 1 451 -124%
Total employee expendrture 1,329 1,220 89%

EXIT PAYMENTS MADE IN THE YEAR (AUDITED)

As outlined m last year's Remuneration Report Liz Doherty receved a lump-sum termination payment which reflected historical contractuat terms and
company policy in Apnil 2013 totalling £705,392 As disclosed last year, the Committee has updated the termination provistons for the CEO and the
new CFO 50 that they are aligned with best practice and lirited to 12 months base salary

The payment to Liz Doherty consisted of a severance payment of £203,490 and a contractual payment in respect of one-half of annual base salary
(£214 200) and a payment in respect of one-half of the average APP payout for the previous two years (£287,702)

Unvested share and option awards held by Liz Doherty at the time of her ceasing to be employed by RB will vest in May 2014 based on performance to
31 December 2013, in accordance with the LTIP rules The awards were also reduced pro rata to reflect the proportion of the performance period not
completed at the pomnt of cessatron of employment The value of these LTIP awards 15 £138 249

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS (AUDITED)

No payments were made to past Directors in the year

REVIEW OF PAST PERFORMANCE

The graph below shows the TSR of the Company and the UK FTSE 100 Index over the five-year penod from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2013

The index was selected on the basis of companies of a comparable size in the absence of an appropnate mdustry peer group n the UK The table below
details the Chief Executive’s single figure of remuneration over the same penod

Historical TSR Performance
Growth in the value of a hypothetical holding over the five years to 31 December 2013

£ Value of £100 invested at 31 Detember 2008
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CEO single figure of remuneration (£000) 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Rakesh Kapoor £4,497 {8,411 £6,692
Bart Becht £28,881 £17,150 £18076

$T) award against maximum gpportunity 100% 76% 31% 53% 100%
LTk award agamst maximum opportunity 100% 100% 100% 100% 40%

IMPLEMENTATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2014

Base Salary

Base salaries are reviewed taking into account competitive practice for similar roles in the Company’s remuneration peer group, comprising 19 international
companies and indviduat performance Following its review of salary levels in late 2013 the Committee approved the following base salary increases
with eifect from 1 January 2014

Base salary at Base salary from Percentage
Executive Director 1 January 2013 1 lanuary 2014 Increase
Rakesh Kapoor £832,000 £865,000 4%
Adnan Hennah £550 000 £561,000 2%

The base salary increases for Executive Directors takes nto account performance and follows the same base salary merit increase guidelines as other
UK employees The average salary increase was ¢ 3%, effective 1 January 2014

Pension
The CEQ and CFQ continue 10 receve penston contributions (or equivalent cash allowances) of 30% and 25% of salary respectively

Performance Related Annual Bonus

For 2014 there will be no changes to the annual bonus opportunities for Executive Directors Bonuses wall continue to be based on RB's absolute net
revenue growth {in Sterling at a constant exchange rate) and absolute net mcome growth {in Sterling at constant exchange rate) with the outcome
under each of the measures combined multiplicatively to grve a bonus outcome of 3 57x the target bonus opportunity if both Stretch targets are met

Following the announcerment of the strategic review of RB Pharmaceuticals, for 2014, 90% of the bonus opportunity will be based on the performance
of the base business {excluding RB Pharmaceuticals) and 10% of the benus opportunity based on the performance of RB Pharmaceuticals

We have not disclosed the performance targets for 2014 as we consider them to be commercially sensitive However, we commit to disclosing the
targets retrospectively in the directors remuneration report for the year ending Decernber 2015

LTiP
LTIP awards for FY 2014 were granted in December 2013 Detalls of these awards are summarnsed on page 43 Awards to be made in December 2014
will be disclosed in the Annual Report of Remuneration in next year's Remuneration Report

IMPLEMENTATION OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATICN POLICY FOR 2014

Chairman and Non-Executive Director Fees

With effect from 1 January 2013 the fee payable to the Chairman of the Board of Directors 15 £375,000 per annum and the basic fee payable to
each Non-Executive is £85 000 per annum, of which £67,000 and £15,000 s paid in the form of RB shares respectively The additional fee payable for
chairng either of the Audit and Remuneration Comnuttees 1s £30 000 per annum, and for acting as the Semor Independent Director 1s £12 800 per
annum The Deputy Chairman receives an additional fee of £15,000 of which £3,000 1s defivered in RB shares

Chairman and Non-Executive Director fee levels will next be reviewed in 2014, with any changes effective from 1 January 2015

Executive Directors’ Shareholding Requirements (audited}
The table below shows the shareholding of each Executve Directar agamst their respective shareholding requirement as at 31 December 2013

Shares held Options held
Owned Performance vested Performance
outright or  tested but butnot  tested bt Shareholding
vested unvested exercised unvested guideline
(A} (B} () (D) # shares
Rakesh Kapoor 317,537 700000 360,000 1,380,000 600,000
Adrnian Hennah 13,629 90 060 - 180000 200,000

Rakesh Kapoor has exceeded his prorated target based on tenure to date and Adnan Hennah has made good progress towards his target duning his
first year as an Executive Director to the satisfachion of the Committee Due to the levels of shareholdings of the current executive directars LTIP awards
that vest over the next three 1o five years will be required to be held until the director reaches thew share ownership guideline Indeed, we require
directors to build up therr share ownership guideline over eight years in equal instalments This results in Directars having to buy shares from their own
resousces The Committee also intends to consider during the year the extent to which Executwes may be requred to hold shares following their
departure from the Board Details of the scheme interests contained in cofumns B-D are provided in the table overleaf
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND OPTIONS UNDER THE LTiP (AUDITED)

Market Market
Exercised/ At prke at prce at
Granted vested 311213 date of date of
At dunng dunng  or date of Cptien award exercise/ Exercise/
LnP Notes Grant date 1413 the year the year cessaticn price £ £ vesung £ vesung period
Liz Doherty*
Options i 51211 90,000 - - 90,000 3209 May 14
Performance-based
restricted shares 1 9211 10 000 - - 10,000 3270 May 14
¥ 5121t 45 000 - - 45,000 3219 May 14
Adnian Hennah
Options 1 13213 - 90,000 - 80,000 42 61 May 16-Feb 23
111213 - 90,000 90,000 47 83 May 17-Dec 23
Performance-based
restricted shares 1 13213 - 45000 - 45,000 4419 May 16
111213 - 45000 - 45,000 4669 May 17
Rakesh Kapoor
Options 1 1112 07 120,000 120,000 - 29 44 4590 May 11-Dec 17
2 81208 180000 180,000 2729 May 12-Dec 18
2 71209 180000 180,000 3165 May 13-Dec 19
1 11210 180,000 180,000 3464 May 14-Dec 20
1 51211 400,000 400,000 3209 May 15-Dec 21
1 31212 400000 400,000 3914 May 16-Dec 22
3 111213 400,000 400,000 47 83 May t7-Dec 23
Performance-based
restricted shares 1 71209 60,000 60,000 3180 46 77 May 13
1 11210 60 000 60 000 3408 May 14
1 5121 200,000 200 000 3219 May 15
1 31212 200,000 200,000 3566 May 16
3 111213 240,000 240,000 46 69 May 17
Granted Exarcised Lapsed Option Market
At during during during At price price at Exercise
Sharesave Scheme Grant datg 11133 the year the year the year 311213 {f) exercise (£} period
Rakesh Kapoor 8908 796 796 2192 feb 16-July 16
Adrian Hennah 4913 403 403 37 20 Feb 19-July 19

Notes
1 Vesting of LTIP 1s subject to the achievement of the following compound average annual growth {CAAG) in adjusted EPS over a three-year period

EPS CAAG for awards granted in December 07-12 <6% 6% 7% 8% >9%
Proportion of awards vesting (%) Nil 40% 60% 80% 100%

2 Options which are vested but unexercised
3 Vesting of LTIP 1s subject to the achievement of the following compound average annual growth (CAAG) i adjusted EPS over a three-year penod

EPS CAAG for awards granted m December 13 <6% 6% 7% 8% 9% >10%
Propartion of awards vesting (%) il 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

* Details of Liz Doherty outstanding share LTIP share awards and option grants including vesting % and prorated awards based on cessation of
employment are included on page 42 {(former CFO's LTIP awards)
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Finanaial Statements Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report to the
Members of Reckitt Benckiser Group pic

Report on the Group Finanaal
Statements

Our Opimon
In our opinion the Group financial statements
defined below

+ Gwe a true and fair view of the state of the
Group’s affarrs as at 31 December 2013 and
of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended,

Have been properly prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards (iFRSs) as adopted by the
Egropean Union, and

¢ Have been prepared m accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006
ang Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

This optrion 15 to be read m the context of
what we say in the remainder of this report

Separate Optnion in Relation to IFRSS as
Issued by the IASB

As explained 10 note 1 to the financial
statements, the Group, 1n addition to applying
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union has
also applied IFRSs as 1ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

In our opinion the Group financal statements
comply with IFRSs as issued by the IASB

What we have Audited

The Group financial statements which are
prepared by Reckitt Benckiser Group plc,
CoMmprse

+ The Group balance sheet as at 31 December
2013,

The Group income statement and statement
of comprehensive income for the year
then ended,

The Greup statement of changes in equity
and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and

*

The notes to the Group financial
statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has
been appled in thew preparation comprises
apphcable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Umon

Certain disclosures reguired by the financial
reporting framewaork have been presented
elsewhere in the Annuai Report and Financial
Statements (the ‘Annual Report’), rather than in
the notes to the financial statements These are
cross-referenced from the financial statements
and are identified as audited

What an Audit of Financial Statements
Involves

we conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Audiing (UK and
Ireland) {'ISAs (UK & keland)’} An audit
involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financtal statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of

= Whether the accounting policies are
appropniate to the Group’s crcumstances
and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed,

The reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Directors, and

The overall presentation of the financial
staternents

tn addrtion, we read alf the financaf and
non-financal information in the Annual Report
to identify matenal nconsistencies with the
audited Group financial statements and to
identify any information that is apparently
matenally incoreect based on, or matenally
inconsistent wath, the knowledge acquired by
us in the course of performung the audit If
we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or INconsistencies we consider
the imphcations for our report

Overview of our Audit Approach
Mateniality

We set certain thresholds for matenality These
helped us to determine the nature uming and
extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate
the effect of misstatements both indwidually
and on the financal statements as a whole

Based on our professicnal judgement we
determined matenality for the Group financal
statements as a whole to be £128m Thisis
cafculated as being 5% of profit before tax
adjusted for exceptional iterns

We agreed with the Audit Committee that
we would report to them misstatements
identified dunng cur audit above £6m as
well as misstatements below that amount
that, sn our view warranted reporting for
gualitative reasons

Overview of the Scope of our Audit

The Group 15 primanly structured along

three geographic regions being LAPAC (Latin
America, North Asia, South East Asia, Austraha
and New Zealand), RUMEA {Russia and the
CI5, Middle East, North Africa Turkey and
sub-Saharan Africa), ENA (Europe and North
Amenca) with separate segments for the Food
and RB Pharmaceuticals businesses The Group
financial statements are a consolidation of

reporting units, compnising the Group's
operating businesses in these regions and
centralsed functions

In establishing the overall approach to the
Group audit we determined the type of work
that needed to be perfermed at reporting units
by us asthe Group engagement team or
component auditors within PwC UK and from
other PwC network firms operating under our
nstruction Where work was performed by
component audttors, we determined the level
of involvement we needed to have in the audit
work at those reporting units to be able to
conclude whether sufficient appropriate audit
evidence had been cbtained as a basis for our
opinion on the Group financial statements as

a whote

Accordingly, we identified 58 reporting urnts
out of the Group's 6899 reporting units which,
in our view requared an audit of thasr complete
financial Information, either due to their size

or thewr nsk charactenstics These 58 reporting
units accounted for 74% of the Group's profit
before tax and 75% of the Group’s revenue
Our audit work at these reperting unis
together with additional procedures performed
at the Group level gave us the evidence we
needed for our opinions on the Group financial
statements as a whole

Areas of Particular Audit Focus

In prepanng the financal statements,

the Directors made a number of subjective
Judgements, for example In respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions and that consider future
events that are mherently uncertan We
primartly focused our work in these areas

by assessing the Directors’ judgernents
agamst available evidence, forming our own
ndependent judgements, and evaluating the
disclosures tn the financial statements

In our audit, we tested and examined
information, using sampiing and other auditing
techriques, to the extent we cansidered
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for

us to draw conclusions We obtained audit
evidence through testing the effectiveniess

of controls substanttve procedures or 3
combinayion of both

wWe considered the following areas to be

those that required particular focus in the
currentyear This is not a complete Iist of all
risks or areas of focus identified by our audit
We discussed these areas of focus with the
Audit Commuttee Their report on those matters
that they considered to be significant 1ssues in
relation to the financial statements is set out

on page 31
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Area of focus

HIAMTH HYGHNE HOME

How the scope of our audit addressed the area of focus

Trade Spend Accruals

The business enters into 8 number of sales agreements with
customers that have a wade range of terms (prometions rebates
& discounts) Esumates of the trade obligations in connection
with these agreements {trade spend accruals) are material to the
balance sheet

We facused on this area because of the high level of judgement
required 1n accounting for trade spend due to varying contractual
terms and the fact that elements of the calculation are subjective
and may not be finalised untl after the year end Accordingly the
focus of our work includes the completeness and valuatron of
the estimates

We agreed trade spend terms to underlying customer contracts and assessed
whether estimates of trade spend were consistent with the terms set out In
the contracts We avaluated movements in trade spend estimates based on
the accuracy of historic estimates, as well as against expectations derived from
underlying contracts, to ascertain whether current year accruals were in line
with the obligations We also compared histoncal accuracy of prior year trade
spend accruals to the actual habilities incurred In addition we tested a
number of controls relating to trade spend accruals, covenng items such as
the segregation of duties over the creation and approva! of the accruals and
both the review and resolution of vanations between expected and actual
trade spend deductions awarded

Provision for Uncertain Tax Exposures

The Group has matenal tax exposures relating to potential or existing
challenges by tax authorities in a number of territories around the
world These anse for a number of reasons including transactions
undertaken where the applicable tax treatment 15 uncertain or
Jjudgemental or due to transfer pricng arrangements anising from
centralised functions

we focused on thes area because of the level of judgement required
to be applied by management 1 quantifying appropriate provisions
agamst these exposures Changes in assumptions could materially
impact the amounts recorded 1n the financial statements

We obtained a detailed understanding of the Group’s tax strategy and
assessed key technical tax issues and risks related to business and legistative
developments We obtained explanations and evidence from management
regarding the tax treatments applied to maternat transactions and an
understanding of the transfer pricing policy within the Group We chailenged
the key assumptions, particutarly m relation to signeficant transactions
undertaken in the period and where there have been significant
developments in communications with local tax authonties as well as
undertaking a critical assessment of evidence that supperts any provisions

Acqusition of BMS Collaboration Agreement

We focused on this area because 1t was a complex transaction which
required the Directors to exercise a significant level of jJudgement
particuiarly around the valuation of the assets and liabilities acquired
and the timing of their recognition

(Refer akso to note 26 to the financal statements }

We evaluated the Directors’ assessment of this transaction as a business
combinatrion and discussed the rationale for the accounting principles applied
around the timing of recognition of certain assets and habilities We obtained
management’s valuations of the acquired assets and habiities and evaluated
these by companng management’s cash flow forecasts to Board approved
plans in addition we challenged the assumptions supporting the acquisition
synergies and tax benefits by comparnng these to supporting thud party
market data as weli as comparing forecasts to historic perfermance

We performed sensrtivity analysis over key drivers within the cash flow
forecasts, inciuding revenue, operating profit and estimated synergies, as
well as the key assumptions around discount and growth rates We then
considered the likelihood of such movement in these key assumptions arising
n assessing the approprateness of the overall valuations

Risk of Fraud i Revenue Recogmition
15As (UK & Irefand) require us to consider the nisk of fraud 1n
revenue recognition

As a consumer goeds group a large number of sales agreements are
entered into with customers with a wide range of terms covering
promotians, rebates and discounts which increases complexity In
addition current economic condittons in certan terntories can place
Increased pressure on management to meet performance targets
Accordingly there 15 a nisk that revenue could be musstated

We focused our procedures on the occurrence of transactions and whether
they were recorded 1n the peniod i which the Group became entitled to
record revenue We performed a combimation of testing internal controls
around reveniue recogrution and substantive testing of revenue recorded
during the year using data analysis and sampling techmigues We tested sales
transactions and credit notes rassed around the year end and also reviewed
significant custorner contracts, in order to assess whether the cond:tions for
revenue had been met We also tested manual journals posied to record
revenue to determine whether those postings were consistent with the
Group's revenue recognition policy

Risk of Management Override of Internal Controls
15As {UK & ireland) require that we consider this
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We assessed the overall control environment of the Group ncluding the
‘whistle-blowing’ arrangements We interviewed senror management and the
Groupss internal audit function and specifically asked for their views on fraud
and instances of fraud noted during the year We examined the sigrificant
accounting estimates and judgements relevant to the financal statements

for evidence of bias by the Directors that may represent a risk of matenal
musstatement due to fraud We also tested manual journal entries and
incorporated an element of unpredictability in the tming of our work

and samples in our testng plans
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Going Concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required to
review the directors’ statement, set out on
page 33, in relation to going concern We have
nothing to report having performed our review

As noted in the directors’ statement the
Directors have concluded that it 15 appropriate
to prepare the Group's financal statements
ustng the going concern basis of accounting
The going concern basis presumes that the
Group has adequate resources to remam in
operation, and that the Directors intend 1t to
do so, for at least one year from the date the
financial statements were signed As part of
our audit we have concluded that the Directors
use of the going concern basss 15 appropriate

However, because not all future events or
congitttons can be predicted, these statements
are not a guarantee as to the Group's abihity to
continue as a going concern

Opinion on Matters Prescribed by
the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the
Strategec Report and the Report of the Directors
for the financial year for which the Group
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent
with the Group finangial statements

Other Matters on which we are
Required to Report by Exception

Adequacy of Information and
Explanations Receved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are
required to report to you if in our opiion
we have not received all the nformation and
explanations we require for our audit We
have no exceptions to report ansing from
this responsibility

Directors’ Remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are
required to report to you if, tn our gpnian,
certain disclosures of Directors remuneration
spacified by law have not been made, and
under the Listing Rules we are required to
review certain elements of the report to
Sharehaolders by the Board on Directors’
remuneration We have no exceptions to
report arising from these responsibilities

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required to
review the part of the Corporate Governance
Statement relating to the Companys
comphance with nnme provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (‘the Code')
We have nothing to report having performed
our review

On page 33 of the Annual Report, as required
by the Code Proviston C 1 1, the Directors state
that they consider the Annual Report taken as a
whole 10 be fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for
members to assess the Groups performance,
business model and strategy On page 31,

as required by € 3 8 of the Code the Audit
Committee has set out the significant 1ssues
that it considered in relation to the financial
statements and how they were addressed
Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required

to report to you if, In our opinion

» The statement given by the Directors is
matenally inconsistent with our knowledge
of the Group acquired in the course of
performing our audit, or

« The section of the Annual Report describing
the work of the Audit Commuittee does not
approprately address matters communicated
by us to the Audit Committee

We have no exceptions to report ansing from
this responsibihity

Other Information In the Annual Report
Under 1SAs (UK & Ireland) we are requared

10 report to you if in our opinion, infermation
in the Annual Report 15

» Maternizally inconsistent with the information
n the audited Group finangal staternents, or

« Apparently matenally incorrect based on, or
matenally imconsistent with, our knowledge
of the Group acquired in the course of
performing our audit, or

+ {5 otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions to report ansing from
this responsibility

Responstbilities for the Financial
Statements and the Audit

Our Responsibilities and those of

the Directors

As explamned more fully in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 33
the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the Group finangial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair iew

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an
opirion on the Group financial statements

in accordance with applicable law and 1SAs
{UK & Ireland} Those standards requue us

to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opintons, has been
prepared for and only for the Company's
members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 and for no other purpose We do not,

N giving these opinions accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom thss report s shown or
nto whose hands 1t may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Other Matter

We have reported separately on the

Parent Company Financial Statements of
Reckitt Benckiser Group plc for the year ended
31 December 2013 and on the information

in the Directars' Remuneration Report that is
described as having been audited

/4
/ﬂﬂ/
Mark Gill (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

7 March 2014
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Group Income Statement

MEALTH MTSIENET WORE

2012
2013 {restated)’
For the year ended 31 December Notes £m fm
Net revenue 2 10,043 9 567
Cost of sales 3 {4.074) {4,029
Gross profit 5.969 5,538
Net operating expenses 3 (3.624) (3,096)
Operating profit 2 2,345 2,442
Adjusted operating profit 2,616 2,577
Exceptional items 3 2m (135)
Operating profit 2,345 2,442
Finance ncome [ 25 26
Finance expense 6 {56} 60
Net finance expense {31) (34)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2,314 2,408
Tax on profit on ordinary actvities 7 {574} {583)
Net income 1,740 1 825
Attributable to non-controlling mterests 1 4
Attributable to owners of the parent 1,739 1,821
Net income 1,740 1,825
Earmings per ordinary share
Basic earnings per share 8 242 1p 2514p
Diluted earnings per share g 238 5p 248 4p
! Refer to note 1 for further detalls
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
2012
2013 (restated)!
for the year ended 31 December Notes £m £m
Net income 1.740 1.825
Other comprehensive {(expense) / income
ftems that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years
Net exchange adjustments on foreign currency translation, net of tax 7 {369) (255)
Gains on net investment hedges 7 6 -
Gains on cash flow hedges, net of tax 7 13 3
Redlassification of foreign currency translation reserves on disposal of subsidrary, net of tax 7 - 9
{350) (243)
{ftems that will pot be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years
Remeasurements of defined benefit pension plans, net of tax 7 41 41
41 a1}
Other comprehensive expense, net of tax (309) (284)
Total comprehensive income 1,431 1,541
Attributable to nen-controfling interests 1 (1}
Attributable to owners of the parent 1,430 1,542
1.431 1,541

' Refer to note 1 for further details
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HEALTH Y HYINE  HORE

Group Balance Sheet

2012
2013 (restated)'
As at 31 December Motes £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets 9 11,141 11 162
Property, plant and equipment 10 761 736
Deferred tax assets 1" 47 49
Avatlable for sale financial assets 14 - 2
Retirement benefit surplus 21 50 27
Other recevables 13 249 33
12,248 12,009
Current assets
Inventories 12 746 735
Trade and other recevables 13 1.306 1,407
Dervative financial instruments 14 22 4
Current tax recevables 17 20
Available for sale finanoal assets 14 2 4
Cash and cash equwvalents 15 808 887
2,901 3057
Total assets 15,149 15,066
LIABILITIES
Current hiabilities
Borrowings 16 (2.169) (3.271)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 17 (215) {104)
Trade and other payables 20 (2,915) (2 842)
Denwvative financial mstruments 14 (159} (43)
Current tax habilities (203} (203)
(5.661) (6,463)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 16 (598) €3]
Deferred tax habilities 1 (1,702) {1,824)
Retirernent benefit obligations 21 (301) (426)
Provisions for habilities and charges 17 (156) {100}
Non-cursent tax labilities (329) 31
Other non-current habilities (66) (7
{3.152) (2 681)
Total abilhitres (8.813) {9 144)
Net assets 6,336 5922
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Share capnal 22 74 73
Share premium 243 184
Merger reserve 24 (14,229} {14,229)
Hedging reserve 24 15 2
Foreign currency translation reserve 24 (494) (131}
Retamed earnings 20,725 20022
6,334 5921
Non-controlling interests 2 1
Total eguity 6,336 5,922

1 Refer to note 26 for further detatls
The financial statements on pages 50 to 84 were approved by the Board and signed on its behalf on 7 March 2014 by

Adrian Bellamy  Rakesh Kapoor
Director Dyrecter
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity

MEALTIO HYGLENT rOME

Foreign Total
curren attributable Non

Share Share Meeger Hedging  translation Retained to ownersof  controlling Total

capial premium reserve resenve reserve earnings  the parent nterests equiy
Restated’ Notes £m Em £m £m £m £m £m £m fm
Balance at 1 January 2012 73 B6  {14,229) (1) 110 19,672 5711 70 5,781
Comprehensive iIncome
Net income 1,821 1,821 4 t 825
Qther comprehensive (expense} / income
Remeasurements of defined
benefit plans net of tax 7 (41} an (41}
Gains on cash flow hedges, net of tax 7 3 3 3
Net exchange losses on foreign
currency translation, net of tax 7 {250) {250) (5} {255)
Reclassification of foreign currency
translation reserves on disposal
of subsidiary, net of tax 7 g 9 9
Total other comprehensive income / {(expense) - - - 3 (241) 4t (279) (5) (284)
Total comprehensive income / {expense} - - - 3 (231) 1,780 1,542 {n 1,541
Transactions with owners
Proceeds from share tssue 98 93 98
Share-based payments 23 a9 48 49
Current tax on share awards 23 23 23
Shares repurchased and held in Treasury 22 (535) {535) {535)
Dividends 27 (916) {916) {4) {920)
Acquisiion of non-controlhng interest (51 (51) (55) (106)
Reclassification of nan-controlling
interest on disposal (9} 9
Total transactions with owners - 98 - - - {1,430) {1,332} {68) {1,400)
Balance at 31 December 2012 73 184 (14,229) 2 (131} 20,022 5921 1 5,922
Comprehensive income
Net income 1,739 1739 1 1,740
Other comprehensive income / (expense)
Remeasurements of defined benefit
plans net of tax 7 A1 a1 41
Gains on cash flow hedges, net of tax 7 13 13 13
Net exchange losses on foreign
currency translation, net of tax 7 (369) {369) (369)
Gamns on net investment hedges 6 6 6
Total other comprehensive income / (expense) - - - 13 (363) 41 (309 - (309)
Total comprehensive income / {expense) - - - 13 {363) 1,780 1,430 1 1431
Transactions with owners
Proceeds from share wssue 22 1 59 el 60
Share-based payments 23 55 55 55
Current tax on share awards 16 16 16
beferred tax on share awards 44 44 a4
Shares repurchased and held n Treasury 22 (279) (279) (279
Treasury shares re-issued 79 78 79
Dwidends 27 (992) (992) (992
Total transactions with owners 1 59 - - - {1,077) (1,017} - (1,017}
Balance at 31 December 2013 74 243 (14,229) 15 (494) 20,725 6,334 2 6,336

! Refer to note 1 for further details
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HEALTI - HTGIINS  HOME

Group Cash Flow Statement

2012
2013 {restatec)
For the year ended 31 December Notes fm £m
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operaung profit 2,345 2,442
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 171 148
Faw value losses/{gains) 1 7
Gan on sale of property, plant and equipment and mtangible assets - (13)
Gain on sale of businesses 26 - (32)
(Increase)/decrease In inventortes 61 19
Decrease/(increase) In trade and other recevables 32 (16)
Decrease In payables and provisions (18) (167)
Non-cash exceptional stems 231 -
Share-based payments 55 49
Cash generated from operations 2,756 2,423
Interest paid {49) (34)
tnterest receved 25 27
Tax pard (611) (528)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2121 1,888
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {200) (166)
Purchase of intangible assets (25) (11
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 9 13
Disposal of intangtble assets - 9
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 26 (418) (877
Disposal of businesses net of cash disposed - 81
Matunty/purchase) of short-term nvestments 2 7
Matunty of long-term nvestments 2 14
Net cash outflow on deconsoldation of a subsidiary - (6)
Net cash used In Investing activittes {630) (936)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from i1ssue of erdinary shares 22 60 98
Shares purchased and held in Treasury 22 (279) (535)
Treasury shares re-issued 79 -
Proceeds from borrowings 637 887
Repayments of borrowings (1.002) {112)
Dendends paid to owners of the parent 27 {992) (916)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest - (4)
Acquisition of non-controlling Interest 25 (28) (106)
Net cash used in finanung activities {1,525) (688)
Net {(decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (34) 264
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 882 634
Exchange losses (43) (16)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 805 882
Cash and cash equivalents compnse
Cash and cash equwvalents 15 808 887
Overdrafts 16 (3} (5
805 882
RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS
Net cash generated from operating actvittes 2121 1,888
Net purchases of property plant and equipment {191} (153}
Net cash flow from operations 1.930 1735

! Refer to note 1 for further details
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Notes to the Fine

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these financial statements are
set out below Unless otherwise stated, these
policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented

Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Atcounting Pohicy

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with EU endorsed International
Finanaal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and

with those parts of the Companies Act 2006
apphcable to companies reporting under IFRS
The financial statements are also in comphiance
with IFRS as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board These financial
statements have been prepared under the
histoncal cost convention as modified by

the revaluation of certain financial assets and
liabilities (including dernvatve instruments) at
fair value through profit or toss A sumemary

of the Group s more important accounting
policies 15 set out below

The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis for accounting in preparing
these financial staternents The Directors have
a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue 1n operational
existence for the foreseeable future

The preparation of financial statements that
conform to IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
balance sheet date and revenue and expenses
during the reporting penod Although these
estimates are based on management s best
knowledge at the time, actual amounts may
ultimately differ from those estimates

The Group apphes, for the first time, amendments
to IAS 1 Presentation of ftems of Other
Comprehensive Income IFRS 10 Consolidated
Fnancial Statements, IFRS 11 Jomnt Arrangements,
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests i Other Entitres
IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement and IAS 19
(Revised) Employee Benefits

Amendments to 1AS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income that may be reclassified
to profit or ioss to be presented separately
from items that will never be reclassified The
staternent of comprehensive income has been
revised accordingly

IFRS 10 replaces previous guidance on control
and consohdation IFRS 11 requrres jont
arrangements 10 be accounted for as a joint
operation or as a joint venture depending on
the nghts and obligations of each party to the
arrangement, and IFRS 12 requires enhanced
disclosures of the nature nisks and financial
effects associated with the Group's interests
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in subsidianies, associates, joint arrangements
and unconsolidated structured entities These
three standards are not mandatory under IFRS
as adopted by the EU for the Group until

1 January 2014, however the Group has
deaded to early adopt the standards as of

1 January 2013 The impact on the Group of
applying these standards 1s not significant

IFRS 13 explains how o measure fair value and
enhances fair value disclosures The standard
does not sigmificantly change the measurement
of farr value but codifies it in one place The
impact on the Group 1s not significant

The amendments under I1AS 36 impamrment of
Assets in respect of the disclosure requirements
have been early adopted

IAS 19 (Revised) replaces the interest cost on
pension scheme hiabilities and expected return
on pension scheme assets with a net interest
amount that 1s calculated by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit chiigation at the beginning of the
period to the net defined benefit abulity/asset

In addition the Group now treats the net
pension scheme 1Aterest amount as finance
income/expense Previously the intarest cost on
pension scheme liabilties and expected retyrn
on pension scheme assets were classified in
either cost of sales or net operating expenses
The Directors believe that this change provides
more relevant information about the
performance of the Group and aligns the
Group's accounting policies with common
industry practice

These restatements had no impact on the
balance sheet and the following wpact on
the income statement and statement of
comprehensive mcome

Year ended
31 December 2012
fm

Group income statement
Decrease n cost of sales
Decrease 1 net operating expenses

=

Increase in operating profit

Increase in finance expense (1
Decrease in tax on profit on

ordnary actvities 4

O~
—

Decrease in net income (8)

Group statement of comprehensive imcome
Decrease in actuanal losses net of tax 8
Increase in other comprehensive income 8

Net impact on total
comprehensive income -

Basic, diluted, adjusted basic and adjusted
diluted earnings per share decreased by

incial Statements

1 1p for the year ended 31 December 2012

as a result of the adoption of 1AS19 (revised)
The cash flow statement was restated as a
resuit of the change in operating proftt, with an
offsetting decrease in payables and provisions

A number of new standards, amendments and
iterpretations are effective for annual penods
beginnuing after 1 January 2014 and have not
yet been applied in preparing these financial
statements None of these are expected to have
a sigmficant effect on the financral statements
of the Group

Basis of Consolidation

The consglidated financial statements include
the results of Reckitt Benckiser Group ple,

a company registered in the UK, and all 1its
subsidiary undertakings made up to the same
accounting date Subsidiary undertakings are
those entries controlled by Reckitt Benckiser
Group plc Control exists where the Group 1s
exposed to, or has the rights 10 vanable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to use its power over the mvestee 1o
affect its returns

in the case of acquisitions and disposals of
businesses the results of trading are consoldated
from or to the date upon which control passes

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gans on transactions between
Group companies have been eliminated on
consolidation Unrealised losses have also been
elminated to the extent that they do not
represent an impairment of a transferred asset
Subsicharies’ accounting policies have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group

Operating Segments

Operating segments are reported 1n a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker The
chief operating decision-maker (CODM), who s
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Commuttee

Specific items of income and expense reported
to the Executive Committee outside of the
indwidual segment finanual mformation, are
shown In the Corporate segment

Foreign Currency Translation

ltems included 1n the financal statements

of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment 1n which the entity operates {the
functional currency) The consolidated finangal
statements are presented in Sterling which

ts the Group’s presentation currency
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t ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the funcuonal currency using exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
fram the settlement of foreign currency
transactions and from the translation at year
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
habilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recogmised in the Income statement, except
where hedge accounting is apphed

The financial statements of overseas subsidhary
undertakings are translated into Sterling on the
following basis

» Assets and liabiities at the rate of exchange
ruting at the year end date

» Profit and loss account items at the average
rate of exchange for the year

Exchange differences ansing from the translation
of the net investrnent i foreign entinies, and

of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments

are taken to equity on consolidation

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property. plant and equipment are stated

at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, with the exception of freehold
land which 15 shown at cost less impairment
Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset
Except for freehold land and assets under
construction, the cost of property, plant and
equipment 1S written off on a straight-hne basis
over the period of the expected useful life of
the asset For this purpose, expected lves are
determined within the following hrmits

« Freehold buildings not more than 50 years,

= Leasehold land and buildings the lesser
of 50 years or the ife of the lease, and

« Owned plant and equipment not more than
15 years {except for environmental assets
which are not more than 20 years)

In general, production plant and equipment
and office equipment are written ofi over

ten years or fess, motor vehicles and computer
equipment over five years or less

Assets’ restdual values and useful lves are
reviewed, and adjusted (f necessary, at each
balance sheet date Property, plant and
equipment are reviewed for impairment sf
events or changes i circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be
appropriate Freehold tand s reviewed for
imparrment on an annual basis

Gans and losses on the disposal of property
plant and equipment are determined by
companng the asset’ carrying value with
any sale proceeds, and are included in the
ncome statement

Business Combinatons

The acqusition methed 15 used to account
for the acquistion of subsidianies Identifiable
net assets acquired {Including intangibles) In
a business combination are measured mitially
at their fair values at the acquisition date

Where the measurement of the farr value of
identifiable net assets acquired 15 ncomplete
at the end of the reporung pencd n which
the combination occurs, the Group will report
provisional fair values Final fawr values are
determined within a year of the acquisitron
date and retrospectively apphed

The excess of the consideration transferred and
the amount of any non-controlling interest over
the fair value of the identifiable assets, habilitres
and contingent habibties acquired (including
intangibles) is recorded as goodwill

The consideration transferred 15 measured

as the fair value of the assets gwen, equity
instruments 1ssued (if any), and liabilities
assumed or incurred at the date of acquisition

Acquisiion related costs are expensed as incurred

The results of the subsichanes acquired are
included in the Group financial staterments
from the acquisition date

For acquisttions before 1 January 2010 goodwill
represents the excess of the cost of acquisiion
over the farr value of the entihable assets
labiltes and conuingent Liabilities with acquisiion
related costs caprtalised as part of the cost

of acquisition

Non-controlling Interests

On an acquisison-by-acquisihion basis the
non-controlitng interest 1s measured at either
fair value or a proportionate share of the
acquiree s net assets

Purchases from non-contraliing interests are
accounted for as transactions with the owners
and therefore no goodwill 15 recogmsed as

a result of such transactions

Goodwill and intangible Fixed Assets
Goodwill on acquisiions of subsidiaries since

4 January 1998 s included in intangible assets
Goodwill written off 1o reserves prior to this date
has not been reinstated Goodwill 1s allocated

to the cash generating unit, or group of cash
generating units, to which it relates and is tested
annually for impairment Goodwaill 1s carred

at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Separately acquired brands are shown at cost
less accumulated amortisation and imparrment
Brands acquired as part of a business combination
are recogrised at farr value at the acquisition
date where they are separately identifiable
Brands are amortsed over ther usefu
economic Iife except when therr life 1s
determined as being indefinite

Applying indefirute lives to certain acquired
brands s appropnate due to the stable
long-term nature of the business and the
endunng nature of the brands A core element
of the Group’s strategy s to mvest \n buitding
its brands through an ongoing programme of
product innovation and sustained and nsing
marketng investment Within the Group, a
brand typically comprises an assortment of base
products and more innovative products Both
contribute to the endunng nature of the brand
The base products establish the long-term
positioning of the brand while a succession of
nnovations attracts engeing consumer interest
and attention indefinite Iife brands are ailocated

to the cash generating unit, or group of cash
generating units 1o which they relate and are
tested annually for impaiement

The Directors also review the useful economic
life of brands annually, to ensure that these
Iives are still appropriate If a brand 1s
considered to have a finite kfe, s carrying
value 1s amorused over that period

Payments made in respect of product

registration, acquired and re-acquired

distnbution rights are capitalised where the

nights comply with the above requirements

for recognition of acquired hrands If the

registration or distributton nights are for a .
defined time penod, the intangible asset 15

arnortised over that period If no ume period

s defined the intangible asset is treated n

the same way as acquired brands

Acquired compurter software licences are
capitalised at cost These costs are amortsed on
a straight hine basis over a penod of seven years
for Enterpnse Resource Planning systems and
five years or less for all other software licences

Research and Development
Research expendrture 15 written off in the year
in which it 1s incurred

Development expenditure 1s written off in the [
year in which 1t is incurred, unless it meets the |
requirements of IAS 38 to be capitalised and

then amortised over the useful life of the

developed product

Exceptional items

Where matenal, non-recurring expenses or
income are incurred during a period, these
items are disclosed as exceptional items in the
income statement Examples of such items are

¢ Restructuring and other expenses relating to
the integration of an acguired business and
retated expenses for reconfiguration of the
Group's actviues

« Imparments of current and non-current assets

Gans/losses on disposal of businesses

L ]

Acquisition related costs

+ Costs anising as a result of matenal
and nan-recurnng regulatory and
litgation matters

The Group also presents an alternative adjusted
earnings per share calculation to exclude the
impact of the exceptional tems

Management believes that the use of adjusted
measures such as adjusted operating profit,
adjusted net income and adjusted earmings per
share provide additional useful information on
undertying trends to Shareholders

Impairment of Assets

Assets that have indefinite lives are tested
annually for imparrment All assets are

tested for imparment if there is an event or
circumstance that mdicates that thew carrying
vatue may not be recoverable If an asset’s
carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount
an impairment loss s recognised in the income
statement The recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset s fair value less costs of !
disposal and #ts value 1n use
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
Value in use 15 calculated wath reference to the
future cash flows expected to be generated by
an asset (or group of assets where cash flows
are not identifiable to specific assets) The
pre-tax discount rate used 1n brand imparrment
reviews is based on a weighted average cost of
capita! for comparable companies operating n
similar markets and geographres as the Group
including where appropnate, an adjustrment
for the specific nsks assocated with the
relevant cash generating unit

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
net realisable value Cost comprises matenals,
direct labour and an appropnate portion of
overhead expenses {based on normal operating
capacty) required to get the inventory to its
present focation and condition fnventory
valuaton 15 determined on a first in, first out
(FIFO) basis Net realisable value 1s the estimated
selling price less applicable selling expenses

Trade Receivables

Trade recevables are initially recognised at

fair value and subsequently held at amortised
cost, less provision for impawrment |If there 1s
objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect the full amount of the receivable
an impawrment 15 recognised through the
income statement Significant financal
difficulties of the debtor, probability that a
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
recrganisation and default or delinquency n
payments are considered indicators that the
trade recewvable 1s impaired The smpawment

15 calculated as the difference between the
carrying value of the recewvable and the present
value ot the related estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the onginal interest rate

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
balances and other deposits with a maturity
of less than three months when deposited

For the purpose of the cash flow statement,
bank overdrafts that form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management, and are
repayable on demand, are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents

Bank overdrafts are ndluded within borrowings
in the balance sheet

Borrowings

Interest-beanng borrowings are recognised
inroally at fair value fess attributable transaction
costs Subsequent to mitial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between
cost and redemption value beng recognised

n the income statement over the period of the
borrowings on an effective interest basis

Income Tax

tncome tax on the profit for the year comprises
current and deferred tax Income tax s recognised
in the income statement except to the extent
that 1t relates to items recogrused n other
comprehensive income or directly in equity

In thus case the tax 15 also recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectrvely
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Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on
the taxable incorme for the year, using tax
rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to
1ax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided in full using the
liabihty method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabiities and therr carnang amounts i the
consolidated financial statements The deferred
tax 15 not accounted for o 1t anses from the
witial recogmition of an asset or habiity in a
transaction (other than a business combnation)
that affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss at that ime Deferred tax 15
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the deferred tax asset or hability 1s

sattled Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable
profit will be avaslable against which the
temporary differences can be ustised

Deferred tax 15 provided on temporary
differences ansing on investments n subsidianes
except where the investor s able to control the
timung of temporary differences and it 1s probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets and habilities within the
same tax jurisdiction are offset where there 15
a legatly enforceable nght to offset current tax
assets against current tax habilities and where
there 15 an intention to seitle these balances
on a net basis

Pension Commutments

Group campames operate defined contnbution
and (funded and unfunded) defined benefit
pension schemes

The cost of providing pensions to employees
who are members of defined contnbution
schemes 15 charged to the income statement
as contributions are made The Group has
no further payment abligations once the
contributions have been paid

The habity or surplus recognised in the balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans 1 the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date, less the
fair value of the plan assets The defined
benefit obligation 1s calculated annually by
independent actuanes using the projected unit
credit method The present value of the defined
benefit obhigation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash flows by the yield on
tugh-quality corporate bonds denominated in
the currency in which the henefits wili be paid,
and that have a maturity approximating to the
terms of the pension obhgations The costs of
providing these defined benefit schemes are
accrued over the pengd of employment
Actuanal gains and losses are recognied
immediately in other comprehensive income

Past-service costs are recognised immediately
In income

The net interest amount 1s calculated by
applying the discounted rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning
of the period to the net defined benefit
liabiity/asset

The net pension scheme interest 15 presented as
finance ncome/expense

Post-Retirement Benefits Other

Than Penstons

Some Group compantes provide post-retrernent
medical care to therr retirees The costs of
providing these benefis are accrued over the
pernod of employment and the kabilrty
recognised tn the balance sheet 15 calculated
using the projected unit credit method and

1s discounted 1o its present value and the fair
value of any related asset 15 deducted

Employee Share Schemes

Incentives in the form of shares are prowvided

to employees under share option and restricted
share schemes Any shortfall between the cost
to the employee and the fair market value of
the awards at date of grant 15 charged to the
income statement cver the penod to which

the performance critena relate, with the credn
taken directly to retained earmings Additional
employer costs i respect of options and
awards are charged to the income statement
over the same penod with the ¢redit included
in payables Where awards are contingent
upon non-raarket performance conditions, an
assessment of the likehhood of these conditions
being achieved 1s made at the end of each
reperting pertod and reflected in the
accounting entries made

The praceeds recewved net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital and share premium when the
options are exercised

Provisions

Prowvisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, 1t s more likely than not
that there will be an outflow of resources to
settle that obligation, and the amount can be
reliably estimated Prowvisions are valued at the
present value of the Directors best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the obligation
at the balance sheet date

Denvative Financial Instruments and
Hedging Activity

The Group may use denvatives 10 manage Its
exposures to fluctuating mterest and foreign
exchange rates These mstruments are inrbally
recognised at fair value on the date the
contract 1s entered nto and are subsequently
remeasured at their faw value The method of
recognising the resutting gain or loss depends
on whether the denwvative 15 designated as a
hedging nstrument and «f 50, the nature of the
item being hedged Derwvatives that qualify for
hedge accounting are treated as a hedge of

a hughly probable forecast transaction {cash
flow hedge)
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

At inception the relationship between the
hedging instrument and the hedged item

15 documented, as s an assessment of the
effectiveness of the dervative instrument used
in the hedging transaction in offsetting changes
in the cash flow of the hedged item This
effectiveness assessment 1s repeated on an
ongoing basis dunng the Iife of the hedging
instrument to ensure that the instrument
remains an effective hedge of the transaction

1 Denivatwes classified as cash flow hedges
the effective portion of changes in the fair
value s recogrised in other comprehensive
income Any gain or loss relating 1o the
ineffectve portion 15 recogrised wmmediately
in the income statement

Amounts recogmised sn other comprehensive
income are recycled to the income statement
n the period when the hedged item affects
profit or loss If the hedging instrument
exptres or 1s sold, or no longer meets the
critena for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in other comprehensive
income at that time remains in other
comprehensive mcome, and 1s recognised
when the forecast transaction 15 uttimately
recognised n the income statement If the
forecast transaction I1s no longer expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss in other
comprehensive income 15 immediately
transferred to the income statement

2 Dervatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting these are classified at fair value
through profit or foss AH changes n farr
value of dervative instryments that do not
qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income staternent

Net Investment Hedges

Gains and losses on those hedgqing instruments
designated as hedges of the net investments
in foreign operations are recognised n other
comprehensive Income 1o the extent that the
hedging relationship 1s effective Gains and
tosses accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve are included in the income
statemeni when the foreign operation 18
disposed of

Net Revenue

Net reveniue is defined as the amount invoiced
to external customers duning the year that is
gross sales net of trade discounts, customer
allowances for credit notes and returns and
consumer coupans, and exclusive of VAT and
other sales-related taxes Net revenue is
recognised at the time that the risks and
rewards of ownarship of the products are
wransferred to the customer

Leases

Leases of property plant and equipment where
the Group has substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases Assets held under finance leases are
captahsed at lease inception at the lower of the
asset’s fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments Obhigations related
to finance leases, net of finance charges in
respect of future penods are included as
appropnate within borrowings The tnterest
element of the finance cost 1s charged to the
Income statement over the life of the lease

50 as to produce a constant penodi; rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the hability
for each period The property, plant and
equipment are depreciated on the same basis
as owned plant and equipment or over the life
of the lease, if shorter

Leases where the lessor retains substantally all
the nisks and rewards of ownership are classified
as operating leases Operating lease rentals (net
of any related lease mcentives) are charged
agamnst profit on a straight line basis aver the
period of the lease

Share Capital Transactions

When the Group purchases equity share
capital, the amount of the consideration

paid mcluding directly attnbutable costs s
recognised as a change in equity Purchased
shares are either held i Treasury in order to
satisfy employee options, or cancelled and, in
order to maintain capital an equivalent amount
to the nominal value of the shares cancelled
would be transferred from retained earmings
10 the capital redemption reserve

Dividend Distnbution

Dwidends to owners of the parent are
recognised as a hability in the peried i which
the dvidends are approved by the Company's

Shareholders Intenm dvidends are recorded 1n
the peniod i which they are approved and paid

Accounting Estimates and Judgements
The Directors make a number of estimates and
assumptions regarding the future, and make
some significant judgements in applying the
Groups accounting policies These include

» Estimates of future business performance
and cash generation, discount rates and
tong-term growth rates supporting the net
book amount of indefinite hie intangible
assets at the balance sheet date (refer to
note 9} If the actuat results should differ, or
changes in expectations anse, imparrment
charges may be required which would
adversely impact operating results

The continuing enduring nature of the
Group's brands supporung the assumed
useful lives of these assets {refer to note 9}

e Measurement of intangible assets both
in business combinations and other asset
acquisitions requires the Group to idenufy
such assets Assumptions and estmates are
rmade about future cash flows and appropnate
discount rates to value identified mtangible
assets (refer to note 26)

-

The actual tax paid an profits 1s determined
based on tax laws and regulations that differ
across the numerous Junsdictions in which
the Group operates Assumptions are made
in applying these laws to the taxable profits
i any given perod in order to calculate the
tax charge for that penod Where the eventual
tax pad or reclaimed 1s different to the
amounts onginally esumated the difference
wiil be charged or credited to the income
statement in the penod n which it is
determined {refer to note 7}

Assumptions are made as to the recoverability
of tax assets especially as to whether there
will be sufficient future taxable profits in the
same junsdictions o fully utilise losses in
future years {refer to note 11}

The Group recognises legal provisions in line
the Group's provisions policy The level of
provisiorung for regulatory investigation 15

a matter where management and legal
judgement 15 important {refer to note 17)
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2 OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Executive Comnnttee 1s the Groups chief operating decision-maker (CODM) Management has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the Executve Committee for the purposes of making strategic decisions and assessing performance The Executive Commuittee
considers the business principally from a geographical perspective, but with the RB Pharmaceuticals {in table referred to as RBP) and Food businesses
bemng managed separately gwen the significantly different nature of these businesses and the nsks and rewards associated with them

The Group’s geographical segments compnse Europe and North America (ENA), Latin America, North Asia South East Asia and Australia and New
Zealand (LAPAC), and Russia and €IS, Middle East, North Afnica, Turkey and Sub-Saharan Africa (RUMEA} The geographical segments derve their
revenue primarily from the manufacture and sale of branded products in the health, hygiene and home categories RB Pharmaceuticals defives its

revenue exclusively from the sales of buprenorphine-based prescription drugs used to treat oprate dependence and Food derwves its revenue from
food products primanly sold in ENA

The Scholl Footwear business, previously reported as part of RUMEA 15 now reported as part of ENA Comparative information has been restated on
a consistent basis

The Executve Commitiee assesses the performance of the operating segments based on net revenue and operating profit before exceptional items
Finance income and expense are not altocated to segments as they are managed on a central Group basis

Speaific items of income and expense reporied to the Executve Committee outside of the indmdual segment financial information, are shown in the
Corporate segment For the year ended 31 December 2013 the Corporate segment had £nil profit or loss (2012 £32m ~ relating primarily to the
disposal of the Paras Personal Care business)

Operating Segments
The segment information provided to the Executive Committee for the operating segments for the year ended 3t December 1s as follows

Total

ENA LAPAC RUMEA Food Corporate Ex-RBP RBP Totat

2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m £Em £m
Net revenue 5.074 2,511 1.356 325 - 9,266 777 10,043
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 93 48 9 5 - 155 16 171
Adjusted operating profit 1.321 495 284 88 - 2,188 428 2,616
Exceptional items {271)
Operating profit 2,345
Net finance expense (31)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2,314

Tota!

ENA LAPAC RUMEA Food  Corporate Ex REP RBP Total

2012 (restated)' {m £m Em fm im £m fm £m
Net revenue 4,744 2327 1338 321 - 8,730 837 9,567
Depreciation, amertisation and impairment g5 32 8 5 - 140 8 148
Adjusted operating profit 1,156 465 296 92 32 2,041 536 2,577
Exceptional 1tems (135)
Operating profit 2 442
Net finance expense (34)
Profit on ordinary actvities before taxation 2,408

! Restated for Scholl Footwear segment move from RUMEA to ENA {net revenue £66m and operating loss of £7m}) and the impact of the accounting
polcy change discussed in note 1
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2 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Executive Committee reviews net working capital by segment and other assets and habiliies on a Group basis The sphit of assets and lrabitbes by
segment provided to the Executive Committee 1s as follows Assets and habilities not presented to the Executive Comnuitee are shown befow as a
reconciling item

ENA LAPAC RUMEA Food RBP Total
2013 £m fm £m £m fm fm
lnventonies 416 245 99 5 129 894
Trade and other receivables 585 368 208 1 112 1,274
Total segment assets 1.001 613 307 6 241 2,168
Trade and other payables (1,488) {675) (254) {14) (261) (2,692)

ENA LAPAC RUMEA Food RBP Total
2012 (restated)’ £m £m £m £m £m £m
Inventories 393 250 10 4 108 865
Trade and other recewvables 625 363 193 - 178 1,358
Total segment assets 1,018 613 303 4 286 2224
Trade and other payables {1,442) (661) (269) (13) {241) (2 626)

' Restated for Scholl Footwear segment move from RUMEA to ENA (£8m inventory, £24m trade and other recervables, £14m trade and other trade
payables)

The assets and liabilities are reported based upon the operations of the segment and the physical location of the asset or hability There are a number of

Group assets and habilities that are not specifically attributable to one segment Reconcihiation of these assets and habilities to total assets or hiabilities in

the balance sheet 1s shown below

2012
2013 (restated)’
im fm
Inventones for operating segments 894 865
Unallocated
Elimination of profit on inter-company inventory (148) (130)
Total inventones per the balance sheet 746 735
Trade and other recewables for operating segments 1,274 1,359
Unallocated
Group items 32 48
Total trade and other receivables per the balance sheet 1,306 1,407
Total inventories and trade and other receivables per the balance sheet 2,052 2,142
Other unallocated assets 13,097 12924
Total assets per the balance sheet 15,149 15066
Trade and other payables for operating segments (2,692) (2,626)
Unallocated
Group items (223) (216)
Total trade and other payables per the balance sheet {2.915) {2842)
Other unallocated habilities (5,898) {6,302}
Total liabilities per the balance sheet (8,813) (9,144)

Unallocated assets include goodwill and intangible assets property, plant and equipment, deferred and current tax, available for sale assets, retirement
benefit surplus, other recevables, derwative financial assets and cash and cash equivalents Unallocated habilities include borrowings, provisions for
tiatilities and charges, current and deferred tax habilities, other liabihties and retrement benefit obligauons

1 Refer to note 26 for further details
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2 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Analysis of Categornies
The Group analyses its revenue by the following categories

\Bﬁ

HEALTH MYEHENE s oMY

Net revenues

2013 2012

£m £m

Health 2.633 2 068
Mygene 3,835 3682
Home 1,974 1966
Portfolio brands 499 693
Food 325 n
9,266 8,730

RB Pharmaceuticals 777 837
Total 10,043 9 567

Health, hygiene, home and portfoho brands categories are all spiit across the three geographucal segments of ENA, LAPAC and RUMEA Food {(which

15 sold primanily in ENA} and RB Pharmaceuticals are recognised within their own operating segments

The Company 15 domiciled i the UK The spht of revenue from external customers and non-current assets (other than finangial instruments, deferred
tax assets and retirement benefit surplus assets) between the UK, the US (being the single biggest country outside the country of domuale) and that

from all other countries 1s

All other
UK US  countries Total
2013 £m £m £m £m
Net revenue 676 2,777 6,590 10,043
Goodwill and other intangible assets 1,536 4,212 5,393 11,141
Property, plant and equipment 148 125 4388 761
Other recervables 2 30 217 249
All other
UK us counties Total
2012 (restated)' £m £rn £m £m
Net revenue 643 2,480 6,444 9,567
Goodwill and other intangible assets 15636 4274 5,352 11162
Property, plant and equipment 137 124 475 736
Other recevables 4 4 25 33

' Refer to note 26 for further details

The net revenue from external customers reported on a geographical basis above 15 measured consistently with that in the operating segments

Mator customers are typically large grocery chains, mass market and muitiple retalers The Groups customer base 1s diverse with no single external
customer accounting for more than 10% of net revenue, and the top ten customers accounting for less than a quarter of total net revenue
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3 ANALYSIS OF COST OF SALES AND NET OPERATING EXPENSES

2012
2013 (restated)’
fm £m
Cost of sales (4,074) (4,029)
Distribution costs (2,467) 2,314)
Administrative expenses
Pharmaceuticals research and development (a7) (25}
Other research and development (152) (146)
Other (692) (489)
Total administrative expenses (891) (660)
Other net operating Income 5 13
Exceptional items (271) (135)
Net operating expenses (3,624) (3 096)

1 Refer to note 1 for further details

Total forewgn exchange losses of £16m (2012 £nif} have been recogmised through the income statement These amounts exclude finanaizl instruments

fair valued through the income statement and amounts recogrised directly In the foreign currency translation reserve

2013 2012
Exceptional 1tems £m £m
Legal provision 225 -
Acquisition integration and restructuring costs 46 135
Total exceptional items 271 135

The Group incurred an exceptional charge of £271m dunng the year in respect of the following
« £225m legal provision for historic regulatory issues (2012 £nil} Refer to note 17

* £46m restructuring costs In relation to the new grgamsation acquisiion and integration costs (2012 £135m refating to the new organisation,
acquisition and Integration costs, and withdrawal of private labef) This consists pnmartly of redundancy and business integration costs which have

heen included within operating expenses

4 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

During the year the Group (ncluding its overseas subsidharies) obtaned the following services from the Company’s Auditor and Its associates

2013 2012

£m fm
Audit services pursuant ta legislation
Audit of the Group's annual accounts 18 19
Audit of the accounts of the Group’s subsidiaries 38 38
Audit related assurance services 03 04
Total audit and audit related services 59 61
Fees payable to the Companys Auditor and s asscaates for other services
Taxation comphance services 053 02
Taxation adwisory services 17 43
Other assurance servicas g2 02
All other non-audit services oa 01
Total non-audit services 28 48
87 109

Included in the above 1s £0 1M (2012 £0 1m) n relation to the audit of the financial statements of asscciated pension schemes of the Group
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5 EMPLOYEES

2012

2013 {restated)’

{a) Staff costs Notes £m Em
The total employment costs, including Directors, were

Wages and salanes 1,026 958

Soaial secunity costs 197 170

Net pension costs (excluding net pension interest) 21 51 43

Share-based payments 23 55 49

1,329 1,220

* Net pension costs have been restated to exclude net pension scheme interest now included in net finance expense Wages and salaries restated on a
consistent basis with 2013 Refer to note 1 for further details

Details of Directors’ emoluments are included in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 34 to 46, which forms part of the financial statements

Compensation awarded to key management {the Executive Commuttee)

2013 2002

£m fm

Short-term employee benefits 17 11
Post-employment benefits 1 1
Share-based payments 14 15
Termination benefits 1 4
33 3t

Termunation benefits and share-based payments inctude contractual commitments made to key management in 2013, comprising cash payments and
shares to vest in 2014

{b} Staff numbers
The monthly average number of people employed by the Group including Dwectors, durning the year was

2013 2012
000 000

ENA. 125 139
RUMEA 76 71
LAPAC 151 137
RB Pharmaceusicals 07 06
Other 12 06

371 35¢
6 NET FINANCE EXPENSE

2012

2013 (restated)!
Finance income £m fm
Interest income on cash and cash equivalents 25 26
Total finance income 25 26
Finance expense
Interest payable on borrowings 31) {30)
Net pension scheme terest (8) (19)
Amortisation of 1ssue costs of bank loans {11) (6)
Other finance expense (6) (9
Total finance expense {56) {60)
Net finance expense (31) (34

! Refer to note 1 for further details
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7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

ALY HYGHENT T o1

2012
2013 (restated)’

im £m

Current tax 712 €62
Prior year adjustments (52) 2n
Total current tax 660 641
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 9 22
impact of changes n tax rates (95) (80)
Tota! deferred tax {note 11} (86) (58)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 574 583

! Refer 1o note 1 for further details

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 24% 1o 23% with effect from 1 April 2013 Accordingly, the Company's profits for the

year ended 31 Decemnber 2013 are taxed at an effectve rate of 23 25% {2012 24 5%}

UK mcome tax of £124m (2012 £138m) 5 included within current tax and 1s calculated at 23 25% (2012 24 5%) of the esurnated assessable profit for

the year Taxation for other junisdictions 15 calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant junsdictions

The total tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows

2012

2013 {restated)'

£m fm

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2,314 2,408
Tax at the notional UK corporation tax rate of 23 25% (2012 24 5%) 538 590

Effects of

Tax at rates other than the UK corporation tax rate (67} 10
Adjustments to amounts carried i respect of unresolved tax matters 160 77
IncurrenceAuulisation) of tax losses 1 7
withholdings and tocal taxes 21 16
Adjustment In respect of prior penods (%) (58)
Impact of changes in tax rates {95) (80)
Exceptronal items 20 g
Other permanent differences 5 13
Tax on profit on ordinary actwviues 574 583

' Refer to note 1 for further details
The tax charge 15 expected o be impacted by 1tems in the nature of those histed above for the foreseeable future

Followsng the enactment of legsslation in the UK to reduce the corporation tax rate to 21% from 1 Aprid 2014, the total tax charge in 2013 includes the
wnpact on the income statement of calcufating the UK deferred tax balances at the lower UK corporation tax rate The rimpact of this rate change is 3
£95m reduction in the tax charge m the ncome statement The tax (charge¥credit relating to components of other comprehensive income 1s as follows

2012
2013 (restated)’
Tax Tax
Before credit/ After Before creditf After
tax (charge) tax tax {charge) tax
im fm £m fm fm fm
Net exchange adjustments on forergn currency transiauon {369) - (369) {256) 1 (255)
Gains on cash flow and net investment hedges 19 - 19 4 m 3
Reclassification of foreign currency translation reserve on disposal of subsidiary - - - 9 - 9
Remeasurement of defined benefit penston plans {note 21} 68 (27) a1 {52) 11 {41)
QOther comprehensive income (282) (27) (309) {295) i1 (284)
Current tax - (2)
Deferred tax (note 11) (27) 13
27 11
' Refer to note 1 for further details
The tax credrted directly to the statement of changes m equity during the year s as follows
2013 2012
£m fm
Current tax 16 23
Deferred tax (note 1 1) 44 -
60 23
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MEALTH MTGIENE woelt

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

2012

2013 (restated)*

pence pence

Basic earnings per share 2421 2514
Diluted earrungs per share 2385 243 4
Ad;usted basic earnings per share 2738 266 5
Adjusted diluted earmngs per share 2698 2633

' Refer to note 1 for further details

Basic
Basic earnings per share s calculated by dmiding the net income attributable to owners of the parent (2013 £1735m (2012 £1 821m)} by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (2013 718,384,234 (2012 724,238 235))

Diluted

Dituted earrings per share 15 calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of shares outstandng to assume conversion of all potentially dilutive
orghnary shares The Company has two categories of potentially dilutive ordinary shares Executive Share Optiens and Employee Sharesave schemes

The options only dilute earnings when they result in the issue of shares at a value below the market price of the share and when all performance critena
(f applicable) have been met As at 31 December 2013, there were 4 mithon (2012 4 mullion) of Executive Share Options not included wathmn the
dilutson because the exercise price for the options was greater than the average share price for the year

The Directors believe that diluted earnings per ordinary share, adjusted for the impact of exceptional items after the appropniate tax amount, provides
additional useful information on underlying trends to Shareholders in réspect of earrungs per ordinary share

Details of the adjusted net Income attnbutable 1o owners of the parent are as follows

2012
2013 (restated)*

fm fm

Net income attributable to owners of the parent 1,739 1821
Exceptional items FIal 135
Tax effect of exceptional items (43) (26)
Adjusted net income attributable to owners of the parent 1,967 1930
2013 2012

Average Average

number of number of

shares shares

On a basic basis 718,384,234 724,238,235
Dilution for Executive Options outstanding and Executive Restricted Share Plan 9,829,873 8,098 123
Dilution for Employee Sharesave Scheme Options outstanding 838,787 659 327
On a diluted basis 729,052,894 732,995,685

' Refer to note 1 for further details
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9 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Brands Goodwill Software Other Total
£m £m £m £m tm
Cost
At 1 January 2013 7.757 3,335 57 235 11,384
Additions 1 - 21 3 25
Ansing on business combinations 113 71 - 57 241
Dispasals - - (2) - 2
Exchange adjustments {154) (94) - (12) (260)
At 31 December 2013 .77 3,312 76 283 11,388
Accumulated amortisation and imparrment
At 1 January 2013 82 28 22 90 222
Amertisation and impairment charge 3 - i 27 31
Disposals - - {2) - 2
Exchange adjustments 1 (n (N (3 (4)
At 31 December 2013 86 27 20 114 247
Net book amount at 31 December 2013 7.631 3,285 56 169 11,149
Brands Goodwall Saftware Other Tozal
(restated)! {restated)’ {restated)!
fm fm fm £m fm
Cost
At 1 january 2012 7,106 3,080 48 236 10470
Additions 2 - g - 1
Arising on business combinations 884 357 - - 1,241
Disposals (37 an - - {(54)
Exchange adjustments {158} (85) - (1 (284}
At 31 December 2012 7757 3,335 57 235 11,384
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2012 80 30 21 21 212
Amortisation and imparrment charge 3 - 13
Disposals - 1) - - (1}
Exchange adjustments (n (M - - 2
At 31 December 2012 82 28 22 90 222
Net book amount at 31 December 2012 7.675 3,307 35 145 11,162
Net book amount at 1 January 2012 7.026 3,050 27 155 10258

! Refer to note 26 for further details

The amount stated for brands represents the fair value of brands acquired since 1985 at the day of acguisiton Other includes product registration,
distributron rights and capitalised product development costs

Software includes ntangible assets under construction of £52m (2012 £31m)

The majonty of brands, all of goodwill and certain other intangibles are considerad to have indefintte hives for the reasons noted in the Accounting
Policies and therefore are subject to an annual impairment review A number of small non core brands are deemed to have a finite life and are
amortised accordingly

The net book amounts of ndefinite and finite life intangible assets are as follows

2012
2013 (restated)*
Net book amount £m im
Indefinite life assets
Brands 7.606 7,650
Goodwilt 3,285 3,307
Other 39 36
Total indefinne Ife assets 10,930 10993
Finute life assets
Brands 25 25
Software 56 35
Other 130 109
Tota! finte life assets 21 169
Total net book amount of intangible assets 11,141 11,162

! Refer to note 26 for further details
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HIALTH WYRIEXE HOMI

9 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Goodwil! and other ntangible assets with indefinite lives are allocated to a cash generating unit or a group of cash generating units (together ‘CGL'}
for the purposes of imparment testing

Cash Generating Units
After considering all the ewidence available incuding how brand and production assets generate cash inflows and how management monetors the
business, the Directors have concluded that the Group's CGUs are heaith {sexual wellbeing), heatth {(vMS} health {(other), hygiene, home, and food

Integration of the Schiff business was ongoing but not completed by year end As a result this business continued to be treated as its own CGU, health
(VMS) This CGU will be reassessed following the completon of integration into the Group's operations in 2014

An analysss of the net book amount of indefinite Iife assets and goodwill by CGU s shown below

2013 2012 {restated)
Indefinite Indeftrite

ilfe assats  Goodwll Total life assets Goodwill Total

cGU Key brands £m £m £m £m £m fm

Health (sexual wellbeing} Durex 1.915 956 2,871 1,952 976 2,928
Health (other) Gaviscon, Mucinex, Nurofen,

Scholl, Strepsils 3,036 1,786 4,822 2,926 1,783 4,709

Health (VMS) Atrhorne, MegaRed Move Free 801 352 1,153 815 357 1172
Hygiene Bang, Clearasil Dettol, Finish,

Harpic Lysol, Mortein, Veet 1,082 149 1,231 1,176 149 1,325

Home Air Wick, Calgon, Vanish, Woolite 781 42 823 786 42 828

Food Frenchs 30 - 30 31 - 31

7.645 3,285 10,930 7.686 3307 10,993

! Refer to note 26 for further details

indefinite life asseis allocated to the Food CGUY are not considered significant relative to the Groupss total ndefinite hfe assets As such the disclosures
below do nat include discussion on the assumptions specific to Food

Annual Impairment Review Key Assumptions

The annual iImpaiment review for goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives 1s based on an assessment of each CGU s value in use Value
m use s calculated from cash flow projections, based on historical operating results and short-term budgets and medrum-term business plans approved
by management covernng a four-year period with an extrapolated fifth year These projections exclude any estimated future cash inflows or outflows
expected to anise from restructunng not yet implemented

Cash flows beyond the five-year penod are extrapolated using the estimated long-term growth rates stated below Indwidual long-term growth rates
are applied to each product type within a CGU, and as such ranges are provided in some cases below The long-term growth rates apphed do not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the market and courtries in which the CGU operates

Management has assessed the approprate discount rate for each individual CGU, using a Wesghted Average Cost of Caprtal (WACC) for

comparable companies gperating in similar markets and geographies as the Group as the base discount rate, adjusted for risks specific 1o each CGU
Due to the similar geagraphic and product diversification of their respectwe markets and risks associated with each CGU, a pre-tax discount rate of
11% was determined for each of the health {(sexual wellbeing), health {other), hygiene and home CGUs (2012 11%) Health (VMS) 1s predominantly
concentrated in one market, being the US Therefore a pre-tax discount rate of 14% was applied, reflecting the increased nisk associated with this CGU
from its market concentration and the fact that this 15 a relatvely new business to the Group

Key assumptions (which are kept under constant review by management) in the impairment review include future sales volumes revenue growth rates
and prices, and future levels of marketing support required to sustain, grow and further innovate brands The cash flow projections also take account
of the expected impact from new product initiatives efficiency iniiatives and the maturty of the markets in which each CGU operates These key
assumptions are based on past performance and our expenence of volumes, growth rates and prices in our key markets

Pre-tax

discount

Gy Growth % rate %
Health (sexual wellbeing) 4 11
Health (VMS) 25 14
Health (other) 1-4 11
Hygiene 0-4 1"
Home 0-2 11

Impairment Review
In October 2013 an impairment review was performed by companng the recoverable amount of each CGU wath its carrying amount including
goodwill No impawment was considered necessary There were no significant changes in the penod subsequent to the review

Any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of the health (sexual wellbeing), health (other) hygiene and
home CGUs 1s based would not imply an impairment

With a recoverable amount exceeding its carrying value by £19m, the health (MS) CGU s the most sensitive to reasonably possible changes to key
assumptions This 15 expected of a recent acquisition where the acquired intangible assets were valued at farr value and updated at the end of the
hindsight period in December 2013 Any sigruficant change in assumiptions could cause the carrying value to exceed the recoverable amount For
example, if all other assumptions were held constant, a reduction of 100 bps of the assumed compound annua! growth rate in undiscounted net cash
flows would result in the carnying value of this CGU exceeding its recoverable amount by £15m Management expects that the completion of the
ntegration of the business with the health {other) CGU 1n 2014 will realise planned synergses and hence mimmise the nisk of imparrment
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Landand  Plant and

buildings equipment
m Em

WEALTH » WTSIIRE » HOET

Total

£m
Cost
At 1 January 2013 525 1,285 1,810
Additions 28 172 200
Ansing on business combination 1 4 5
Dispasals (4) (44) (48)
Reclassifications 46 (46) -
Exchange adjustments (20} (49} (69)
At 31 December 2013 576 1.322 1,898
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 fanuary 2013 205 869 1,074
Charge for the year 29 111 140
Disposals G (35) (39)
Exchange adjustments (6) (32) (38)
At 31 December 2013 224 913 1,137
Net book amount at 31 December 2013 352 409 761
Land and Plant and
buldings  equipment Total
frestated)!  lrestated)’ {restated)
£m fm im
Cost
At 1 January 2012 512 1,272 1,784
Additions 13 153 166
Ansing on business combination 1 7 8
Disposals 8 (65) (73
Deconsolidation of subsidiary (2) (9} an
Reclassifications 21 (21} -
Exchange adjustments (12) {52) (64)
A1 31 December 2012 525 1,285 1,810
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2012 189 863 1,052
Charge for the year 24 11 135
Disposals (3 (57} (60}
Deconsohdation of subsidiary {1) (&) 7}
Exchange adjustments 4 (42) {46)
At 31 December 2012 205 869 1,074
Net book amount at 31 December 2012 320 416 736
Net book amount at 1 January 2012 323 409 732

! Refer to note 26 for further details

The net hook amount of assets under construction s £60m (2012 £62m} Assets under construction are included within plant and equipment
The reclassification from plant and equipment to land and buildings of £46m (2012 £21m) shows the transfer of completed assets

Capital expenditure which was contracted but not capitalised at 31 December 2013 was £30m (2012 £20m)
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11 DEFERRED TAX

MEALTH HYGIEME + HOMI

Short term Retirement
Accelerated temperary benefnt
capual  Intangble  differences obligations
allowances assets  (restated)! Tax losses  (restatedy Total
Deferred tax habiities fm £m £m £m £m fm
At 1 January 2012 19 1979 (184) (&) {36) 1,772
Charged/(credited) to the income statement 12 92) (29) - {51} (160)
Credtted to other comprehensive income - - - - 4 10)] (10}
Ansing on business combination 1 299 {13) 9 - 278
Disposal of business - (15) - - - {15)
Exchange differences (1) {46) 4 - 2 (41i)
At 31 December 2012 N 2,125 (222) (15) {95) 1,824
ChargedAcredited) to the income statement (am {96) - 5 17 (85)
Charged/{credited) to other comprehensive income - - - - 27 27
Charged/credited) directly to equity - - 44) - - (44)
Ansing on busmess combination - 37 (12) - - 25
Exchange differences - 42) 2 - (5 (45)
At 31 December 2013 20 2,024 (276) (10 {56} 1,702
' Refer to note 26 for further details
? Refer to note 1 for further detalls
Accelerated Short-term Retirement
capital  Intangible  temporary benefit
allowances assets  differences Tax losses  obligations Total
Deferred tax assets £m £m £m fm fm £m
At 1 January 2012 (5) (16} 82 32 57 150
Credited/(charged} to the income statement 14 8 (44) (32 {48) (102)
Credited to other comprehensive income - - 2 - 1 3
Exchange diferences - 1 {2) - (1 2
At 31 December 2012 9 (7 38 - 9 49
{Charged)/credited to the income statement - (6) 8 - (N 1
Exchange differences - - (3 - - (3)
At 31 December 2013 9 (13) 43 - 8 47

Deferred tax assets and habilittes have been offset where they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty

Certain deferred tax assets in respect of overseas corporation tax losses and other temporary differences totalling £163m (2012 £152m) have not been
recogrused at 31 December 2013 as the likellhood of future economic benefit s not sufficiently assured These assets will be recognised of utihsation of

the losses and other temporary differences becomes reasonably certain

No deferred tax liability has been recognised on the unremitted earnings
foreseeable future based on the current repatriation policy of the Group
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12 INVENTORIES

2013 2012

fm fm

Raw materiak and consumables 155 157
Wark in progress 35 27
Finished goods and goods held for resale 556 551
Total inventories 746 735

The cost of inventonies recognised as an expense and induded as cost of sales amounted to £3,849m (2012 £3,821m) This includes inventory write
offs and losses of £46m (2012 £23m)

The Group inventory provision at 31 December 2013 was £69m (2012 £81m)

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2013 2012
Amounts falling due within one year £m fm
Trade recenables 1,173 1,269
Less Prowision for mpairment of recewvables a4) (47)
Trade recewvables — net 1,129 1,222
Other recevables 126 13t
Prepayments and accrued income 51 54
1,306 1,407

Trade recevables consist of a broad cross-section of our international customer base for whom there 15 no significant history of default The credit risk of
customers is assessed at a subsidiary and Group level, taking 1nto account thew financial positions  past experiences and other relevant factors Indwidual
customer credit imits are imposed based on these factors

As at 31 December 2013, trade recewables of £77m (2012 £32m) were past due but not impared The ageing analysis of trade recewvables past due
but not imparred 1s as follows

2013 2012
£m fm
Up to 3 months 77 92

As at 31 December 2013, trade recevables of £71m (2012 £77m) were considered to be smpaired The amount of provision at 31 December 2013 was
£44m (2012 £47m) it was assessed that a portion of the recewables 15 expected to be recovered due to the nature and histonical collection of trade
recevables The ageing analysis of these recewvables 1s as follows

2013 2012

£m fm

Up to 3 months 33 37
Qver 3 months 38 40
ral 77

The movement in the prowvision for impared recewvables consists of increasas for addiional provisions offset by recevables wniten off and unused
provision released back to the income statement The gross movements in the provision are considered to be insigmificant

The other recevables do not contain impaired assets They consist of items including reclaimable sales tax and are from a broad range of countnes
within the Group

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other recevables are denominated in the following currencies

2013 2012

£m fm

Sterling 101 99
Euro 282 305
US dollar 283 388
Brazil Real 107 29
Qther currencies 533 526
1,306 1,407

The maximum exposure (o credit nsk at the year end 1s the carryng value of each class of recevable mentioned above The Group does not hold any
collaterat as securty

Non-current other recewvables at 31 Decernber 2013 were £249m (2012 £33m) £203m relates to a prepayment for an option to acquire legal title to
intellectual property (refer to note 26) The remaining balance relates to other non-current prepayments and recewvables due after one year
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14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Finanaal Instruments by Category

‘Gg:v

HEALTH HYQIENE v HOMT

Derivatives  Fair value Carrying Falr
Leans and used for through  Available value value
receivablas hedging the P&L for sale total total
At 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m fm
Assets as per the balance sheet
Short-term deposits’ - - - 2 2 2
Trade and other recewables? 1,275 - - - 1,275 1,275
Dervative financial instruments — FX forward exchange contracis - 16 6 - 22 22
Cash and cash equivalents 808 - - - 808 808
Other
{inancial
Derivatives  Fair value liabilities at Carrying Fair
used for through amortised value value
hedging the PEL cost total total
£m fm £m £m fm
Liabilities as per the balance sheet
Borrowings (excluding finance lease obhgations and bond)? - - 2,167 2,167 2,167
US$1bn bond (two tranches of US$500m at 2 125% and 3 625% respectively)® - - 595 595 597
Finance lease obhgations? - - 5 5 5
Dervative financial instruments — FX forward exchange contracts - 159 - 159 159
Trade and other payables* - - 2,768 2,768 2,768
Other non-current habilitiess s - - 45 45 a5
Derivatives Fair value Carrying Fair
Loans and used for through Avatable value value
recevables hedging the PRL for sale total total
At 31 December 2012 fm £m £m £m £m frm
Assets as per the balance sheet
Auction rate securnities” - - - 2 2 2
Short-term deposits’ - - - 4 4 4
Trade and other recevables? 1366 - - - 1,366 1,366
Derwvative financial instruments — FX forward exchange contracts - 4 - - 4 4
Cash and cash equivalents 887 - - - 887 887
Other
financiat
Dervatrves Fair value  habilties at Carrying Faw
used for through amortised value value
hedging the P&L cost total total
£fm fm fm fm £m
Liabilities as per the balance sheet
Borrowings (excluding finance lease obligations) - - 3,269 3,269 3,269
Finance lease obligations? - - S S 5
Derwvatve financial instruments — FX forward exchange contracts 43 - - 43 43
Trade and other payables® - - 2,698 2,698 2.698
Other non-current habilities’ - - 17 17 17

They are however highly iquigd assets

These short-term deposits do not meet the requirements to be classified as cash equivalents as they have maturities greater than three months

? Prepayments and accrued in¢ome and employee benefit assets are excluded from the trade and other recewvables balance as the analysis above

15 required only for finanoial instruments

w

IFRS 7 Therefore finance leases have been shown separately

The categones in this disclosure are determined by 1AS 39 Finance leases are outside the scope of 1AS 39 but they remain within the scope of

4 The far value of bonds at 31 December 2013 1s a habiity of £597m (2012 £nif) This value s derived using a quoted market rate 0 an active market

flevel 1 classification)

3 Socal secunty habibties and other employee benefit habilitres are excluded as the analysis above s requred only for financial instruments

& ncluded i other non-current habulities 1s £21m {2012 £12m) to purchase the remaining shares of Shangha Manon Trading Company Limited

7 These investments are auction rate securities 1ssued by US state authonties dencminated in US dollars with redemption dates falling beyond 2013
They are typically traded on a secondary market however due to the inactivity of this market there was uncertainty over whether they were ikely
to be redeemed wathin one year and therefore were dassified as non-current in 2012

The carrying value fess imparrment provision of investments current borrowings cash at bank, trade receivables and trade payables are assumed

to approximate their fair values due to thewr short-terrm nature

The fair value measurement hierarchy levels have been defined as follows

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) i active markets for identical assets or labilities (level 1)

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or kabidity either dvectly {(t e as prices) or indirectly
(1 e derwed from prices) (level 2) 1f alt ssgrificant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument 1s included in level 2

3 Inputs for the asset or bability that are not based on observable market data (1 e unobservable inputs) (leve! 3)

70 RB Annual Report 2013




>
Financial Statements Notes to the Financial Statements ‘

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2013 15 a liability of £159m {2012 £43m} and an asset of £22m (2012 £4m)
This value 15 determined using forward exchange rates derved from market sourced data at the balance sheet date, wath the resulting value discounted
back to present value (level 2 classification)

As the value of level 3 instruments at 31 December 2013 15 not matenal (2012 not matenat), no further level 3 disclosures have been made

The Group has forward foreign exchange contracts that are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements which are not netted in the balance
sheet The value of these contracts at 31 December 2013 15 a liability of £137m {2012 £39m) This figure consisted of assets of £22m (2012 £4m) and
liabiities of £159m {2012 £43m)

The Group also has cash which 1s subject to a nght of offset As at 31 December 2013 the value of this cash was £27m (2012 £63m) of which
consisted of assets of £34m (2012 £63m) and overdrafts of £7m {2012 £nil) As a1 31 December 2013 the value of cash assets outside of netting
agreements was £774m (2012 324rm) and the value of overdrafts outside of netting agreements was £3m {2012 £5m)

Finanaial Risk Management

The Group s muluinational operations expose it 10 a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
(foreign exchange risk), market prices, Interest rates, credit nsks and hquidity The Group has in place a nsk management programme that uses foreign
currency financial istruments, including debt and other nstruments, to st the impact of these risks on the financial performance of the Group

The Groups financing and finantial nsk management actwities are centralised into Group Treasury (GT) to achieve benefits of scale and control
GT manages financial exposures of the Group centrally in a manner consistent with underlying business risks GT manages only those risks and flows
generated by the underlying commercial operations and speculatve transactions are not undertaken

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies, guidelines and authonty levels for all areas of Treasury actmity and indwidually approves sigmificant
actwities GT operates under the close control of the CFO and # subject 10 penodic Independent reviews and audits, both internal and external

1 Market Risk

(a} Foreign exchange nisk

The Group operates internationally and 15 exposed to foreign exchange risk arsing from varnious currency exposures Foreign exchange nsk anses from
future commercial transacuons, recognised assets and hiabiities and net investments in foraign operations

The Group’s policy s to align interest costs and operating profit of its major currencies in order to provide some protection agawnst the translation
exposure on foreign currency profits after tax The Group may undertake borrowings and other hedging methods in the currencies of the countries
where most of 1ts assets are located

it s the Group's policy to monitor and only where appropnate hedge its foreign curiency transaction exposure These transaction exposures arse mainty
from foreign currency recespts and payments for goods and services and from the remittances of foreign currency dvidends and ioans

The local business units enter into forward foresgn exchange coniracts with GT to manage these exposures where practical and allowed by local regulations
GT matches the Group exposures, and hedges the net position where possible, using spot and forward foreign currency exchange contracts

The notional pancipat amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 Decermnber 2013 was £5,287m payable (2012 £4,303m payable)

The Group has designated bonds totaling $1,000m (£597m) as the hedging nstrument n a net Investment hedge relationship The hedged nisk 1s the
foreign exchange currency nisk on the value of the Group's net investment in assets and liabilities denominated m US dollars The net gain or loss under
this arrangement Is recognised in other comprehensive iIncore  The net effect on other cormprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2013

was a £6m gain (2012 £nif)

Cash Flow Hedge Profile
The Group held forward foreign exchange contracts denarminated as cash flow hedges primartly in Euro, Australian dollars Singapore dollars, Steriing
and US dollars Notional value of the payable leg resulting from these financial instruments was as follows

2013 2012
£m Em

Eure 319 S0
Australian dollar 177 S0
Singapare dollar 120 43
Sterling 98 -
Canadhan dollar - 60
US dollars 32 1
Other 60 55
806 339

These forward foreign exchange contracts are expected to mature over the penod January 2014 10 January 2015 (2012 lanuary 2013 to January 2014)
There 15 no ineffective portion recognised 1n the income statement anising from cash flow hedges (2012 £nil)

Gains and losses recognised n the hadging reserve tn other comprehensive income on forward exchange contracts in 2013 of £13m gain (2012 £3m
gan) are recognised mn the income statement in the year or years dunng which the hedged forecast transaction affects the income statement, which s
generally within 12 months from the balance sheat date

The maxumum exposure to credit nisk at the reporting date 15 the fair value of the denivative assets in the balance sheet

In the case of cash flow hedges these are denominated i a diverse range of currencies, where a fluctuation in one indmdual currency refationstip, with

all others held constant, does not have a significant effect on the mcome statement or Shareholders’ equity A fluctuation analysis has been performed

for all currencies The largest potential fluctuation would be in respect of forward contracts between the Australian dollar and the Singapore dotlar if the
Singapore dollar had strengthened/Aweakened by 5% against the Australian dollar, with alt other vanables held constant the impact on Shareholders’ equity
would have been £12m (2012 less than £1m) As at 31 December 2013 If all other currencies had strengthenedAveakened by 5% against Sterling with all
other vanables held constant, this would have had an immatenal effect on the income statement or Shareholders’ equity (2012 immatenal)
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14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
The remaining major monetary financial mstruments (lquid assets recewvables interest and non-interest beaning liabilities} are directly denominated in
the local functional currency or are transferred to the functional currency of the Group through the use of derwatives

(b} Price nsk

Due to the nature of 1ts business the Group 1s exposed to commodity price nsk related to the production or packaging of frmished goods such as ol
related, and a diverse range of other raw matenals This risk 1s, however, managed primarly through medium-ierm contracts with certain key supphers
and 1s not therefore viewed as being a matenat nsk

{c) Cash flow and fair value interest rate nsk
The Group has both interest-beaning and non interest-beanng assets and habiities The Group monitors its interest expense raie exposure on a regular
basis The Group manages its nterest tncome rate exposure on Its gross financial assets by using a combination of fixed rate term deposits

The Group analyses 1ts interest rate exposure on a regular basis Vanous scenarios are simulated taking into consideration refinancing, renewat of
existing positions, alternative financing and hedging Based on these scenanios, the Group calculates the impact on the imcome statement of a defined
interest rate shuft For each simulation, the same interest rate shift 1s used for all currencies, calculated on a full year and pre-tax basis

The scenarios are only run for habilities that represent the major interest-bearing positions Based on the simulations performed, the impact on the income
statement of a 50 basis-pomt shift in interest rates would be a maximum increase of £11m (2012 £9m) or decrease of £11m (2012 £9m), respectively
for the liabiitties covered The simulation 1s done on a periodic basis 10 venfy that the maximum loss potential 1s within the it given by management

2 Credit Risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit isk Credit risk anses from cash and cash equivalents, derivative ftinanaial instruments, deposits
with banks and financial mstitutions, as well as credit exposures to customers The credit quahity of trade and other recevables s detarled in note 13
Financial nstitution counterparties are subject to approval under the Group’s counterparty nisk policy and such approval is kmited to financial institutions
with a BBB rating or above The Group uses BBB and higher rated counterparties to manage nsk and uses BBB rated counterparties by exception The
amount of exposure 10 any ndndual counterparty 1s subject to a kimit defined within the courterparty nsk policy which 1s reassessed annually by the
Board Derwvative financial instruments are only traded with counterparties approved in accordance with the Board approved policy Dervative risk s
measured using a nsk weighting method

The table below summarises the Group's major financial institution counterparties by credst rating {lower of S&P and Moodys) and balances (cash
eguvalents, derwvatve financial instruments, deposits) at the balance sheet date

Counterparty Risk
2013 2012
Crednt Lmrt  Exposure Credit Limit Exposure
Counterparty rating £m £m rating £m Em
Bank A AA- 200 142 Al 175 157
Bank B A+ 150 113 A 125 125
Bank C A 125 97 A 100 89
Bank D AAA 300 92 - - -
Bank E A+ 150 83 A 125 97
Bank f A+ 150 79 - - -
Bank G A 125 78 A 100 64
Bank H A- 75 59 A 75 36
Bank i A- 75 57 A 100 36
Bank J A 125 52 A 100 84

3 Liquidrty Risk

Cash flow forecasting 1s performed by the local business units and aggregated by GT GT monitars roling forecasts of the Group's iquidity requiremeants
to ensure 1t has sufficent cash 1o meet operational needs while maintatning sufficient headroom on s undrawn commutted borrowing facthties Funds
over and above those required for short-term working capital purposes by the overseas businesses are generally remitted to GT The Group uses the
remittances to settle obligations, repay borrowings, or, in the event of a surplus, invest in short-term instruments 1ssued by institutions with a BBB rating
or better

Borrowtng Facilittes
The Group has various borrowing faciities available to it The Group has bifateral credit facilities with high-quality international banks All of these
faciities have simifar or equivalent terms and conditrons, and have a financial covenant, which 1s not expected 1o restrict the Groups future operations

At the end of 2013, the Group had, in addition to its long-term debt of £588m (2012 £3m} committed borrowing faciities totalling £4,350m

(2012 £4,000m) of which £3,500m exceeded 12 months matunty Of the total fackities at the year end, £nil {2012 £nul) was utiised The committed
borrowing facilities, together with avarlable uncommitted faciities and central cash and investrments, are considered sufficient to meet the Group's
projected cash requirements

The undrawn commutted faciities available, in respect of which all condisons precedent have been met at the balance sheet date were as follows

2013 2012
£m fm

Undrawn commuitted borrowing faciliies
Expiring within one year 850 400
Expiring between one and two years 500 850
Expinng after more than two years 3,000 2750
4,350 4,000

Alt borrowing facilities are at floating rates of interest
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14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
The facilities have been arranged to cover general corporate purposes mcluding support for commercial paper 1ssuance All facilities incur commutment
fees at market rates

Headroom between net debt and available faciiues at 31 December 2013 was £2 254m (2012 £1,574m)
The Group's borrowing limit at 31 December 2013 calculated n accordance with the Articles of Association was £61.689m (2012 £60,468m)

The tabte below analyses the Group s financial habilities and the dervatives which will be settled on a net basis inio retevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining penod at the balance sheet date to the contractual matunity date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows which have been calculated using spot rates at the relevant balance sheet date, including interest to be paid

Less than Between 1 Between 2 Qver

Total 1year and 2years and 5 years 5 years

At 31 Decernber 2013 £m £m £m £m £m
Commercal paper {2,159 (2.159) - - -
8onds {744) (17) 17) (354) (356)
Other borrowings (22) 19 - (3) -
Trade payables (991) (991) - - -
QOther payables (1,820) (1,777) {15) (34) -
Lessthan  Between 1  Between 2 Over

Total 1year and2years and 5years S years

At 31 December 2012 £m fm im £m £m
Commercial paper (3,250  (3.250) - - -
Other borrowings {24} (21) - 3 -
Trade payables (548) (948) - - -
QOther payables {(t,767) (17500 - (17) -

The table below analyses the Group's denvative financial instruments which will be settled on a gross basis into relevant matunity groupings based
on the remaining period between the balance sheet and the contractual maturity date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows which have been calculated using spot rates at the relevant balance sheet date

Less than Between ' Between 2 Over
1year and 2 years and 5 years 5 yaars
At 31 December 2013 £m im £m £m
Forward exchange contracts
Outflow (5.240) 4a7) - -
Inflow 5,099 47 - -
Lessthan  Between 1 Between 2 Qver
1year and 2years and 5 years S years
At 31 Decermber 2012 £m fm fm fm
Forward exchange contracts
Quiflow {4,233} (70 - -
Inflow 4,190 70 - -
4 Capital Management
The Group considers caprtal to be net debt plus total equity Net debt is calculated as total borrowings Jess cash and cash equivalents, short-term
avallable for sale financial assets and finanaing denvative financial instruments {refer to note 16} Total equity includes share capital, reserves and
retained earnings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet
2013 2012
£m £fm
Net debit {note 16) 2,096 2,426
Total equity 6,336 5922
8,432 8,348

The objectives for managing caprtal are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, n order to provide returns for Shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintan an efficient capital structure to optimise the cost of capital

In maintaining an appropnate capial structure and providing returns for Sharehofders the Company provided returns te Shareholders in 2013 in the
form of dvidends and the buy back of shares Refer to notes 27 and 22 respectively

The Group monitors net debt and at year end the Group had net debt of £2,096m (2012 £2,426m) The Group seeks to pay down net debt using cash
generated try the business to maintain an appropnate fevet of financia! flexibility
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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2013 2012

fm fm
Cash at bank and in hand 304 n
Short-term bank deposits 504 516
Cash and cash equivalents 808 887

The Group operates in a number of terrtones, where there are either foreign currency exchange restrictions or where 1t 15 difficult for the Group to
extract cash readily and easily in the short-term As a result £109m (2012 £115m) of cash included 1n cash and cash equivalents 1s restricted for use by

the Gioup
16 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
2013 2012
Current £m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts’ 18 19
Commercal paper? 2,149 3,250
Finance lease obligations 2 2
2,169 32N
2013 2012
Non-current £m £m
Bonds 595 -
Finance lease obligations 3
598
1 Bank loans are denomunated n a number of currencies, all are unsecured and bear interest based on relevant LIBOR equivalent
2 Commeraial paper was i1ssued in US dollars 1s unsecured and bears interest based on relevant LIBOR eguivalent
2013 2012
Maturity of debt £m fm
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable
Within one year or on demand 138 19
Other borrowings repayable
Within one year
Commeraal paper 2,149 3,250
Finance leases 2 2
Between two and five years
Bonds 299 -
Finance feases (payable by instalments) 3 3
Over five years
Bonds 296 -
2,749 3,255
Gross borrowings {unsecured) 2,767 3,274
2013 2012
Analysis of net debt £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 808 887
Overdrafts (3} (5
Borrowings {excluding overdrafts) {2,764) (3,269)
Current avarlable for sale financial assets 2 4
Derwative financial instruments {139} (43)
{2,096} (2,426)
2013 2012
Reconcliation of net debt £m £m
Net debt at beginning of year (2,426) {1795)
Net (decreaselfincrease in cash and cash equivalents (38) 264
Repayment of borrowings 1,002 112
Proceeds from borrowings (637) (887}
Borrowings acquired in business combinagion - (99)
Exchange and other movements 1) (21}
Met debt at end of year {2,096} {2,426}
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17 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Legal Restiuctuting Other Total
provisions provisions provisions provisions
£m fm £m fm
At 1 January 2012 {restated)’ 34 30 114 178
Charged 10 the income statement 26 123 16 165
Ansing on business combination 7 - 14 21
Utilised during the year (8} (87 (a1 (136)
Released to the income statement - - (23) (23
Exchange adjustments - - 1) M
At 31 December 2012 (restatedy 59 66 79 204
Charged to the income statement 241 9 30 280
Arising on business combination - - 21 21
Utilised durng the year 9 (39) {a0) 88
Released to the tncome statement {6) (12) (29) 47
Exchange adjustments ] - - 1
At 31 December 2013 286 24 61 n
Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows 12
2013 {restatedy
fm fm
Current 215 104
Non-current 156 100
371 204

' Provisions previously reported as Other provisions’ have now been reported as ‘Legal’ and "Other” provisions
? Refer to note 26 for further details

Provisions are recogmised when the Group has a present or constructive obligation as a result of past events it 1s more likely than not that there will be
an outflow of resources to settle that obhigation, and the amount ¢an be reltably esumated

Legal provisions include £222m (2012 £nil) of exceptional legal provisions n relation to a number of historic reguiatory investigations by vanous
government authonties in a number of markets These investigations involve mainly competition law inquines

The restructuring prowsion relates principally to redundancies, the majenity of which 1s expected to be utilised within one year
Other prowsions include onerous lease provisions expinng between 2014 and 2016 of £6m (2012 £7m} and envirenmental and other obligations
throughout the Group, the majorty of which are expected to be used within five years

18 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

2013 2012
£m fm

Total future mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases due
Within one year 57 37
Later than one and less than five years 90 72
After five years 23 32
170 141

Operating lease rentals charged to the income statement 10 2013 were £71m {2012 £54m)

As at 31 Decernber 2013, total amounts expected to be received under non-cancellable sub-lease arrangements were £4m (2012 £5my)
Amounts credited to the income statement m respect of sub-lease arrangements were £1m (2012 £2m)

19 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent habilties compnising guarantees relating to subsichary undertakings, at 31 December 2013 amounted to £1m (2012 £3m)

The Group Is iInvalved in a number of investigations by government auihonues and has made provisions for such investigations, where appropriate
Where it 15 too early to determine the likely outcome of these matters the Directors have made no prowision for such potential habilities

The Group from tme to tme 1s involved in disputes in relation to ongoing tax matters in a number of junsdictions around the world Where
appropnate, the Directors make provisions based on thesr assessment of each case
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2013 2012

fm £m

Trade payables 991 943
Other payables 127 119
Other tax and social security payable 112 98
Accruals 1.685 1677
2,915 2,842

21 PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS

The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans around the world covering many of its employees which

are principally funded The Group's most significant defined benefit pension plan {UK} is a final salary plan which closed 1o new entrants in 2005

As at 31 December 2013 there were 6,902 (2012 6 843) partictpants recelving benefits, 5,949 (2012 6,168} participants with deferred benefits and
365 (2012 S16) active participants  Trustees of the plan are apponted by the Group, active members and pensioner rmembership, and are responsible
for the governance of the plan, including paying all administrative costs and compliance wath regulations The plan s funded by the payment of
contnbutions to the plan's Trust, which 1s a separate entity from the rest of the Group The Group also operates a number of other post-retirement plans
in certain countries  The major plan 1s i the US (US Retiree Health Care Plan), where salaned participants become ehgible for retiree heafth care benefits
after they reach a combined ‘age and years of service rendered figure of 70, although the age must be a mimimum of 55 This plan closed to new
members in 2009 As at 31 December 2013 there were 2,422 (2012 2 691} ehgible retirees and 1,061 (2012 1,193} current employees potentially
eligible A Benefits Commuttee of the plan 15 appointed by the Group and s responsible for the governance of the plan, including paying all
admirustrative costs and compliance with regulations This plan 1s unfunded

202
2013 (restated)’
fm £m
Balance sheet assets for
Other 50 27
Asset in balance sheet 50 27
Balance sheet obligations for
(F].4 (68) (177
US (medical) (117} (128)
Other {116} (121
Liability in balance sheet (301) (426)
Net pension hability (251) {399)
Income statement charge included in operating profit for?
Cefined contnbution plans 27 25
Defined benefit plans (net charge excluding interest}
UK 9 8
US (medical) 3 (n
Other 12 11
Jotal pension costs recognmised In operating profit (note 5) 51 43
Income statement charge included in net finance expense {note 6) 8 19
Income statement charge included in profit on ordinary activities before tax 59 62
Remeasurements (gains)/losses for
UK {25) 34
US {medicah) (12) 2
Qther {31) 16
{68) 52
! Refer to note 1 for further details
2 The income statement charge included within operating profit includes current service cost, admemistrative costs, past service costs and gains and
losses on settlement and curtailment
The amounts recogmised in the balance sheet are determined as follows
2013 2012
{restated)!
us us
UK  {medical) Other Total ux {medical) Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m fm fm
Present value of funded obligations {1,223) - {258) (1,481) (1,181) - (257)  (1,438)
Fair value of plan assets 1,155 - 303 1,458 1,004 - 277 1,281
{Deficty/surplus of funded plans (68) - a5 {23) 77 - 20 {157)
Present value of unfunded obhgations - (1n (111) {228) - (128) (114} (242)
Liabtity in balance sheet {68) {(117) {66} {251) a77) (128) (94} (399)

! Refer to note 1 for further details
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21 PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

The movement in the Group’s net hability 1s as follows

Present value of obligation

WEALFN  NTGIENE S MOMT

Falr value of plan assets

us us
UK  (medical) Other Total UK (madskal} Other Total
im £m fm £m im £m £m
At 1 January 2012 {restated) 1,092 133 357 1,582 (896) - (216) {1,112
Current service €ost 8 3 Bl 22 - - - -
Curtallment gamn - (4) - 4} - - - -
Interest expensefincome) 51 6 14 71 42) - (10) (52)
59 5 25 89 {42) - (10) (52)
Remeasurements
- Return on pian assets excluding amounts included in
interest income - - - - @1 - (6) 47
- (GainMoss from changes in demographic assumptions (4} 3 - (7) - - - -
- (GainNoss from change i assumptions as 13 9 107 - - - -
- Expenence lossesAgains) &) 8) 13 (1 - - - -
75 2 22 99 (41} - 6) {47)
Exchange differences - ® (13 {19} - - 10 10
Contributions - employees 1 - - 1 (1) - - (1)
Contnbutions — employers - - - - (70} (6} (7% {157)
Payments from plans
Benefit payments (46) &) (20 (72) 46 6 20 72
As at 31 December 2012 (restated)’ 1,181 128 3N 1,680 (1,004} - (277 (1,281)
' Refer to note 1 for further details
At 1 January 2013 1.181 128 n 1,680 (1.004) - (277) {1,281
Current service cost 9 3 12 24 - - - -
Interest expenseAmcome) 50 5 12 67 (44) - (15) (59)
59 8 24 91 (44) - (15 (59)
Remeasurements
- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included 1n
interest Income - - - - {51} - (26) (7
- (Gain)/toss from changes in demographic assumptions {10) 9 6 5 - - - -
- (Gaim/loss from change in assurmptions 25 (13) (21) 9) - - -
- Expenence (gams)/losses " (8) 10 13 - - - -
26 (12 {5) 9 (51) - (26) (7n
Exchange differences - (2) 4] (3) - - (1) N
Contnbutions — employees 1 - - 1 () - - {1)
Contnbutions — employers - - - - (99) (5) (4) (108)
Payments from plans
- Benefit paymentis (44) {5) (20) (69) 44 5 20 69
As at 31 December 2013 4,223 117 369 1,709 {1,155) - {303) {1,458)
The sigruficant actuanal assumptions used for the two major plans as at 31 December 2013 were
2013 2012
us us
UK {medical} UK {medial}
% % % %
Rate of increase in pensignable salanies 36 - 45 -
Rate of increase 1n deferred pensions duning deferment 34 - 29 -
Rate of mcrease in pension payments - pensioners 31 - 27 -
Rate of increase in pension payments — non-pensioners 31 - 27 -
Discount rate 44 48 43 41
Inflatron assumption 36 - 30 -
Annual medical cost inflation - 50-90 - 50-90
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21 PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set it accordance with published statistics and experience in each territory For the UK plan the
mortality assumptions were based on the following tables, the average (ife expectancy in years of a pensioner retinng at aged 60 on the balance sheet
date is as fotlows

2013 2012

Uk us UK us

years years years years

Male 284 251 282 241
Female 303 275 301 258

The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retinng at aged 60 (15 years after the balance sheet date for the UK and 20 years after the balance
sheet date for the US), 15 as follows

2013 2012

uK us UK us

years years years years

Male 302 273 300 257
Female 322 294 319 267

For the UK plan the mortahity assumptions were based on the standard SAPS mortality table with medium cohort improvements to 2009 (scaled by 90%
for males and 100% for females) Allowance for future improvements 1s made by adopting the 2012 edition of the CMi senies with a long term trend of
1 5% per annum

For the US plan the mortality assumptions were determined using the RP2000 Generational Mortality Table
The sensitivity of the UK defined benefit obligation to changes in the prinapal assumptions

Change in Defined

Change in assumption Benefit Obligation

Discount rate Increase 0 1% Decrease by 1 8%
RPlincrease Increase 0 1% Increase by 1 4%
Life expectancy Members younger by 1 year Increase by 2 3%

The above sensttivity analyses are based on a change in one assumption while holding all other assumptions constant In practice, this 15 unlikely 1o
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated

Impact of medical cost trend rates
A one percentage change in the assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects

impact on defined benefit obligation

2013 2012

+1% 1% +1% -1%

£m £m fm im
Effect on service cost and nterest cost 1 (1) 2 (n
Effect on post-retirernent benefit obkgation 18 (15) 20 (16)

Group plan assets are compnised as follows

2013 2012

{restated)

us us

UK  (medical) Other Total UK {medical} Other Total

£m £m £m £m fm im £fm Em

Total equities 293 - 163 456 407 - 143 550
Total bonds 655 - 120 775 521 - 102 623
Total property 196 - 11 207 68 - 7 75
Total other assets 1" - 9 20 8 - 25 33
Fair value of plan assets 1,155 - 303 1,458 1,004 - 277 1,281

! Refer to note 1 for further details
All Total equities and Total bonds are quoted investments Al Total other assets are unquoted nvestrents

Through its defined benefit pension plans and post-employment medical plans, the group 5 exposed to a number of nisks the most significant of which
are detatled below

Asset volatiity The plan habilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields, if plan assets underperform thss
yield, this wall create a deficit Both the UK and US plans hold equities, which are expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long-term while
prowiding volatility and risk in the short-term As the plans mature, the Group intends to reduce the fevel of investment nsk by investing more in assets
that better match the habilities All the UK plans have agreed with the Company a plan to de-risk the investment strategy of the plans at a pace that
15 commensurate with a planned return to full funding over a reasonable time scale The de-riskeng plan provides for 2 proportion of the investment
portfolio to move from equity holdings to government and corporate bonds over time The corporate bonds are global securnities with an emphasis on
the UK and US However the Group believes that due to the long-term nature of the plan liabiittes and the strength of the supporting Group, a level
of continuing equity Investment 15 an appropriate element of the Group's long-term strategy to manage the plans efficently

Changes in bond yields A decrease in corparate bond yeelds will increase plan habilties although thes wall be partially offset by an increase in the
value of the plans’ bond holdings
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21 PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Inflation nsk Some of the Group pension obhgatrons are inked to snflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities {although, n most
cases, caps on the level of nflationary increases are n place to protect the plan against extreme inflation) The majonty of the plans assets are erther
unaifected by (fixed mterest bonds) or loosely correlated with (equitres) infiation meaning that an increase in inflanon will also increase the deficit

In the US plans, the pensions in payment are not linked to inflation, 5o this 1s a less matenal risk

Life expectancy The majonity of the plans’ obligations are to provide benefits for the Iife of the member Whilst the plans allow for an increase i
Iife expectancy, ncreases above this assumpuion will result n an increase in the plans’ habiliies This 1s partscularly sigrificant in the UK plan, where
inflatlonary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy

Change in regulations The Group is aware that future changes to the regulatory framework may impact the funding basis of the various plans in the
future The Group s pensions department monitors the changes in legisfation and analyses the nisks as and when they occur

Investments are we!l diversified such that the fadure of any single investment would not have a matenal impact on the overall leve! of assets A large
portion of assets in 2013 consists of quoted equities and quoted bonds, although the group also invests in property, and cash The group beheves
that quoted equities offer the best returns over the long term with an acceptable level of nsk The Trustees of all the UK funds have moved the
overwhelming majority of their assets to low cost investment funds in consultation with the Company whilst mamntaining & prudent diversification

For the fargest UK plan, a full ndependent actuanal valuation was carned out at 5 Apnl 2010 and a new valuation 1s curtently underway with an
effective date of 5 Apnil 2013 For the US plan, a full Independent actuanal valuation was carried out at 1 January 2012 The Group has agreed that it
wilt aim to ehminate the pension plan deficit i the UK and kreland over the next four years Funding levels are monstored on an annual basis and the
current agreed contnibution rate 15 19 5% of pensionable salanies 1n the UK and ril in the US The triennial valuation for the largest UK plan (effective
date 5 Apnl 2013) 1s due to be finahsed during 2014 and any further contributions in excess of the ongoing contribution rate of 19 5% will be finalised
at that time The total contribution expected for 2014 1s £54m and wall be finalised when the current UK plan valuation 15 signed off by the Group and
Trustee The Group considers that the contnbution rates set at the last valuation date, and any future further contributions in excess of the contnbuuion
rate will be sufficient to eliminate the deficit over the agreed penod and that regular contributions which are based on senvice costs, wilk not mcrease
significantly For the purpose of 1A519 the projected urit valuatron method was used for the UK and US plans rolking forward the preliminary UK plan
tnienmial valuatron results (at 5 Apeil 2013) and the 1 January 2012 US plan valuatron to 31 December 2013 For the largest UK plan, the waighted
average duration of the deferred benefit obltgation 1s 17 3 years (2012 17 3 years)

22 SHARE CAPITAL
Equsty Nominal  Subscrber Nominal

ordinary value ordinary value

Issued and fully paid shares £m shares £m
At 1 January 2013 734,210 757 73 2 -
Aliotments 2,324,422 1 - -
At 31 December 2013 736,535,179 74 2 -
Equity Nominal — Subscriber Nominal

ordinary value ardinary value

Issued and fully pawd shares £m shares fm
At 1 January 2012 728,621,602 73 2 -
Allotments 5,589 155 - - -
At 31 December 2012 734,210757 73 2 -

The holders of equity ordinary shares (par valve 10p) are entitled 1o recewe dividends as declared from time to tme and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Parent Company

The holders of subscriber ordinary shares (par value £1) have no entitfement to dwdends Holders have no nght to attend or vote at any general meeting
of the Company unless a resolution 15 proposed to wind up the Company or vary the nghis attached to the subscriber shares

Aliotment of ordinary shares
Duning the year 2,324,422 ordinary shares {2012 5,589,155 ordinary shares) were allotted and 4,258,793 ordinary shares were released from Treasury
(2012 nil} to satisfy vestings/exercaises under the Group's vanious share schemes as follows

2013 2012

Number Consideratton Number Consideration

Ordinary shares of 10p of shares fm of shares £m
Executive Share Options — exercises 4,638,734 131 3,024 735 74
Rastricted Shares Awards — vesting 1,571,035 - 1,405 345 -
Total under Executive Share Option and Restricted Share Schemes 6,209,769 131 4,430,080 74
Semor Executives Share Ownership Policy Plan — vesting 40,000 - 20,000 -
Savings-Related Share Option Schemes — exercises 333,446 7 1,139,075 24
Total 6,583,215 138 5,589,155 98

Market Purchases of Shares

Duning 2013 the Company purchased 6,000,000 equity ordinary shares in accordance with its share buy back programme (2012 14,991,643) all

of which are held as Treasury shares The total amount paid to acquire the shares was £279m {(including stamp duty) which has been deducted from
Shareholders’ equity (2012 £535m} 4,258,793 Treasury shares were released in 2013 leaving a balance held at 31 December 2013 of 16,732,850
{2012 14,991,643)
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23 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Group operates a number of incentive schemes including a share option scheme a restnicted share scheme and other share award schemes
All schemes are equity settled The charge for share-based payments for the year was £55m (2012 £49m)

Executive Share Awards

Share options and restricted shares (Executive share awards) are awarded to the Tep400 Management Group Executive Share Awards have a
contsactual ife of ten years but vest according to the followang compound average annual growth (CAAG) rates in adjusted earnings per share over a
three-year penod

Adjusted earnings per

CAAG share growth over % of options and
per year (%) three years (%) shares vesung
9 295 100
8 260 80
7 225 &0
6 191 40

The cost 15 spread over the three years of the performance perrod  For Executive Commuttee and Top40 members vesting conditions are not retested
For remainkng Top400 members the targets can be retested over four or five years if any target has not been met any remaining shares or options
which have not vested will lapse

Other Share Awards

Other share awards represent SAYE Schemes (offered 1o all staff within the relevant geographac area) and a number of Senior Executive Share
Ownership Policy Plan (SOPP) awards Other share awards have contractual lives of three to seven years and are generally not subject to any vesting
crnitena other than the employee's continued employment

Indwidual tranches of these other share awards are not material for detalled disclosure and therefore have been aggregated in the tables below

All putstanding Executive and Other share awards as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 are mncluded in the tables below which analyse the
charge for 2013 and 2012 The Group has used the Black-Scholes model to caiculate the fair value of one award on the date of the grant of the award

Table 1 Fair value
Black-Scholes model assumptions

Exercise Share pnce on DBrndend Risk-free  Fair value of
price Performance  grant date Volatility yield Ufe nterestrate  one award
Award Grant date £ period f % % years % £
Share options
2004 08 December 2003 1276 2004-06 1280 24 26 4 450 2 46
2005 06 December 2004 1547 200507 1544 23 23 4 488 299
2006 05 Pecember 2005 1810 2006-08 1816 22 24 4 469 333
2007 08 December 2006 22 57 2007-09 2300 20 22 4 465 423
2008 11 December 2007 2944 2008-10 2972 20 18 4 553 599
2009 08 December 2008 27 29 2009-11 27 80 25 31 4 278 4 68
2010 07 December 2009 3165 2010-12 3180 26 35 4 169 470
2011 01 December 2010 3464 2011-13 3408 26 43 4 216 4 49
2012 05 December 2011 3209 201214 3219 25 54 4 100 318
2013 03 December 2012 3914 201315 3966 20 43 4 061 329
2014 11 Decernber 2013 47 83 2014-16 46 69 19 37 4 076 385
Restricted shares
2009 08 December 2008 - 200S-11 27 80 25 31 4 278 243
2010 07 December 2009 - 201012 3180 26 35 4 169 27 23
2011 01 December 2010 - 2011-13 3408 26 43 4 216 28 22
2012 05 December 2011 - 201214 3219 25 54 4 100 25 30
2013 03 December 2012 - 201315 3966 20 43 4 061 3276
2014 11 December 2013 - 2014-16 46 69 19 37 4 076 3980
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23 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Table 2 Share awards movements 2013

#Movement :n number of options

Opuions Options
outstanding outstanding
Fair value of at 1 Jan Granted/ at 31 Dec
ane award 2013  adjustments Lapsed Exercised 2013
Award Grant date £ number number number number number
Share options
2004 08 December 2003 246 67,000 - - {67,000) -
2005 06 December 2004 299 165511 - - {52,061} 113,450
2006 05 December 2005 333 263,300 - - (35,0000 228,300
2007 08 December 2006 423 1,160,358 - -~ (841856) 318,502
2008 11 Decernber 2007 5499 1,844,079 - - (1037,886) 806,193
2009 08 December 2008 469 2,172,285 - {1,513)(1,075,071} 1 095 701
2010 07 December 2009 470 2955162 - (1,469) (1,155 308) 1,798,385
2011 0t December 2010 4 49 3,055,949 4667 (143,162) (359,422) 2,558,032
2012 05 December 2011 318 3,186,439 14,000 (264 914)  (15,130) 2,920 395
2013 03 December 2012 329 4,022,000 90,000 (791,412) - 3,320,588
2014 11 Decernber 2013 385 - 4,020,400 - - 4020400
Restricted shares
2010 07 December 2009 27 23 1,344 186 - (62) (1,344 124) -
201 01 December 2010 2822 1,396,412 2333 (71,097) (214,152) 1,113,496
2012 05 December 2011 2530 1,477,571 7.000 (122,364) (12,759) 1 349448
2013 03 December 2012 3276 1,986 000 104,000 {(472,355) - 1,617,645
2014 11 December 2013 3980 - 1985000 - - 1,985,000
Other share awards
UK SAYE vanous  Vamous 662,986 134,254 (52,920) (138,332) 605988
US SAYE Various  Varous 643,736 147,514 {68,637) (158,136) 564,477
Qverseas SAYE Various  Vanous 1,084,343 2,011 (76,991) (36,978) 972,385
SOPP Various Varigus 180,000 50,000 {10,000) (40000) 180,000
Weighted average exercise price (share options) £3213 £4757 £3703 £28 17 £36 57
Table 3 Share awards movements 2012
Movernent in number of aptions
Options Options
outstanding outstanding
Fair value of at 1ian Granted/ at 31 Dec
ane award 2012  adjustments Lapsed Exercised 2012
Award Grant date £ number number number numier number
Share options
2003 22 November 2002 205 67.319 - - (67 319) -
2004 08 December 2003 246 263,000 - - {196,000) 67 000
2005 06 December 2004 299 39851 - - (233,000 165511
2006 05 December 2005 333 58197 - - (318671) 263,300
2007 08 December 2006 423 1,516 358 - {1000) (355000)1,160,358
2008 i1 December 2007 599 2 790,668 ~  {3.000) (943580) 1,844,079
2009 08 December 2008 469 2,991,334 - (5353 (813,696)2,172,285
2010 07 December 2009 470 3,229,322 - (182958} (91,202) 2 955,162
2011 01 December 2010 449 3 558,047 — {496 841) {6,257) 3,055,949
2012 05 December 2011 318 4,020,400 (686,800) {147,161} - 3186439
2013 03 Decemnber 2012 329 - 4 022,000 - - 4 022,000
Restricted shares
2009 08 December 2008 24 31 1,338916 - {2,000} (1,336,916} -
2010 07 December 2009 27 23 1493830 -~ (86447) (63197)1,344186
2011 01 December 2010 28 22 1,620,015 25000 (243 371) {5232)1,3%6,412
2012 05 December 2011 25 30 2,010 200 (461,550} (71,079} - 1,477,571
2013 03 December 2012 3276 - 1,986 000 - - 1,986 000
Other share awards
UK SAYE Vanous Vanous 754,823 152,282 (77,753} {166,366) 662986
US SAYE vanous  Vanous 722362 203972 (109,551) {173,047} 843736
Qverseas SAYE Vanous  Vanous 1,975 152 7.956 (99,103} {799 662) 1,084 343
SOPP Various  Vanous 100,000 110,000 (10,0000 {20000) 180000
werghted average exercse price (Share options) £2953 £33 17 £3346 £24 37 £3213

For options outstanding at the year end the weighted average remaining contractual hife 1s 5 63 years (2012 5 69 years) Options outstanding at
31 December 2013 that could have been exercised at that date were 4,360,531 (2012 5 672,533) with a weighted average exerase pnce of £28 35

(2012 £2608)
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The assumptions made within the valuation calculation with respect to the achievement of performance criterta are based on the Directors’ expectations

n hght of the Group's bustness mode! and relevant published targets

Under the terms of the plans early exercise may only be granted 1n exceptional circumstances and therefore the effect of early exercise is not incorporated

into the calculation

The calculation also assurnes that there will be no leavers in the following year No material modifications have been made to the plans in 2013 or 2012

for the purposes of the valuation

Volatiity An esumate of future volatlity is made wath reference to historical volatihty over a similar time peniod to the performance pertod or the contractual

life as appropriate

Historical volatility 1s calculated based on the annualised standard deviation of the Group's daily share price movement baing an approxrmation to the

continuously compounded rate of return on the share

Navonal Insurance contnbutions are payable in respect of certain share-based payment transactions and are treated as cash-settled transactions

The contrnibution 1n 2013 was £35m (2012 £27m)
The weighted average share price for the year was £45 80 (2012 £3579)

Options and restricted shares granted during the year
Options and restncted shares which may vest or become exercisable at various dates between 2015 and 2021 are as follows

Number of
Price to be paid shares under
£ option
Long-Term incentive Plan 2007 - share options 47 83 4,110,400
Long-Term Incentive Plan 2007 - restricted shares - 2,089,200
Reckitt Benckiser Serwor Executwes Share Ownership Policy Plan - 40,000
Total 6,239,600
Savings-Related Share Option Schemes
UK Scheme 3720 129,438
US Scheme 3720 147,514
Total 276,952
Options and restricted shares unvested/unexercised at 31 December 2013
Options and restnicted shares which have vested or may vest at vanous dates between 2014 and 2020 are as follows
Price to be paid £ Numbar of shares under aption
Executive share option and restricted share schemes From To 2013 2012
Reckitt Benckiser 1999 Share Option Plan ~ Annual Grant 1276 18 10 341,750 485,811
Reckitt Benckiser Long-term Incentve Plan 2006 ~ Annual Grant - options 22 57 2257 318,502 1,160,358
Reckitt Benckiser Long-term incentive Plan 2007 - Annual Grant — options 27 29 47 83 16,519,694 17,235,914
Reckitt Benckiser Long-term Incentve Plan 2007 — Annual Grant — restricted shares - - 6,065,789 6204,169
Reckitt Benckiser Senior Executives Share Ownership Policy Plan - - 180,000 180 000
23,425,735 25,276,252
Price to be paid £ Number of shares under option
Savings-related share option schemes From o 2013 2012
UK Scheme 1690 37 20 605,988 662,986
US Scheme 2578 3720 564,477 643,736
Cverseas Scheme 2195 27 99 972,385 1084,343
Total 2,142,850 2,391,065

Executve Share Options are awarded at an exercise price determined on grant and payable on exeraise following satisfaction of performance criteria

Restricted share awards entitle the reciplent to recewve shares at no cost following satisfaction of performance cntena
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24 RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES
The merger reserve relates to the 1999 combination of Reckitt & Cotman plc and Benckiser NV and a Group reconstruction in 2007 treated as a merger
under Part 27 of the Companies Act 2006

The hedging reserve compnses the effective portion of the cumulative net change n farr value of cash flow hedging instruments related to hedge
transactions that are extant at year end

The foreign currency translation reserve contams the accumulated foreign exchange differences from the translation of the financial statements of the
Group's foreign operations ansing when the Group’s entities are consofidated The reserve also contains the translation of liabilities that hedge the Group's
net exposure in a foreign currency

25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
On 19 March 2013 the Group purchased an additional 25% of Shanghai Manon Trading Company Limited, thereby increasing its share to 75 01%
The ¢consideration for the transaction amounted to £28m, including transaction costs

Key management compensation i disclosed in note 5a

The principal subsidiary undertakings included in the consohdated financial statements at 31 December 2013 are disclosed in note 2 to the Parent Company
financial statements

26 BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

a Collaboration with Bristol-Myers Squibb (BMS)

On 8 May 2013 the Group receved regulatory approval for a three-year collaboration agreement with BMS for a number of market-leading over-the-
counter consumer health care brands 1 Brazil, Mexico and certain other parts of Latin America This arrangement, which also includes personnel
supply contracts and an option to acquire legal title to the related wtellectual property at the end of the collaboration period for a muluple of earnings
was secured for an upfront cash payment of $482m (£311m)

This transaction 1s accounted for as a business combination under IFRS 3 {(Revised) Business Combinations

The collaboration agreement provides the Group with an immediate health care platform, distnbution network and infrastructure in Latin Amenca and
trusted brands wrth a strong fit with the Group’s exssting health portfolio

All assets and liabilitres were recognised at the following prowvisional fair values The amount of consideration transferred over the net assets acquired
15 recognised as goodwill in the Group financial statements

Provisional

farr value

£m

Intangible asset 57
Deferred tax assets 4
Prowvisions (16}
Net assets acquired 45
Goodwiit 6
Consideration transferred for net assets and goodwill =3
Payment for prepaid option 250
Total consideration transferred 33
Cash consideration 31
Deferred consideration 20
Total consideration transferred 33

Related to the transaction, payments totalling £250m have been attnibuted 10 the future option to acquire legal title to the related inteltectual property
The option 15 exercisable by the Group at the end of the collaboration penod, subject to certain payments, 1n addrtion to the £331m 10 be made at that
ume The prepayment of this option is not an asset purchased as part of the business combination under IFRS 3 (Revised) and is therefore disclosed
separately In the table above The prepayment is included in other non-current recevables

The intangible asset acquired relates to the three-year collaboration agreement

Goodwll represents the strategic premium to establish an immediate platform, infrastructure and distribution network in the Latin Amencan ovei-the-
counter consumer health care market the value of expected synergy savings, and assembled workforce

Acquisition related costs of £3m are included in net operating expenses and exceptional items in the income statement

The farr values of identifiable net assets are stated at provisional amounts which will be finalised within the 12-month hindsight pertod following
acquisition Provisional fair vatue adjustments cover the recognition of acquired intangibles and their asscciated deferred tax and accounting

policy alignment

All assets and habthties are included within the LAPAC operating segment and the heaith category The amount of revenue and profit of the BMS
business since acguisition were not material in the context of the Group Income Statement Had the business been acquired on 1 January 2013 the
revenue and profit of the Group for the year would not have been matenally dfferent to those appearing in the Group Income Statement
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26 BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (CONTINUED)

b Acquisiton of Schaff

On 14 December 2012 the Group acquired control of Schiff by acquinng 100% of the 1ssued share capital for a consideration of $1 3bn (£813m) Schiff
1s a leading provider of branded vitamins nutrition supplements and nutrition bars predorminantly in the US Schiff’s itamins minerals and supplernents
(VMS) product portfolio includes a number of market-leading brands in the specialist product category in the US This transaction has been accounted
for by the acquisiion method

The fair values of the identifiable assets and hiabilities at the date of acquisition were provisionally estimated and disclosed in the 2012 Annual Report
and Financial Statements The table below sets out the movements from the provisional fair values detailed in the 2012 Annual Report and financial
Statements and the updated final fair values at acquisition date The adjustments made to restate the Group balance sheet primarily relate to the
recogrition of a minor brand intangible, and adjustments to provisions for legal matters and trade related expenses due to additional information whach
has come to hght dunng the hundsight penod and recognition of related deferred tax kabilities

These adjustments have been recorded as a prior year restatement of the balance sheet of the Group as at 31 December 2012 There 15 no 1mpact to
the Group mcorme statement for the year ended 31 December 2012

Provisisnal far Additional Final far values

values at fair value at acquisition

acquisition date adustments date

£m £m fm

Intangible assets 311 4 815
Property, plant and equipment 9 1) 8
Inventores 27 27
Trade and other recevables 27 27
Current tax recewvable 9 9
Cash and cash eguwalents 6 6
Borrowings (99) {99}
Provistans for liatwlties and charges {current} (42) 24 (18}
Trade and other payabtes 3N (37}
Deferred tax friabilities (268) (10) (278)
Prowisions for habilittes and charges {non-current} 3 3
Qther non-current hiabidities {1} (1)
Net assets acquired 439 17 456
Goodwill 374 (17} 357
Total consideration transferred 813 - 813
Total cash consideration 813 - 813
Total consideration transferred 813 - 813

The intangible assets acquired include the brand assets associated with Airborne Digestive Advantage, MegaRed, Move Free and Schiff Vitamins

¢ Minor Acquisitions and Disposals
On 8 January 2013 the Group obtained control of Orniental Medicine Company Limited, a manufacturer of traditronal Chinese sore throat products,
by acquinng 100% of the share capital for cash consideration of £102m A further £18m of cash consideration is deferred over the next three years

On 17 September 2012 the Group acquired a 100% mterest in SICO by acquining the trade and business assets of the leading Mexican condom
manufacturer

On 29 May 2012 the Group sold the Paras personal care business for £81m, net of cash disposed A gain of £32miis recognised in the income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2012, of which £15m arnises from deferred tax

27 DIVIDENDS

2013 2012
£m £m

Dwvidends on equity ordinary shares

2012 Fnal pard 78p (2011 Final 70p) per share 561 511

2013 Intenm paid 60p (2012 Intenm 56p} per share 431 405

Total dwdends for the year 992 916

In addrtion, the Directors are proposing a final dividend i respect of the financal year ended 31 December 2013 of 77p per share which will absorb
an astimated £554m of Shareholders’ funds If approved by Shareholders it will be paid on 29 May 2014 to Shareholders who are on the register on
21 February 2014 with an ex-dmdend date of 19 February 2014

28 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 24 February 2014 part of a wider legal case was settled, which related to one of the current provisions held at the balance date The remaining
provisions that were held in relation to this case at the balance sheet date are still considered to be appropnate
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Five-year Summary

Income statement

2012
2013 {restated)! 2011 2010 2009
£m fm £m £m £m

Net revenue

10,043 9,567 9,485 8,453 7,753

Operating profit 2,345 2,442 2,395 2130 1891
Adjusted operating profit 2,616 2,577 2 487 2231 189N
Exceptional ltems 271} (135 {92) (101} -
Operating profit 2,345 2,442 2,395 2,130 1,891
Net finance (expense)income 31) (34} (19 6 1

Profit on ordinary activrties before tax
Tax on profit on ardinary activities
Attributable to non-controfling interests

2,314 2,408 2376 2,136 1,892
(574) (583) (622) (566) (474
(1 {4) {9 @ -

Net income attnbutable to owners of the parent

1,739 1,821 1,745 1 568 1,418

Balance sheet
Net assets
Net waorking capital

6,336 5922 5781 5,130 4014
(863) (700} (701} (639) (867)

Statistics

Reported basis

Operating margin

Total interest to operating profit {times covered)
Tax rate

Diluted earnings per share

Dvidend cover*

Declared dividends per ordinary share
Adjusted basis*

Operating margin

Total interest to operating profit (umes covered)
Diluted earnings per share

Dwidend cover!

233%  255% 253% 252%  244%

75 6x 718 126 1x n/a n/a
248%  242%  262%  265%  250%
2385p 2484p  2371p 2138  1947p

18x 1 9x 19% 1 Ox 20x
137p 134p 125p 115p 100p
26 0% 269% 26 2% 26 4% 24 4%
84 4x 75 8x 130 9x nfa nfa
2698p 2633p 2471p 2265p  1947p
20x 20x 20x 2 0x 20x

+ Dwidend cover is calculated by dwiding basic earnings/adjusted earnings per share by ordinary dividends per share relating 10 the year

* Adjusted basis 15 calculated by adding/deducting the exceptional items from net income for the year

! Restated for change i IAS 19 as discussed in note 1 to the Group financial statements 2011 and prior years have not been restated
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Parent Company Independent Auditors’

Report to the Members of Reckitt

Benckiser Group plc

Report on the Parent Company
Finanaial Statements

Qur Opimion
in our opinion the Pasent Company financiat
statements

» Give a true and fasr view of the state
of the Parent Company's affairs as at
31 December 2013,

Have been praperly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

Have been prepared in accordance with the
requirernents of the Companies Act 2006

This opinion 1s to be read 1n the context of
what we say in the remainder of this report

What we have Audited

The Parent Company financial statements,
which are prepared by Reckitt Bencksser Group
plc comprise

+ The Parent Company balance sheet as at
31 December 2013, and

+ The notes to the Parent Company financial
statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in therr preparation comprises
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

In applying the financial reporting framework,
the Directors have made a number of subjective
judgements, for example in respect of
sgnificant accounting estimates In making
such estimates, they have made assumptions
and considered future events

Certain disclosures required by the financial
reporting framework have been presented
elsewhere in the Annual Report and Financial
Statements {'Annual Report’), rather than in
the notes to the finangial statements These are
cross-referenced from the financial statements
and are identified as audited

What an Audit of Financial Statements
involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK &
Ireland) (‘ISAs (UK & Ireland)’) An audit involves
obtaming evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient
to gve reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of
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Whether the accounting pohicies are
appropriate to the Parent Company’s
arcumstances and have been consistently
apphied and adequately disclosed,

The reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Directors, and

The overall presentation of the financial
statements

In additton, we read all the financiat and
non-financial information in the Annual Report
to entify matenat inconsistencies with the
audited Parent Company financial statements
and to identify any information that is
apparently matenally mcorrect based on, or
matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of perferming the
audit If we become aware of any apparent
rmaternial misstatements or Inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

Opimons on Matters Prescribed by
the Companies Act 2006

in our opimion

» The informaton given in the Strategic Report
and the Report of the Directors for the
financial year for which the Parent Company
financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the Parent Company
financial statements

* The part of the Directors Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006

Other Matters on which we are
Required to Report by Exception

Adeguacy of Accounting Records and
Information and Expianations Received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are
required to report te you if, In our opimion

* We have not recewved all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or

« Adequate accounting records have not been
kept by the Parent Company or returns
adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

The Parent Company financial statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited are not In agreement
with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report ansing from
this responsibility

Dhrectors’ Remuneration

Under the Comparues Act 2006 we are
required to report to you if, In our cpimon,
certam disclosures of Directors’ remuneration

specified by law have not been made We
have no exceptions to report arising from
this responsibility

Other Information in the Annual Report
Under ISAs (UK & Ireland), we are required to
report to you If 1n our opinton infermation in
the Annual Report 15

+ Matenally inconsistent with the information
in the audited Parent Company financial
statements, or

Apparently matenally incorrect based on or
matenally inconsistent with, our knowledge
of the Parent Company acquired tn the
course of performing our audit, or

+ [s otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions to report ansing from
this responsibulity

Responsibilities for the Finanaal
Statements and the Audit

Qur Responsibilities and those of the
Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 33,
the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the Parent Company financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view

Cur responsibility is to audit and express an
opinion on the Parent Company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law
and ISAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board s Ethical Standaeds for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been
prepared for and only for the Company s
members as 2 body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act 2006 and
for no other purpose We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any ather person to
whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands
1t may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent 0 writing

Other Matter

We have reported separately on the Group
finangial statements of Reckitt Benckiser Group
pl for the year ended 31 December 2013

Ml Ll
Mark Gill {SeierSTatutory Audtor)

for and on behaif of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accourtants and Statutory Auditors
Lendon

7 March 2014
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2013 2012
As at 31 December Notes £m fm
Fixed assets
Investrnents 2 14,729 14,680
Current assets
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 3 70 59
Debtors amounts falling due after more than one year 4 2 8

72 67

Current habilities
Creditors amounts falling due within ane year 5 (5.676) (4 498)
Net current habilities (5.604) (4 431)
Total assets less current labilities 9,125 10 245
Prowisions for habilities 6 (222) -
Net assets 8,903 10,249
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Calted up share capital 7 74 73
Share premium account 8 243 184
Profit and loss reserve 8 8,586 9992
Total Sharehoiders’ funds 3 8,903 10,249

The financial statements on pages 87 to 92 were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2014 and signed on its behalf by

Adnan Bellamy  Rakesh Kapoor
Director Director

A
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Notes to the Parent Company
Financial Statements

1 PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Conventicn
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern hasis under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and
applicable UK accounting standards Accounting policies have been consistently apphed to all the years presented unless othenwise stated

As permitted by s 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no profit and loss account s presented for Reckiit Benckiser Group plc

Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated using exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gamns
and Yosses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except where hedge accounting 1s apphed

Taxation

The tax charge/credit 15 based on the result for the year and takes into account taxation deferred due to timing differences between the treatment of
certain items for taxavon and accounting purposes Deferred tax habilities are provided for in fulf and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that they are considered recoverable

A net deferred 1ax asset s considered recoverable if 1t can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits agamst which
to recover carned forward tax losses and from which the future reversal of underlying timeng differences can be deducted

Deferred tax s recogrmised in respect of all ttming differences that have oniginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date, where transactions
or events that result 1n an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right 10 pay fess tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply m the penods i which the timing differences are expected to revarse, based
on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis

Fixed Assets

Fixed asset investments are stated at the lower of cost and thew recoverable amount which 15 determined as the higher of net realisable value and value
in use A review for the potenual impairment of an invesiment 1s carned out by the Directors if events or changes in arcumstances indicate that the
carrying value of the investment may not be recoverable Such tmpairment reviews are performed in accordance with FRS 11, ‘Impairment of Fixed
Assets and Goodwill

Employee Share Schemes

Incentives in the form of shares are provided to employees under share option and restricted share schemes Any shortfall between the cost to the employee
and the fair market value of the awards at date of grant 1s charged to the iIncome statement over the penod to which the performance critena relate,
with the credrt taken directly to the profit and loss account Addrtronal employer costs in respect of options and awards are charged to the income
statement over the same period with the credit included in equity Where awards are contingent upon future events an assessment of the hkelihood

of these conditions being achieved 15 made at the end of each reporting year and refiected in the accounting entries made

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings n the Group s treated as a capital contribution
The fair value of employee services receved, measured by reference to the grant date fair value 1s recognised over the vesting period as an increase to
investment in subsidiary undertakings with a corresponding credhit to equity 1n the Company accounts

Debtors
Debtors are initially recognised at farr value less provision for impairment -

Provisions
Prowvisions are recognised when the Company has a present or constructive obligation as a result of past events it 1s more likely than not that there will
be an outflow of resources to settle that obligation, and the amount can be rehiably estimated

Share Capital Transactions

when the Comparny purchases equity share caprtal the amount of the consideration paid, including directly attnbutable costs, 1s recognised as a charge
to equity Purchased shares are either held m Treasury in order to satisfy employee options, or cancelled and, in order 1o maintain capital, an equwvalent
amount to the nominal value of the shares cancelled 1s transferred from the profit and loss reserve

Dividends
Divdends payable are recognised when they meet the criteria for a preset obligation (1 e when they have been approved)

Cash Flow Statement
Reckitt Benckiser Group pic has presented a Group cash flow staternent in sts 2013 Annual Report and Finanaia! Statements The Directors have not
prepared a cash flow statement for the Company
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Shares In subsidary

undertakings
fm

Cost
At 1 January 2013 14,680
Additions during the year 49
At 31 December 2013 14,729
Provision for impairment
At 1 January 2013 -
Provided for dunng the year -
At 31 December 2013 -
Net book amounts
At 1 January 2013 14,680
At 31 December 2013 14,729

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by ther underlying net assets
Principal Subsidiary Undertakings

The pnincipal subsidiary undertakings as at 31 December 2013, all of which are included in the consohdated financial statements, are shown below

Country of

Incorporation Effective % of

or registration share capital

Product category and operation held by the Group

Reckitt Benckiser pic holding company UK Ordinary 100
Reckitt Benckiser (Austrahia) Pty Limited health, hygtene home Austiaba Ordinary 100
Reckitt Benckiser (Brasil) Lirmtada health, hygiene, home Brazi! COrdinary 100
Reckitt Benckiser (Canada} Ing health hygiene, home and food Canada Ordinary 100
Reclitt Benckiser Deutschland GmbH health hygiene home Germany Ordinary 100
Reckett Benckiser Esparfia SL health, hygiene, home Span Ordinary 100
Reckstt Benckiser France SAS health, hygiene, home France Ordinary 100
Reclatt Benckiser Healthcare (UK) Limited health, hygiene home UK Crdinary 100
Reckitt Benckser LLC health, hygiene home and food LS Ordinary 100
Reckitt Benckiser Pharmaceuticals Inc pharmaceuticals us Ordinary 100
Reckitt Bencksser {india) Limited health, hygiene, home India Ordinary 100
Reckitt Benckiser Itahia SpA health, hygiene home Italy Orchnary 100
Reckitt Benckiser Arabsa FZE health hygiene, home UAE (Dubai) Orcinary 100
Schiff Nutntion International, Inc health us Ordinary 100

with the exception of Reckitt Benckiser plc none of the above subsidiaries are held directly by Reckstt Bencksser Group plc

As permitted by 5 410 of the Companies Act 2006, particulars of other subsidiary undertakings are not shown above A full st of
subsidiary undertakings will be annexed to the Companys annual return to Companies House

3 DEBTORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

the Company's

2013 2042
fm £m
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 70 59
Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand
4 DEBTORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
2013 2012
Em £m
Deferred tax assets 2 3
Deferred tax assets consist of short-term timing differences
5 CREDITORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2013 2012
im fm
Amounts cwed to Group undertakings 5.673 4,49
Taxation and social secunty 3 7
5,676 4,498

Included n the amounts owed to Group undertakings 15 an amount of £5,671m (2012 £4,473m) which 15 unsecured, carmes interest at LIBOR and 15

repayable on demand All other amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand
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6 PROVISIONS FOR LIABIITIES
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present or constructive obhgation as a result of past events 1t 1s more hkely than not that there will
be an outffow of resources to settle that obligation and the armount can be reliably estimated

Provisions for habilities include indemnrties provided by the Company to subsidianies for exceplional legal provisions in relatton to a number of historic
regulatory Investigations by various government authorities in a number of markets These investigations involve mainly competition law inquiries
Provisions expected to be settled within one year are £137m (2012 £nil) and after more than one year but less than five years are £85m (2012 £nil)

7 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Equity Nominal Subscriber Nominal

ordinary value ordinary value

Issued and fully paid shares fm shares £m
At 1 January 2013 734 210,757 73 2 -
Allotments 2,324,422 1 - -
At 31 December 2013 736,535,179 74 2 -
Equuty Nominal Subsenber Nonmmnat

ordinary value ordinary value

Issued and fully paid shares £m shares fm
At 1 January 2012 728,621 602 73 2 -
Allotments 5589,155 - - -
At 31 December 2012 734,210 757 73 2 -

For detads of the allotment of ordinary shares dunng 2013 refer to note 22 of the Group financial statements on page 79

The holders of ordinary shares (par value 10p} are entitled to recerve dvidends as declared from tume to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Parent Company

The holders of subscriber ardinary shares {par value £1) have no entitlement to dwvdends Holders have no night to attend or vote at any general meeting
of the Company untess a resalution 1s proposed to wind up the Company or vary the nghts attached 1o the subscriber shares

8 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS” FUNDS

Share Share Profit and

capital premium loss reserve Total
Movements durning the year fm £ £m fm
At 1 January 2013 73 184 9,992 10 248
Loss for the financial year - - (269} (269)
Dwidends - - (992) (992
Shares allotted under share schemes t 59 - 60
Capital contnbution in respect of share-based payments - - 49 49
Share-based payments - - 6 )
Shares repurchased and held in Treasury - - {279} (279
Treasury shares reissued - - 79 79
At 31 December 2013 74 243 8,586 8,903

Share Share Profit and

capital premium loss reserve Total
Movements during the year £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 73 86 11,447 11 606
Loss for the financial year - - (54) (54)
Diidends - - (916) (916)
Shares allotted under share schemes - 98 - g8
Capital contribution in respect of share-based payments - - 43 43
Share-based payments - - 7 7
Shares repurchased and held in Treasury - - {535) (535)
At 31 December 2012 73 184 9992 10 249

Reckitt Benckiser Group plc has £8,288m (2012 £9,725m) of 1ts profit and loss reserve available for distnbution

Dunng 2013 the Company purchased 6,000,000 equrty ordinary shares in accordance with iis share buy back programme (2012 14,991 643) all of
which are held as Treasury shares The total amount paid to acquire the shares was £279m (including stamp duty) which has been deducted from
Shareholders’ equity (2012 £535m} 4,258,793 Treasury shares were released tn 2013 leaving a balance held at 31 December 2013 of 16,732,850
{2012 14,991,643)
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9 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Reckdt Benckiser Group plc has two employees the Groups CEQ and CFO The tables below include detarls of theis share awards and those for any
mdnaduals previously holding these roles Details of therr share awards that are not fully vested are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report The
charge for share-based payments for the year was £6m (2012 £7m) and National Insurance contnbutions were £3m (2012 £7m) The Company has
used the Black-Scholes pricing model to calculate the fair value of one award on the date of the grant of the awards

The fair value of awards with options outstanding at 31 Decernber 2013 15 shown n note 23 of the Group financial statements on pages 80 to 82

Table 1 Share awards movements 2013
Maovement in number of options

Options Optians
outstanding outstanding at
fFair value of at 1 January Granted/ 31 Degember
ane award 2013  adjustments Lapsed Exercrsed 2015
Award Grant date f number number number number number
Share options
2007 08 December 2006 423 800,000 - - (800 000) -
2008 11 December 2007 599 600,000 - - {600,000) -
2009 08 December 2008 469 600000 - ~ {600,000 -
2010 07 December 2009 470 534,615 - - (534615) -
2011 01 December 2010 449 334,615 - (66,923) (267,692) -
2012 05 December 2011 318 4380000 ~ (53654 - 436346
2013 03 December 2012 329 400000 90,000 - - 490,000
2014 11 December 2013 385 -~ 490,000 - - 490,000
Restnicted shares
2010 07 Decemnber 2009 2723 267,308 - - (267,308) -
2011 01 December 2010 2822 177,308 8,173  (33.461) (133.847) 18,173
2012 05 December 2011 2530 245000 - (37628} - 207,372
2013 03 December 2012 3276 200,000 45000 - - 245,000
204 11 December 2013 39 80 - 285,000 - ~ 285000
Other share awards
UK SAYE 04 September 2006 661 1,011 - - - 1,011
Waighted average exercise price £2979 £46 48 £33 51 £27 94 £3997

Table 2 Share awards movements 2012
Movernent in number of options

Optons Options
outstanding outstandmg at
Fair value of at 1 fanuary Granted/ 31 December
one award 2012 adjustments Lapsed Exercised 2012
Award Grant date £ number number number number number
2007 08 Decermnber 2006 423 800,000 - - - 800,000
2008 11 December 2007 599 600000 - - - 600000
2009 08 December 2008 469 693,077 - - (93077) 600,000
2010 07 December 2009 470 653,077 - (65,385) (53,077) 534615
200 01 December 2010 449 600,000 - (265,385) — 334615
2012 05 December 2011 318 490,000 - - - 490,000
2013 03 December 2012 329 - 400,000 - - 400,000
Restricted shares
2009 08 December 2008 2431 346,538 - - (346538) -
2010 07 December 2009 2723 326,538 - {32,692y (26,538} 267,308
201 01 December 2010 2822 310000 - {132,692) - 177,308
2012 05 December 2011 2530 245,000 - - - 245,000
2013 03 December 2012 3276 - 200000 - -~ 200000
Other share awards
UK SAYE 04 September 2006 661 1,011 - - - 1,011
weighted average exercise price £2915  £3914 £3405  £2887 £2979

Further details of the share awards relating to the refevant Directors are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 34 1o 46

For detalls of the contraciual Iife, performance crtena, valuation assumpuions and volatility of the share awards, please refer to note 23 of the Group
financial statements

The weighted average rematning coniractual life of the outstanding options 1s 5 63 years (2012 5 69 years)
The weighted average share price for the year was £45 80 (2012 £35 79}
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10 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
The fee charged for the statutory audit of the Company was £0 05m (2012 £0 05m)

11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption within Financial Reporting Standard No 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ not to disclose related party
transactions with wholly owned subsidianes of the Reckitt Benckiser Group There were no other related party transactions (2012 nil}

12 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has 1ssued a guarantee to the Trustees of the Reckitt Benckiser Pension Fund covering the obligations of certain UK subsidianies of the
Group who are the sponsonng employers of the UK defined benefit pension fund The guarantee covers any amounts due to the pension fund from
these subsidiartes f they fail to meet their pension ohilgattans

Other contingent habilities are disctosed i note 19 of the Group financial statements

13 DIVIDENDS

2013 2012
£m £m

Dividends on equity ordinary shares
2012 Final pard 78p (2011 Fmnal 70p) per share 561 511
2013 Intenm pad 60p (2012 tntenm 56p) per share 43t 405
Total dwidends for the year 992 916

In addrtion the Directors are proposing a final dvidend in respect of the financal year ended 31 December 2013 of 77p per share which will absorb an
estimated £554m of Shareholders’ funds If approved by Shareholders it will be paid on 29 May 2014 to Sharehotders who are on the register on
21 February 2014 with an ex-dividend date of 19 February 2014

14 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
On 24 February 2014 part of a wider legal case was settled, which related to one of the current provisions held at balance sheet date The remaining
provisions that were held i relatron to this case at the balance sheet date are stilt constdered to be appropriate
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Our Relationships and

Principal Risks

Relationsh:ps

The Groups key external relationships are
broadly based With our customers (retailers) no
single one accounts for more than 10% of net
revenue and our top ten customers account for
iess than one quarter of net revenue Although
these customers continue to become maore
concentrated i their chosen markets the
Group’s wide geographical spread and diversity
of product ines provides a natural balance

Equally the Group sources its raw and
packaging materials and fimished goods from
a wide variety of predommantly international
companies and co-packers No single supplier
accounts for more than 5% of cost of sales
and the Group's global purchasing function
balances the need for competitive pricing with
continuity of supply

The Group’s brand portfolio s also broadly
based with the most sigmficant Powerbrand
accounting for approximately 9% of net
revenue Each brand in turn s founded on a
vanety of appropnate technology platforms
which drive a steady stream of product
development The indwdual brands are
self-supporting and mdependent of the RB
corporate brand, and each other This reduces
the potenyal for any brand reputation damage
o impact across a breader front

The financial stability of the Group 15
supported by a low level of leverage, as
borrowings to finance acquisitions are paid
down through strong cash flows, and a stable
Shareholder base

Gen the combination of the financial
strength and geographic spread of the Group
its range of brands and products, and its low
level of rehance on indwidual key customers
and suppliers, the Directors consider that its
exposure to specific events which would
materially adversely affect the Group’s ability
10 deliver nts strategic objectives 1s low

Principal Risks

The prinoipal and specific nsks that, in the
opimon of the Directors, pose the most
significant threat to the delwvery of the Group's
hsted strateg:ic objectives are as listed

Any of the following or a combination of such
factors, could have a matenal adverse effect on
our business, prospects, results of operations or
financial condition

We could be adversely affected by economx
conditions i, and pohtical developments
affecting, the markets mny which we operate

We are one of the world’s leading
manufacturers and marketers of branded
health, hygiene and home products selling a
comprehensive range of products through over

60 operating companies i nearly 200
countries Consequently, our business and
results of operations are affected by changes
in both global economic conditions and the
indmidual markets in which we operate
Global economic trends continue {0 pose
challenges and in many of our markets,
austerity measures, constraints on consumer
lending and sfow or no economic growth
continue to impede consumer purchasing
power and adversely impact consumer
confidence In addition terronst acts, awil
unrest and other similar disturbances as well
as natural catastrophes, can impact economic
conditions and consumer confidence degrade
infrastructure, disrupt supply chans and
otherwise result in business mterruption

A varniety of factors may adversely affect cur
results of operations and financal condition
during peniods of economic uncertainty or
instability, social or labour unrest or pofitical
upheaval in the markets in which we operate
For example, aur operations and supply chains
may be disrupted Consumers may purchase
less or switch to purchasing generic products,
private label products and economy brands,

as opposed to branded products, which could
impact our sales, or result In a shift in our
product mux from higher margmn to lower
margin product offerings In addition, we may
face increased pnaing pressure of competing
promotional actwity for lower-priced products
as competitors seek to maintain sales volumes
Penods of economic upheaval may also expose
us to greater counterparty nsks, including with
customers, supphers and financial institutions,
who may become insolvent or othenwise
unable to perform thewr obhgations We may
also expenence greater fluctuations in foreign
currency movements Increased commoedity
prices and tncreased transportation and
energy costs Penods of econormic and
pohtical upheaval may also lead to government
actions, such as imposrtion of martial law,
trade restrictions, foreign ownership
restrictions, capital, price or currency controls
nationalsation or expropnation of property

or other resources or changes in legal and
regulatory requirements, including those
resutting 10 potentially adverse tax
consequences We may also be unable to
access credit markets, including the commercial
paper market, on favourable terms, or at all
which could matenally adversely affect our
liquidity and capital resources or sigificantly
increase our cost of capstal

Our Powerbrands collectrvely contribute a
sigmificant portion of our revenue and any
matenal adverse change to demand for existing
Fowerbrands or any future products we may

develop, could have a matenal adverse effect
on our business

Qur results of operations depend to a
sigmificant extent on our abthty to launch

and sell products that appeal to and are
accepted by consumers and, i particular, our
Powerbrands Consumer preferences, tastes
and habits are constantly evolving Various
factors, some of which are beyond our control,
may have an adverse impact on demand for
our Powerbrands For example, certan
products within our health and hygiene
categories have in the past exhibited and may
in the future exhibit, seasonal fluctuations
Launch of new products or vanants of our
axisting Powerbrands may not neutralise the
mmpact of weak performance of one of

our Powerbrands Similarly, our failure to
differentiate our existing Powerbrands or future
products from competrtars, whether through
quality, nnovation marketing or otherwise
may adversely impact consumer demand for
our preducts Certain markets, including a
number of emerging markets in which we plan
to focus our mvestment and growth efforts,
exhibit more volatile demand m reaction to
macro-economic factors than other markets
Simidarly, if consumer patterns change within
the major consumer clusters that we have
dentified, or fail to react as anticpated, we
may have to reassess our growth plans, and
alter our sales strategy

If we are unable to respond to changes In
consumer demand in a timely or adequate
manner or at all, andfor accusately predict or
antiapate factors that may impact demand,
and 1f we are unable to differentiate cur brands
from competitors our business, finanaal
condition and results of operatrons may be
matenally and adversely affected

Our bustness, financial condition, and results
of operations substantially depend on our
abilty to improve our existmg products, and
successfully develop and launch new products
and technologies

Our abilrty to mamntain and grow our market
share depends to a large extent on our ability
to successfully and cost-effectively introduce
and market new producis {whether vanants

of exsting, or newly developed, preducts),

and to develop equipment technology and
manufactuning processes for our products

If we are unable to successfully develop, launch
and market new products that obtain consumer
acceptance, in a imely manner, or at all, we
may be unable to compete and marntan or
grow our market share Any new product or
line extension may not generate sufficient
consumer Interest and sales levels to become a
profitable product or to cover the costs of its
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devetopment or promotion In addition, if we
deade to pursue growth opporturities in new
categories and new category segments or In
reglons in which we have no prior expernence
or hmited experience, we may become
exposed to unexpected or greater risks and
potential losses

Product nnovation and development generally
involve considerable costs, and may involve a
lengthy process For example, research and
development ('R&D ) required 1o develop health
products could 1ake a significant period of time,
from discovery to commercial product launch,
and given the imited duration of patents,

the longer we take to develop and faunch

a product the less ume for which we have
exclusivity tn which we can recoup our
development costs and seek to profit We may
be unable to successfully complete clinical tnals
and obtain apphcable regulatory approvals in a
timely manner or at all, and may fall 1o gain
market approval for our products Additionally,
we may encounter nfringement claims by
competitors, which may preclude or delay
commerciahsation of our products Any delays
could result i us not being the first to market,
and could undermine our competitive
advantage If any of the products we are
currently developing, or may develop in future,
fail to become market-ready or to achieve
commeraal success at expected levels, or at all,
we may mcur substantial losses If we fail to
develop or upgrade our equipment, technotogy
and manufacturing processes at feast i line
with our competitors, we may be unable to
compete effectively and lose market share

Substantial harm to our reputation, or the
reputation of one or more of our brands, may
matenally adversely affect our business

The majonty of our brands have worldwide
recognition Maintaining our estabhished
reputation and trust with key stakeholders,
includig consumers, customers and trading
pariners is cntical to our business Various
factors may adversely impact our reputation,
including product quality 1nconsistencies or
contamination We have in the past faced
quality-related 1ssues which resulted in trade
and consurner recalls and such recalls may have
a matenal adverse impact on our reputatian
Raw matenals that we source for production
may become contaminated through the supply
chain, and other product defects may occur
due to human error or equipment failure
among ather things Reputational nisks may
also anse with respect to the methods and
practices of third parties that are part of our
supply chain, including labour standards,
health, safety and environmental standards,
raw matenat sourcing, and ethical standards
in the countries m which we operate We may
alsc be the victtm of product tampernng Any
perceived or actual concerns related to our
products, our supply chain, or the industry
more generally, such as the long-term effects
of household chemicals and OTC {over-the-
counter) drug ingredients on human health and
the enwironment, may be widely disseminated
onlne, on consumer blogs or other social
media sites or via pnnt and broadcast media
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Sinilarly, any litigation that we face may subject
us to increasing negative attention In the press
In addition companies with global operations
recently have come under criticism for
corporate tax planning, and criticism of our
structures or those of our peers could also
generate negative publicity Any negative
publicity could significantty undermine our
reputation and current methods of
dissemination of information (including the
abibty of reports to 'go viral onhne) mean

that potential threats to reputation can occur
in a very short penod of time and reach a far
broader audience than histoncally was the case
making 1t far more difficult to address

Moreaver, third parties may sell products that
are counterfeit or unauthonsed versions of our
brands, or infertor lookalke brands that
resemble ours Consumers may confuse our
products with such brands

We could be materally adversely affected by
the loss of revenue from the sales of Suboxone
and Subutex

Our RB Pharmaceuticals business, which
manufactures and distnbutes Subutex (a
buprenorphine-based treatment for opiate
dependence} and Suboxone {a buprenorphine
and naloxone-based treatment for opiate
dependence), generated 8% of our net revenue
ang 16% of our operating profit before
exceptional tems in 2013

The introduction of genertg products typically
leads to a loss of sales of the branded product
and a decrease in the pnce at which branded
products can be sold In the United States the
exclusvity afforded to Suboxone by its orphan
drug status under the regulations of the US
Food and Crug Admimstration ('FDA') ended in
2009 Subcxone has marketing approval from
the European Commission for treatment in the
28 countries of the European Union Norway
and Iceland wath data exclusmty until 2016
Two manufacturers launched genenic Suboxone
tablets in March 2013, which have gained a
13% volume {by mg) market share (according
1o Source Healthcare Analytics' Pharmaceutical
Audit Suite Weekly Data as at 27 December
2013} of the buprenorphine market 1n the
United States

in March 20113 based on the enhanced
benefits of our Suboxone sublinguat Fitm
{which we launched in August 2010) and the
reduction in unintended paediatric exposure
due to Hs unit-dose child resistant packagng,
we voluntarily withdrew our Suboxone tablets
from the US market We expect other
manufacturers to introduce branded tablets
that contain buprenorphine

Orexo has recently introduced branded tablets
that contamn buprenorphine These tablets
may capture market share from our Suboxone
sublingual Film Adthough our Suboxone
sublingual Fitm has a volume market share of
68% of the US buprenorphine-based opioid
addrction treatment market, as of 31 December
2013 we expect that increased price pressure
will lead to a matenal reduction in net revenue
from this product and adversely affect our
overall revenues and operating profit

in addition our patents relating to the
Suboxone sublingual Film expare on vanous
dates through 2030 We have recently been
informed of the filing of abbreviated new drug
applications (' ANDA') by Par Pharmaceutical
Companes Inc ('Par Pharmaceutical’), Watson
Laboratories Inc ("Watson Laboratories ) and
Alvogen Pine Brook, Inc {'Alvogen’) for generc
Suboxone sublingual Films in the Urnited States
The FDA can approve an ANDA for a generic
version of a branded drug without requinng
the applicant to undertake the full cimcal
testing necessary to obtamn approval to market
a new drug An ANDA apphcant usually needs
to only submit data demonstrating that its
product has the same active sngredient(s) and
15 bioequivalent to the branded product, in
addition to any data necessary to establish that
any difference in strength, dosage form,
Inactive ingredients or delivery mechanism does
not result in different safety or efficacy profiles,
as compared to the reference drug Although
we have filed a patent infingement lawsuit
against the ANDA applicants noted above
which means that the FDA cannot approve the
genenc entrant until the earlier of 30 months
or the disposiion of the patent infingement
proceedings, the lawsuit may not be resolved in
our favour or we may choose to settle due to
the unpredictable nature and significant costs
of patent iugation i any other genenic
company 1s able to obtain FDA approval of 1ts
genenc Suboxone sublingwal Film, 1t may be
able to launch its generc version of Suboxone
subhingual Film prior to the expiration of any
or all of the apphcable patents covering our
Suboxone sublingual Film

Further, pharmacies may discontinue stocking,
doctors may stop prescnbing, and payors may
reduce the rewnbursement on or may stop
reimbursing, Suboxone sublingual Film, which
may have an additonal adverse tmpact on
our revenue

Loss of revenue frorn the sales of Suboxone
and Subutex, whether due to competition from
generic products or due to decsions not to
prescribe or stock our drugs could have a
matenal adverse effect on our results of
operations and our business

We compete in intensely competitive industries

We face vigorous competition worldwide We
compete with well-established local regional
national and international compares that
target the same consumer base as we do, some
of whom may have mare significant resources
with which to establish and promote their
products We also face compettion from
private label’ products, and generic non-
branded products whuch typically are sold at
lower prices, by major retall companies, some
of whom may be our customers Competition
from these sources has grown in recent years

In the pharmaceutical sector, we also compete
with big genenc manufacturers and smaller
branded firms, as well as R&D firms, which may
have more significant resources than we do
Conschdation of key trade customers in the
sectors in which we operate may lirmit
opportumties for growth, and increase
competitive pressures further
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Our products generally compete on the basis of
product qualty and performance promotional
actvities, brand recogrition, price, timely
development and launch, or other benefits to
consumers if we are unable to offer products
that consumers choose aver gur competitors’
products our business and results of operations
may be matenally adversely affected In
additton, our products compete with other
products for shelf space in retail stores and

for marketing focus, such as via in-store
promotional actvities of our brands Qur
competitive position, and consequently sales of
our products may be harmed to the extent that
we are unable to successfully maintain sound
working relationships wath our trade customers,
who determine access to shelf space and
product placement on shelf set retail prices
and control in-store promotional activities

of our brands and can establish pricing
differentials between similar products on

shelf As the retall sector becomes more
concentrated retailers could impose downward
pressure on prices and require commercial
incentves before agreeing to offer our products
for sale to consumers Furthes, 10 the extent
trade customers increase usage of thewr own
distribution networks and private label brands,
the competitive advantage we derive from

our brand equity could be impaired In
addition, new sales channels have emerged,
and continue to emerge such as sales made
through the Internet via online shopping,
which may affect customer and censumer
preferences, and competitive dynamuics if

we are unable to effectively compete n these
new channels, this could adversely impact our
results and our prospects Moreover, increased
competition means that we need to spend
more on promotion of our products

Any of the foregoing could have a matenal
adverse tmpact on our future sales and
prospects, consequently adversely impacting
our results of operations Competition also
extends to admenistratve and legal challenges
of product claims and adverusing Responding
to legal challenges and defending our products
and intellectual property nghts could result in
significant expenses and may divert resources
away from product and technological
innovation, which may have a matenal adverse
impact on our financial condition and results
of operations

we are exposed to foreign currency exchange
rate risk

We operate on a global basis, and hold assets,
mcur habilities, earn revenues pay expenses,
and make investments in a number of
currencies, with our non-UK operations
generating a significant portion of Qur net
revenue In FY 2013, 93% of our net revenue
was denived from markets outside the United
Kingdom The Sterfing value of our revenues,
profits and cash flows from non-UK markets
may be reduced or our supply costs, as
measured 0 Sterling in those markets, may
increase Additionally, a number of our
competrtors are based in countries whose
currencies fluctuate agamst Sterling, and they
may benefit from having their costs incurred
in weaker currencees relative to Sterkng We

prepare our financial statements in pounds
sterling and our finanaal results are affected
by fluctuations among the relatve value

of Sterling and other functional currencies,
particularly the US dollar and Euro For
example, in FY 2013, we incurred a net
exchange loss on foreign currency translation
net of tax, of £363m In our statement of
comprehensive mcome  Further, currency
translations may make it more difficult for
nvestors to understand the relative strengths
or weaknesses of the underlying business on
a penod-to-period comparative basis

We currently hedge some of our currency
exposures using finanaal nstruments and

we try to align our interest costs and operating
profits of ocur major currencies where possible,
which may not be effective Hedgeng
transactions do not ehminate the exchange
rate nsk entirely and may not be fully, or at
all, effectve

We are subyect to the risk that countries in
which we operate may impose or increase
exchange controls or devalue their currency

We operate in a number of countries
particularly emerging markets, which impose
exchange contrals, including but not imited
to Argentina, Brazl, China India, Russia,
South Africa and Venezuela Such controls may
restrict or make 1t impaossible to convert local
currency Into ather currencies, restrict our
abifity to repatniate earmings from a country
{for example, £109m of our cash and cash
equivalents as at 31 December 2013 were
iestncted for use by us), borrow on the
international markets to fund operations In
that country or hmit our ability to 1mport raw
matenals or finished products, any or all of
which could matenally adversely affect our
business, hquidity and results of operations

In addton, emerging markets are prone to
currency devaluations such as, for example the
devaluation by the government of Venezuela of
its currency in February 2013 which tend to
make our products more expensve in Yocal
currency terms

We face risks of interruptions of our supply
chain and disruptions i our production
faciities, which could matenally adversely affect
our results of operations

We source our raw and packaging materials
{including bulk chermicals plastics, pulp and
metal cans) and finished goods from a wide
vanety of predominantly international chermical
and packaging companies and co-packers

We also outsource the manufacture of some

of our products to third parties Our suppliers
generally are diversified in terms of geography
and supplied rtems, but we may face nisks to
continuity of supply ansing from certain
specialised suppliers, both of raw matenals and
of third party manufactured tems, mduding
spectalty chemicals and components We may
also 1ncur hugher prces for raw materals than
we may otherwise have to pay If we adopted

a more concentrated approach to obtaiming
supplies More generally significant disruptions
to our supphers operations, such as disruptions
resulting from natural catastrophes {including
as a result of the effects of climate ¢hange),

pandermcs or other gutbreaks of diseases, acts
of war or terrorism, or otherwise, may affect
our abihty to source raw materials on @ more
global basis and negatively smpact our costs
The faslure of a number of third party suppliers
to fulfil ther contractual obhigations, in a timely
manner, or at all may result in delays or
disruptions to our busmess Replacing suppliers
may require a new supplier to be qualified
under industry, governmental or our standards,
which could require investment and may

take time

In addition, a number of our faciliues are
critical to our business and major or prolonged
disruptron at those facilities, whether due

to accidents sabotage or otherwise could
matenally adversely affect our operations
Moreover, sites in which our products are
manufactured are subject to supervision by
regulatory agencies, on both an engoing and
ad hoc basis For example Suboxone sublingual
Film 1s manufactured at a single-source
production facility in the United States, and
FDA approval 15 generally lirmited to the specific
approved production facility If we are unable
to obtain or produce sufficient quantres of a
particular product at specifically approved
faciities, whether due to distuption to, or
falure of, our manufactuning processes, or
otherwise we may fal 10 meet customer
demand on a tmely basis, which could
undermine our sales and result In customer
dissatisfaction and damage to our reputaton
In addition any fadure to comply with
applcable legal requirements could lead to
interruption of productton, product recalls
seizures and revocation of licenses to operate
at any of our facilities

Any interruption or disruption in our

supply chain, particularly f significant or
protonged, could matenally adversely affect
our business prospects, results of operations
and financial condition

Volatity in the price of commodities energy
and transportation may impaci our profitabiity

Certain matenals for the production or
packaging of finished goods, such as oil-refated
commodities, are subject to fluctuating pnces
Increases in the costs or decreases in the
availability of these commodities and
increases i other costs such as energy and
transpertation, could adversely affect our
profitabiiity f we are unable to pass on the
higher costs in the form of price increases or
otherwise achieve cost efficiencies Even if we
were to increase the pnces of our products,
competitors may opt not to adjust their prices
In response 10 Increasing costs and customers
may refuse to pay higher prices Our inability
10 manage this msk effectively or at all, could
have a matenal adverse effect on our results
of operations

We have grown and may contmnue to grow, n
part, through acquisitions, joint ventures and
business alhances which involve various risks

While we are principatly focused on organic
growth, we have in the past grown, and expect
in the future to continue to grow through
acquisitions  Acquisitions present a range of
nisks and uncertainties
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Histoncally we have funded acquisitions
through short-term borrowings  which we
repaid through cash flow from our operations
In the past three years we have moved away
from this model due in part 10 the size of the
acquisitions We expect that futura acquisiions
will be funded through either additional
borrowsngs or through equity or a combinatron
of the two We are shifting our capital structure
in favour of more medwm-term borrowings, in
part to be able to fund larger acquisitions This
in turn could result 1n an increase in our net
debt, and will likely increase our level of interest
expense as we move away from the commercial
paper market which has benefited from the
low interest rate environment following the
financial crisis Matenal or transformative
acquisitions could require shareholder approval,
erther due to the level of equity funding or due
to corporate governance requirements While
we target a strong mnvestment grade ‘A’ banded
credit rating for our debt, acquisitions of a
certain size, to the extent we rely more heavily
on debt funding could place pressure on our
credit rating

Qur competitors may choose to target the same
acquisiion candidates and consohdation in the
industry may lirit available opportunities for
acquisihions We may also be restncted by
apphcable anttrust faws, foreign investment
laws, or other laws and regulations, from
pursuing acquisitions, in which case we may
bear substantial out-of-pocket expenses
associated with a falled acquisition

We may faif to achieve projected financial
results of acquisitions, including expected cost
and revenue synergies In making acquisitions,
we make varous assessments, inciuding
expected growth rates which we may fail to
achieve To the extent that economic benefits
associated with our acquisitrons diminssh in the
future, we may be requered to record
imparwrment charges to goodwill or other assets,
which could affect our financial condition

Through our acguisitions, we may also assume
unknown or undisclosed business, eperational,
tax, regulatory and other liabilties fail to
properly assess known contingent liabihttes

or assume businesses with internal control
deficiencies While we seek to mitigate these
risks in most of our transactions through,
among other things, due diligence processes
and indemntfication prowsions, we cannot be
certain that the due diligence processes we
conduct are adequate {particularly wath respect
to acquisiions of privately held companies

and 1n countries where legislation and
transparency make the process more difficult)
or that the indemnification provistons and
other risk mitigation measures we put in place
wilt be sufficient

We could also face signuficant nisks related

to integration of the acquired businesses into
the RB Group particularly if we attempt to
simultanecusly integrate multiple businesses
Acquisitions n emerging markets, such as
China, where we recently completed an
acquisition, may impose particular risks related
1o tntegration across different corporate
cultures, systems, languages and other market

96 RB Annual Report 2013

and requtatory nsks In addition, acquisitions 1in
markets in whsch we have limited or no prior
experience may pose a greater risk Moreover
integration of acquired businesses, as well as
any attendant internal reorganisation, ¢an also
require significant management attention
which may place strain on management
resources and processes, and otherwise disrupt
operations Acquisitions can also place a strain
on Group-wide internal control systems

If we are unable to effectively manage risks
assocated with acquisitrons, our busmess,
financial condition and results of operations
may be matenally adversely affected

In addivon we may chcose 1o enter into joint
ventures, business afliances or collaboration
agreements, which could involve the same or
similar risks and uncertamties as are involved

in acquisitions  For example, we recently
entered Into a three-year collaboration
agreement wath Bristol-Myers Squibb for a
number of market-leading OTC consumer
health care brands in Brazi, Mexico and certain
other parts of Latin Amernica Joint ventures
generally involve a lesser degree of control over
bustness operations, which have in the past
presented, and may tn the future present,
greater financal, legal, operational and/or
comphance nsks

We may be unable to attract and retam
quaitfied personnel, including key senior
management

We nvest in recrusting and training personnel
and senior management Qur business
depends, in part, on executive officers and
senior management 1o provide uninterrupted
leadership and direction for our business,
and gqualified personnel for product R&D This
need 15 all the more acute in the context of a
growing business, and the strategic internal
regrganisations and resource planning
prograimmes to promote and manage such
growih The market for talent 1s intensely
competitive and may become increasingly
more compentive We could face challenges
n sourcing quahfied personnel, with the
requisite training and sutable international
experence particularly in countries such as
China where the availability of skilled
employees may be limited

Further, vanable pay 15 and will continue

1o be, the major element of our current
Executive Directors’ and Senior Executives’
total compensation package If we achieve
our target levels of performance, the vanable
elements will amount to 59%-76% of
Executwe Directors’ total remuneration If we
are unable to achieve our performance targets,
our senior management would not be entitled
to such vanable pay, which may operate as

a disincentive for them to continue their
employment with us

The loss of key personnel or our mability
to recruit qualified personnel to meet our
operational needs, may delay, or curtail the
achievement of major strategic objecives,
and could adversely impact our business

A disruption to, or farlure of our information
technology systems and infrastructure, may
adversely affect our business

We are in¢reasingly dependent on information
technology systems and infrastructure to
support a wide variety of key businesses
processes, ncluding processing and storage of
confidential data, as well as for internauonal
and external communications as part of our
logistics and distribution functions with ‘
supplers, customers and consumers Falures
or disruptions to our systems or the systems
of third parties on whom we rely, due to any
number of causes, particularly if prolonged

or if any {ailure or disruption were to impact
our backup or disaster recovery plans, could
result in a loss of key data and/or affect

our operations

The combination of our recently iniated
strategic business reorganisation and enterprise
resource planning {ERP} programemes could
result i sub-optimal implementations and
reduced focus due to conflicting demands for
management attention

Qur computer systemns, software and networks
may be vulnerable to unauthonised access (from
within our organisation or by third parties),
computer viruses or other mahcious code and
other cyber threats that could have a security
impact The occurrence of one or more of these
events potentially could jeopardise confidential,
proprietary and other information processed
and stored v and transmitted through, our
computer systems and networks, or otherwse
cause interruptions or malfunctions in our
operations, which could result in significant
losses or reputational damage

We may be required to expend significant
additional resources to modify our proteciive
measures or to investigate and remediate
vulnerabilittes or other exposures, and we may
be subject to littgation and finanaal losses
that are either not insured against or not fully
covered through any insurance mamntained by
us Furthermore, we routinely transmit and
receve personal confidential and proprietary
information by email and other electronic
means We have discussed and worked vath
customers, supphers, counterparties and other
thurd parties to develop secure transmission
capabihises, but we do not have, and may he
unable to put in place secure capabilities with
all such third parties and we may not be able to
ensure that these third parties have appropnate
controls in place to protect the confidentiality
of the information  An interception, misuse

or mishandling of personal, confidential or
propnetary information being sent to or
recewved from a customer supplier,
counterparty or other third party could result
1n legal hability, regulatory action and
reputational harm

Our business is subject to sigmificant
governmental regulation

Cur business and products are heavily regulated
by governments and other regulatory bodies in
the countries in which we operate Regulation
15 1mpased n respect of, but not hmited to,
ingredients manufactuning standards, fabour
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standards, product safety and quahty,
marketing, packaging, 1abeling, storage,
distnbution, advertising, imports and exports,
social and environmental responsibiity and
health and safety In addition we are reguired
to obtamn and maintam licenses In respect

of certain of our products, which must be
regularly vpdated in order to improve our
products and take nto account any varatons
If we are found by regulators or courts to
have been non-compliant with applicable laws
and regulations, we could be subject to cwvil
remedies such as fines, inunctigns or product
recalis and/or cnminal sanctions, any of which
could have a matena! adverse effect on our
business, reputation, financal condition and
results of operations

We are subject to the introduction of new
regulations, modrfication of existing regulations
or changes in interpretations of existing or
new regulations Changes to the laws and
regulations to which we and our operations
are subject, whether as a result of new or
more stringent requirernents, or more stringent
interpretations of existing requirements

coulg impact the way we conduct our business
or market our products {for example,
up-scheduling of an OTC product would result
In it being moved from on-the-shelf to behind
the counter) and coutd rmpose sigmificant
comphance costs and have a matenal adverse
effect on our results of aperations

The laws and regulations to which we are
subsect may not be transparent may be
difficult 1o interpret, andfor may be enforced
mnconsistently

In our experience emerging markets can pose
heightened risks with respect to laws and
regutations when compared with countries
with more deveioped institutional structures
Gwen our focus on growth in RUMEA and
LAPAC, we are exposed to heightened
regulatory risks For example, in some
emerging market countries the laws and
regulations to which we are subject may not
always be fully transparent, can be difficuit to
interpret and may be enforced tnconsistently
The legal systems 1n such countries may not
he well-established or relable There may be
a lack of respect for the rule of law, a lack of
enforcement of property nghts, inconsistent
or insufficient access to remedy through legat
systems, lack of judioal independence and
corruption which could result in greater
uncertainty in enforang contracts difficulties
in obtaining legal redress particularly agamnst
the state or state-owned entities, and higher
operational costs and risks to our business

We could be subyect to investigations and
potential enforcement action, which could have
& matenial adverse effect on our business

we could be subject to regulatory nvestigations
or potential enforcement action that targets

an industry a set of business practices or our
specific operations These investigations or
enforcement actions could be in respect of
specrfic Industry 1ssues or broader business
conduct ssues Moreover, these investigations
or enforcement actions could be triggered by
allegavons of general corporate misconduct or

by allegations of indmdual employee
misconduct in violation of internal pohaies
and procedures

Regulatory authorities and consumer groups
may, from ume to time, request or conduct
reviews of the use of certain ingredients that
are used in manufacturing our products the
results of which may have a matenal adverse
effect on our business For example, parabens,
a family of chemicals commonly used as
preservatives In personal care cosmetic and
pharmaceutical products, underwent a review
by the European Commission’s Scientific
Commuttee on Consumer Safety in May 2013
Based on the findings of that review,
restrictions were introduced to imit the use
of certain parabens (butyl and propyl) and

to ban others (150) 1In cosmetic products

sold across Europe Furthermore, several
European countries such as Denmark and
France are considening banning the use of
parabens altogether

Ingredient legislation, such as the one related
to parabens, could have 3 detnmental impact
on our business undermine our reputation and
goodwill and affect consurner demand for
products containing such ingredients We may
voluntanly remove, or be required to remove,
certain ingredients from cur products or any
products that we may acquire We may not be
able to develop an alternative formulation
successfully modify our existing products or
obtain necessary regulatory approvals on a
timely basis or at all, which could adversely
wmpact our business and results of operations

Historrcal or future violations of antitrust and
competition laws may have a matenal adverse
rmpact on our business, financial condition and
results of operations

We are subject to anhitrust and competition
laws In the vast majority of countries 1n which
we do business Failure to comply with
applicable antitrust and competition laws, rufes
and regulations in any junsdiction in which we
operate may result i ovii and/or cniminal legal
proceedings being brought against us

We have in the past been, currently are, ang
may in the future be, subject to investigations
and legal proceedings with respect to antitrust
and competitton issues in 2010, we were fined
£10 2m by the UK Office of Far Trading ("OFT"}
following our admission that we had infringed
UK and EU compettion rules on abuse of
dominance i respect of our supply of Gawiscon
Oniginal Liquid brand alginates/antacids to the
National Health Service Based i part on the
OFT decssion, we have receved cl claims for
damages from the health authorities of
England, Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland,
and certain pharmaceutical companies We are
also involved 1n certain competiion law-related
proceedings i other countries Campetition
and antitrust violations engquinies often continue
for several years, can be subject to stna
non-disclosure prowsions and If laws are
deemed to have been violated, ¢an result in
substantial fines and other sanctions, which
may have a matenal adverse effect on our
business, reputation, financial condition and
results of operations As part of the

announcement of our HY 2013 results, we
reported a provision of £225m, principally
relating to competition matters

Our strategy for growth has historically
included, and continues to include, acquisition
activities, which are subject to antitrust and
competition laws Such laws and requlations
may impact our ability 1o pursue, or delay the
implementation of, strategic transactions

We operate i @ number of countries in which
brbery and corruption pose significant risks,
and we may be exposed to habiities under
anti-brnibery laws for any viclatrons Any
violation of applicable money laundering laws
could also have a negative impact on us

We are subject to anti-bribery laws and
regulations that prohibit us and our
ntermedianes from making improper payments
or offers of payments to foreign governments
their officials and polittcal parties or private
parties, for the purpose of gaiming or retaimng
business including the UK Bribery Act 2010,
the US Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977,
as amended, and similar laws worldwide

Gwven our extensive international operations,
partucularly in emerging markets, where bribery
and corruption may be more commonpilace, we
are exposed to significant nsks, particularty with
respect to parties that are not always subject to
our control such as agents and joint venture
partners These nsks may be hewghtened for us
due 10 our operations in the health care sector,
which in recent years has experienced greater
comphance nisks than other sectors We may
also be held liable for successor liability
violations of such laws, commutted by
comparues which we acquire or In which we
invest Acquisiions also expose us to risk of
ongoing comphiance issues until such time as
we can fully integrate acquired operations

into our comphance and control frameworks
Moreover, due to the signsficant amounts of
money ivolved in global supply contracts,
there 15 aiso potential for suppliers to attempt
to bnbe cur employees Actual or alleged
violations of anti-bribery laws could result in
severe consequences, Including, but not limited
to cwif and cniminal sanctions termination of
contracts by our counterparties, disruptions

to our business and reputational harm, all of
which could matenally and adversely affect our
financial condion and results of operations

We also deal with sgnrficant amounts of

cash 1n our operations and are subject to
various reporting and ant-money laundenng
regulations Any vigiation of anti-money
laundering laws or regulations by us could have
a negative effect on our results of operations

Our business s subject to product
habiity claims

As a product manufacturer, we are subject,
from time to time, to certamn legal proceedings
and claims ansing out of our products,
including as a result of unanticpated side
effects or 1ssues that become evident only after
products are widely introduced into the
marketplace Some of our products present
inherent dangers, inctuding due to the presence
of chemicals, which f mishandled or musused,
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could result in significant damage We have
paid m the past, and may be required in the
future to pay, compensation for losses or
injuries that are allegedly caused by our
products Product hability clarms may anse
among other things, from claims that our
oroducts are defectve contain contaminants
provide inadegquate warnings or mstructions, or
cause personal injury to persons or damage to
property Product iabilty claims, of resolved
unfavourably or if settled could result in
injunctions and/or may require us to pay
substanttal damages and related costs,
including punitive damages, as well as result i
the impesition of avil and ciminal sanctions

if one of our products 1s found to be defective,
we could be required to recall 1it, and/or we
may be required to alter our trademarks, labels,
or packaging, which could result in adverse
publiaty, significant expenses potential
disruptions in our supply chain and loss of
revenue We have in the past voluntanly
implemented, and may in the future face
product quality concerns and voluntarily
implement product recalls, which could expose
us to product habitty dlaims Addrtianally
complaints, investigattons and hitigation by
consumers or government authonties relating
to our products, our competiters’ products or
indwvidual ingredients may result in judgments
that affect us and/or the industry In which we
operate Arecall of a product that 15 similar to
ours could result in confusion concerning the
scope of the recall and/or a decline in consumer
confidence about our products which may
consequently impact our business and results
of operations We may not be insured fully, or
at all, in respect of such nisks, and we have in
the past and may in the future face disputes
wath our insurers in the event that they refuse
to cover a particular cdaim  In such mstances,
we may be required to bear substantral losses,
which could adversely impact our capial
expenditures, expenses and habilities Any of
the foregeing coutd materially adversely impact
our business, iinanaal condiion and results of
operations

Legal proceedings m respect of claims outside
the product habihity area could also adversely
impact our business results of operations and
financial condition

Qutside the product Lability area, we are
subject to legal proceedings and other claims
anising out of the ordinary course of business,
and we may become invoived in legal
proceedings, which include, but are not

limited to, claims alleging intellectual property
nghts nfringement breach of contract,
environmental faws and health and safety

laws From time to time we face consumer
complants and/or cwl or ciiminal snvestigations
in respect of our products and therr alleged
purposes ncluding in respect of advertising
claims that we make about our products
Significant claims, or a substantal number of
small daims may be expensive to defend and
may divert management tme and our resources
away from our operations Where appropnate
we establish provisions to cover potential
htigation-related costs Such prowsions may
turn out to be msufficient, and any insurance
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coverage we maintain may not cover our losses
fully or at all

We cannot predict the outcome of individual
legal actions We may settle ligation or
regulatory proceedings prior to a final judgment
or determination of hatulity We may do so to
avoid the cast, management efforts or negatve
business, regulatory or reputational
conseguences of continuing to contest hability,
even when we believe we have valid defences
to lability We may also do so when the
potential consequences of failing to prevail
would be disproporttonate to the costs of
settfement Substantial legal habihty could
matenally adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations

or could cause significant reputational harm
which could sencusly harm our business

Labour disruptions may affect our results
of operations

A substantial portion of our workforce s
unionised, and our relationship with untons
including [abour disputes or work stoppages,
could have an adverse impact on our finanoal
results We are a party to collective bargaining
agreaments covenng approximately one-third
of our direct employees If upon the expwration
of such collective bargaining agreements we
are unable to negotiate acceptable contracts
with labour unions, 1t could result in strikes by
the affected workers and thereby significantly
disrupt our operations Further, f we are
unable to control health care and pension
costs provided for In the collective bargatning
agreements, we may experience increased
operating costs and an adverse impact on
future results of operations

Changes in tax legisiation and other
crcumstances that affect tax cakulations could
adversely affect our financial condiion and
resuits of operations

We conduct business aperations in a number
of countnies, and are therefore subject to tax
and intercompany pricing laws in muttple
Jurisdhctions, including those refating to the
flow of funds between RB and its subsidiares
Our effective tax rate i any given financial year
reflects a variety of factors that may not be
present in succeeding finanoal years, and may
be affected by changes in the tax laws of the
junisdictions 1n which we operate, or the
interpretation of such tax laws Certatn tax
positions taken by us are based on industry
practice, tax advice and drawing simifarities
from our facts and crcumstances to those in
case law In particular, international transfer
priang 15 an area of taxation that depends
heawily on the underlying facts and
areumstances and generally involves a
significant degree of judgement

Changes n tax laws, regulations and related
interpretations and increased enforcement
acuons and penalties may alter the environment
in which we do business and tax planming
arrangements are frequently scrutsnised by tax
authorities worldwide

We have in the past faced and may in the
future face, audits and chaflenges brought by
tax authonties, and we are wnwvolved in ongoing

tax investigations in a number of junsdictions
around the world 1f matersal challenges were
to be successful, our effective tax rate may
increase, we may be required to modify
structures at significant costs to us, we may
also be subject to interest and penalty charges
and we may ncur costs in defending litigation
or reaching a settlement Any of the foregoing
could matenally and adversely affect our
business finanaial condiion and results

of operations

We may be unable to secure and protect our
inteflectual property nghts

Qur busmness relies on protecting our brands
and mtellectual property nights We may not
be able to obtain and perfect our intellectual
property rights and even if obtained these
nghts may be invalidated, circumvented or
challenged i future Thurd parties may infringe
on, oF misappropriate, our nghts, by for
example, asserung nghts in, or ownershup of,
our trademarks, trade dress rights, designs,
patents, copyrights or other intellectual
property nights ¥ we fail to discover any
infringements of our intellectual property
rnights, or are othenanse unable to successfully
defend and enforce our nghts, our business,
prospects, and results of operations could be
matenally adversely affected Sales of
counterfeit or unauthonsed versions of our
brands or inferior ‘lockalike” brands which
resembie ours, could result in confusion among
consumetrs between our products and such
other brands Consequently, our brand equity
and reputation may be undermined Any failure
to perfect or successfully assert our intellectual
property nghts could make us less competitive
and may have a matenal adverse effect

on our business, operating resufts and
financial condition

tn addition, our intellectual property nghts
may be undermined If one of our trademarks
or brand names were to become a generic
name for, of syncnymous with, a generat class
of product or senace Should any of our
trademarks become genencised, competitors
may be allowed to use the genencised
trademark to descrnbe thewr similar products

in certain countnes

The loss of patent protection, ineffective
protection or expiration of our patents may
impact our financial condition and results of
operations

Intellectual property laws and patent offices
are stilf developing, particularly in emergtng
markets Patent protection vanes m different
countries, and can be substantially weaker

in emerging markets in which we operate,
when compared to the United States and the
European Union We have in the past faced,
and may in the future face, sigruficant
challenges in enforcing or extending our
current inteffectual property protections or any
protections we may obtain in future n the
same manner as in more developed regions
such as the United States and Eurcpean Union

We have obtained patent protection for a
vanety of our intellectual property, including the
composition of some of our products {such as
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detergent), and in respect of our prescription
drug Suboxone sublingual Film Infringement
of our patent-protected intellectual property
may occur, partrcularly in emerging market
countrres Certain countnes may adopt
measures to facilitate competitton wathin thair
markets from genenc manufacturers, and
refuse to recogmise patent protection For
example a recent deasion in India not to grant
a new patent to an industry partiapant for a
modified form of a drug that holds patent
protection elsewhere reflects the heightened
risk we may face in emerging markets
Addionally expiry of our patents may increase
competition and pricing pressures and
adversely impact our sales revenue 1f genenc
products in the same or similar product class
were to emerge We could be similarly
impacted if competitors lose patent protection
n a product class n which we compete

We may face challenges to our inteflectual
property nghts, mcluding allegations of
infrmgement of others’ nghts

We may face challenges to our intellectual
property rights from third parties, who allege
that we are infringing on therr nghts If we
are unable to successfully defend aganst
allegations of infnngement, we may face
various sanctions including injunctions,
monetary sanctions for past infringement
product recalls, alterations to our intellectual
property products andfor packaging, whsch
could result in significant expense and negative
pubhcity, and may have a matenal adverse
effect on owr financial condition and results
of operations

Our busmness may be adversely affected by our
funding requirements

Qur liquidity needs are driven by our ability to
generate cash from operations and the level of
borrowings {and related levels of headroom),
the level of acquisition, the level of share
repurchases and dividends, dispositions target
ratings for our debt and options avaitable to
us in the equity and debt markets Historically
we have obtained our funding from the
commercidl paper market and have benefited
from the low interest rate environment
followang the financial crisis

We mamtan committed back-up credit
facihties, which have remained undrawn since
FY 2009 At 31 December 2013, we had

£4 350m in undrawn commitments I we

are not able to access the commeraial paper
market to the extent that we requwe, or at all,
we may need to drawdown amounts under
our comrmitted bilateral credit fachiies which
accrue mierest at floating rates based on
changes 1n certain pubhished rates such as
LIBOR Increases in such rates could result in
significantly higher interest expense for us,
which would negatively affect our results

of operations

As pant of our strategy to mamntain financial
flexiblity as well as to procure additional
funding for future acquisiions including both
bolt-on acquisitions as well as acquisitions that
may be more matenal in size we are seeking
1o increase the level of medium-term funding

Implementation of this strategy will increase
our levels of interest expense compared to
recent years that benefited from low interest
rates since 2008

We are subject to risks relating to estimates and
assumptions that we are required to make, and
that affect the reported amounts i our
financial statements

The preparation of our finangial statements
requires management 10 make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and babilities at the balance sheet
date and revenue and expenses during the
reporting pentod Although estimates are based
on management s best knowledge at the time,
actual amounts may ultimately differ from
those estimates For example measurernent

of intangtble assets, both in acquisitions and
business combinations, requires us to identify
such assets and any assumptions and estimates
of future cash flows and appropnate discount
rates ta value identified assets may be impacted
by vanous factors, including adverse economic
condiions or integration ssues

Comphance and Routine Risks

In order to manage the more numerous and
routine risks, the Group mantains a complete
and robust governance framework This
consssts of a full set of policres, processes and
systerns covering all aspects of compliance,
with internattonal and local laws as well as with
the Groups stated minimum control standards

Management provides primary assurance by
drwing nsk complance through their respective
area, regional or functional responsibihity This
15 done through regular and detailed business
raviews Secondary assurance 15 provided
independently through a combination of
internal and external audit covening all aspects
of the Groups operations

Financial Risk Management

The Group s multunational operations expose

1t to a vanety of finanaal nsks that include the
effects of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates (foreign exchange sk} market prices,
interest rates credit nsks and hquidity

The Group has in place a nsk management
programme that uses forergn currency financial
instruments including debt, and other
instruments, to imit the impact of these nsks
on the financal performance of the Group

The Groupss financing and financial nsk
management activities are centralised into
Group Treasury (GT) 1o achieve benefits of scale
and control GT manages financial exposures
of the Group centrally 1n @ manner consistent
with underlying business iisks GT manages
only those risks and flows generated by the
underlying commercal operations and
speculative transactions are not undertaken

The Board reviews and agrees palaes,
guidelines and authonty levels for all areas
of Treasury actvity and indmwdually approves
significant actmvities GT operates under the
close control of the CFO and 15 subject to
penodic independent reviews and audits,
both internal and externai

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group prepares its financial statements in
Sterling but conducts business in many foreign
currencies As a result 1t s subject to foreign
exchange risk due to the effects that exchange
rate movements have on the translation of the
results and the underlying net assets of its
foretgn subsichanes

The Group’s policy 1s to align interest costs

and operating profit of 1ts major currences tn
order to provide some protection agamst the
translation exposure on foreign currency profits
after tax The Group may undertake borrowings
and other hedging methods in the curréncies

of the countries where most of its assets

are located

For transactions, 1t s the Group s policy to
monttor and only where appropriate, hedge its
foreign currency transaction exposures These
transaction exposures anse mamly from foreign
currency receipts and payments for goods and
services, and from the remittance of foreign
currency dividends and loans The locat business
urits enter into forward foraign exchange
contracts with GT {0 manage these exposures,
where practical and allowed by local
regulattons GT manages the Group exposures,
and hedges the net position where possible,
using spot and forward foreign currency
exchange contracts

Market Price Risk

Due to the nature of its business the Group 15
exposed to commodity price nisk related to the
production or packaging of finished goods such
as oll-related, and a diverse range of other

raw matenals This nsk 15, however managed
primarily through medium-term contracts with
certain key supphers and 15 not viewed as being
a matenal risk The Group 1s not exposed to
equity securities pnge rsk

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has both interest-bearing and non
interest-bearing assets and habidities The Group
monitors its Interest expense rate exposure on

a regular basis The Group manages 1fs interest
rate exposure on s gross financtal assets by
using fixed rate term deposits

Credit Risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credii sk Financial institution counterparties
are subject to approval under the Group's
counterparty nsk policy and such approval is
imited to financial institutions with a BBB
rating or above The Group uses BBB and
hugher rated counterparties to manage nsk and
uses BBB rated counterparties by exception

The amount of exposure to any indmdual
counterparty s subject to a linit defined within
the counterparty nisk policy which is reassessed
annually by the Board

Liquidity Risk

The Group has bilateral credrt facilitres with
high-guality imternational banks All of these
faclities have simtlar or equivalent terms and
conditions, and have a financial covenant,
whuch s not expected to restrict the Group s
future operations The committed borrowing
facihues, together with available uncommutted
facilies and central cash and investments are
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considered sufficient to meet the Group s
projected cash requsrements

Funds over and above those required for
short-term working capital purposes by the
overseas bustnesses are generally remitted to
GT The Group uses the remittances to settle
obligations, repay borrowings or, in the event
of a surplus, invest in short-term instruments
ssued by instritutions with a BBB rating or above

Capital Management

The Group's objectives for managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, 1n order to provide returns
for Shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to mantain an efficent
capital structure to optimise the cost of capital

in maintaining an appropnate capial structure
and prowiding returns for Shareholders, in 2013
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the Company has provided returns to
Shareholders in the form of dvrdends, the
current detais of which are included 1n the
Financial Review for the year on page 15, and
share buy backs

The Group monitors net debt (total borrowings
less cash and cash equivatents, short-term
available for sale financial assets and financing
dervative financial instruments) and at the year
end the Group had net debt of £2,096m (2012
£2,426m) The Group seeks to pay down net
debt using cash generated by the business to
mantatn an approprate level of financial
flexiibity

Details of numericat disclosures relating to the
Group s financal nsk management are included
in note 14 to the financial staternents on pages
70t073
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Shareholder Information

Electronic Commumications

The Shareholders passed a resolution at the 2008 AGM enabling the
Company's webstte 10 be used as the primary means of communication
with them Shareholders who have positively elected, or are deemed to
have consented, to receiving electronic communications in accardance
with the Companies Act 2006 will receve written notification whenever
Shareholder documents are available to view on the Company’'s website

Shareholders who have receved a notice of availlabihity of a document
on the Company's website are entitfed to reguest a hard copy of any
such document at any tme free of charge from the Company's Registrar
Shareholders can also revoke ther consent to recewve electroric
communtcations at any time by contacting the Registrar

The Company's 2013 Annual Report and Notice of the 2014 AGM are
available to view at www b com/online-annual-report-2013

The Investor Relations section of the website contains up-to-date
informatien for Sharehotders including

= Detatled share price information,

* Financial results,

+ Dividend payment dates and amounts,

« Access to Shareholder documents including the Annual Report, and
« Share capital information

Annual General Meeting
To be held on Wednesday 7 May 2014 at 11 15 am at the Landon
Heathrow Marrott Hotel, Bath Road Hayes, Middlesex UB3 5AN

Every Shareholder 1s entitled to attend and vote at the meeting

The Notice convering the meeting 15 contained m a separate document

for Shareholders Shareholders who have regsstered for electronic

communication can

* Recewe an email alert when Shareholder documents are available,

+ View the Annual Report and Notice of AGM on the day they are
published,

+ Cast their AGM vote electronically, and

= Manage their shareholding quickly and securely online

Final Dividend for the Year ended 31 December 2013

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of 77p per share, for
the year ended 31 December 2013 Subject to approval at the 2014
AGM, payment will be on 29 May 2014 to all Shareholders on the
register as at 21 February 2014

Company Secretary
Eflizabeth Richardson

Registered Office

103-105 Bath Road, Slough Berkshire SL1 3UH
Telephone 01753 217800

Facsimile 01753 217839

Regrstered and Domuciled in England
No 6270876

Company Status
Public Lirmited Company

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Solicitors
Staughter and May

Registrar and Transfer Office
The Company's Registrar, Computershare 15 responsible for maintaning
and updating the Shareholder register and making dvidend payments

If you have any queries relating to your shareholding please write to,
or telephone, the Company’s Registrar at the following address
Computershare Investor Services PLC

The Pavilions Brnidgwater Road Bristol BS99 62Y

Reckitt Benckiser Sharehofder helphne 0870 7030118

Website www computershare comvuk

104 RB Annual Report 2013

American Depositary Receipts

Reckitt Benckiser Group plc Amenican Depositary Receipts (ADRs} are
traded on the over-the-counter market (OTC}) under the symbol RBGLY
Frve ADRS represent one ordinary share J P Morgan Chase Bank N A 15
the Depositary

if you should have any queres, please contact

JP Morgan Chase Bank N A

PO Box 64504, St Paul, MN 55164-0504, US

E-mal jpmorgan adr@wellsfargo com

Telephone number for general queries {800) 390 1135
Telephone number from outside the US +1 651 453 2128

Key Dates
Announcement of guarter 1 intenm

management statement 16 Aprd 2014
Annual General Meeting 7 May 2014
Payment of final ordinary dividend 29 May 2014
Announcement of interim results 28 July 2014
Payment of intenm ordinary dividend September 2014

Announcemnent of quarter 3 interm
management statement
Preliminary announcement of 2014 results

23 Qctober 2014
11 February 2015

Pubhcation of 2014 Annual Report and Accounts Apnl 2015
Annual General Meeting May 2015
Analysis of Shareholders as at 31 Decembr.;r 2013
No of
Distiibution of shares by type of Shareholder holdings Shares
Nominees and Institutronal investors 9,774 719,378,732
Indviduals 14,368 17 156,447
Total 24,142 736.535.179
No of
Size of shareholding holdings Shares ‘
1-3500 14678 3,052,238
501 - 1,000 4,047 2,964,286
1,000 - 5,000 3,770 7,687,368 |
5,001 - 10,000 459 3250 148
10 001 - 50 000 558 13,143,965
50,001 - 100,000 165 11,768,568
100,001 - 1,000,000 366 114 891 103
1000 000 and above 99 579 777,502
Total 24,142 736,535,179

‘Boiler Room' Scams

Sharehclders who are offered unsolicited investment advice, discounted
shares, a premium price for shares, or free company or research reports,
should take these steps befare handing over any money

1 Get the name of the person and organisation

2 Check the Financial Services Register at www fsa gov uk/register to
ensure they are autharnised

3 Use the details on the Financial Services Register to contact the firm

4 Call the FCA Consumer Helphine on 0800 111 6768, if there are no
contact details an the Register or if they are out of date

5 Search the FCAS st of unauthonsed firms and indviduals tc avoxd
doing business with at www fca org uk/scams

6 If you are approached by fraudsters please contact the FCA using their
helpline, or share fraud reporting form at www fca org uk/scams

7 Consider getting independent financiat advice

Using an unauthonsed firm to buy or sell shares or other investments will
prohibit access to the Finanaial Ombudsman Service or Financial Services
Compensation Scheme (FSCS)if things go wrong
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This report is part of an integraled approach to reperting our total
performance. Our family of reports also indudes the Annual Report
Highlights, the Sustainability Report on our social and environmental
responsibilities, and reqularly updated corporate respeonsibility information
at www.rb.com

Left: Annual Report Highlights 2013
Righi: Sustainability Report 2013 (report to be published at www.rb.com)

The following are trademarks of the Reckitt Benckiser group of companies

or used under license:

Airborne, Air Wick, Aqua Mist, Bang, Calgon, Cherry Blossom, Clearasii, d-Con,
Dermicool, Dermodex, Dettol, Digestive Advantage, Durex, Fasywax, filter & Frash,
Finish, Flip & Fresh, Frank's Red Hot, French's, Freshmatic. Gaviscon, Graneodin, Harpic,
Harpic Hygienic, Luftal Lysol, Manyanshuning, MegaRed, Micostatin, Move Free,
Mortein, Mucinex, Naldecon, No-Touch, Nugget, Nurofen, Our Home Our Planet,
Performax intense, Picot, Power Plus, Quantum, Quantumatic, Resolve, Schiff. Schiff
Vitarnins, Scholl, Spray ‘n Wash, Strepsils, Subaxone, Subutex, Tempra, Tiger’s Milk,
Vanish, Veet, Veja, Woolite as well as Reckitt Benckiser and the RB kite logos.

Designed and produced by The Workroom www.workroom.co.uk

Cover photo credits: Getty Images, iStock, Sava the Chitdren,
Lucia Zoro / Save the Children

Printed by teycol Printers Limited p
FSC '

The paper used for this report and the envelope used for postal T T

distripution are made from FSC {Forest Stewardship Council)® e

certified sustainable forest stocks. | FsETCIITes2 |




Reckitt Benckiser Group plc
103-105 Bath Road

Slough Berkshire SL1 3UH
United Kingdom

www rb com
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